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FOREWORD

This volume contains all of the adjudications and opinions issued by the
Environmental Hearing Board during the calendar year 1992.

The Environmental Hearing Board was originally created as a departmental
administrative baard within the Department of Environmental Resources by the
Act of December 3, 1970, P.L. 834, No. 275, which amended the Administrative
Code, the Act of April 9, 1929, P.L. 177. The Environmental Hearing Board
Act, the Act of July 13, 1988, P.L. 530, No. 94, upgraded the status of the
Board to an independent, quasi-judicial agency and expanded the size of the
Board from three to five Members. The jurisdiction of the Board, however, is
unchanged by the Environmental Hearing Board Act; it still is empowered "to
hold hearings and issue adjudications... on orders, permits, 1icenses or

decisions" of the Department of Environmental Resources.
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KEYSTONE CEMENT COMPANY.

v‘

EHB Docket No. 92-163-MR

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES ¢ Issued: May 7, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
PETITION FOR SUPERSEDEAS

- Robert D.»Myers. Member

'Where the Board concludes that, ajthough DER is likely to prevail on

the issue concerning a cement company's excess use of hazardous and residual
_ waste) a suspension of the permits authorizing the use of such waste is not
_warranted, a supersedeas will be granted. In reaching this conc]usion,-the
Board considers the potential economic harm to the Cement Company and its
'v employees, the likelihood of environmental damage; and the balancing of
'_'fhtérests. |
OPINION

On April 17, 1992 Keystone Cement Company {(Keystone) filed -a Notice
of Appeal from a March 31, 1992 Order of the Department of Environmental
: Rgsources (DER) which, inter alia, suspended Keystone's authority to store and

burn hazardous and residual wastes at its manufacturing plant in East Allen
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| ToWnshtp, Northampton County. With its Notice of Appea1, Keystone filed a
Petition for Supersedeas. 'DEvailed its Response to the Petition’on April 28,
1992. | | | o

Another Notice of Appea] and Pet1t1on for Supersedeas prepared on
behalf of 1nd1v1duals 1dent1f1ed as Certain of the Employees of Keystone
Cement”Company, was fi]ed on April 24, 1992 (Board Docket“No.“924173-MR) '
‘seeking review of the. same DER Order. On April 29 199é Saucon Association
for a Viable Env1ronment (SAVE), Leh1gh Valley Coalition for a Safe
Environment (LVCASE) Mrs. Suzanne Mosch1n1, Mrs Cynth1a Orobono Mr Lev1
Borger, Mrs.’Deborah”Ke]]y, Mrs. Ramineh §hahri, Mrs. Nancy Weiland and Ms.
Ruth Lynn (Proposed Interveriors) filed a Petition to Intervene in both
appea1s. They filed, at the'same.time, a dooument setting forth their
opposition to the Supersedeas Petitions. Also'on'Apri] 29, 1992 United
Paperworkers International Union and the Teamsters Local Union 773 filed a
legal memorandum as amicus curiae. |

HA’hearing on Keystone{s'Petition for Supersedeas was her {h
Harrisburg before Adm1n1strat1ve Law Judge Robert D. Myers Member of the
'Board on April 30 1992. DER and Keystone were represented by 1ega1 counset
Since the hear1ng had been schedu]ed pr1or to the f111ng of the Emp]oyees
Petition and since the Employees' Pet1t1on is dependent on the outcome of
'Keystone s Supersedeas request the Emp]oyees d1d not take an act1ve part in
the hear1ng However, their legal counsel was permitted to present oral
argument at the conclusion of ’t'he»hearing.1 Since the Petitions to
Intervene had not yet been granted, the Proposed Intervenors were not
permitted:to take part in the hearing. However, their tega]icounselnwas

accorded the privilege of sitting at DER's counsel table.

1 The Employees also agreed to waive a hearinQ‘On their Petition.
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The record'consists of the'pleadings, a hearing trénscript of 271
pages and 23 exhibits. Kéystone, the Employees and DER filed legal memorandé
on May 5, 1992. The following factual situation'appears from the record.

| Keystone is a éorporatidn which has operated a portland cement plant
~in East Allen Township, Northampton County, sincef1928.2< It currently
emp loys about 250_persons and has an annuaf payr611 of $9,000,000. Keystone
utilizes two rotary cement kilns where temperatures in excess of 2500°F
produce molecu]ar.changes essential to the making of portland cement. Since
1977 Keystone has used a mixtufe of coal and wastekéolvent fuels to fire its
kilns. The waste solvent fuels are characterizedas,hazardous waste as
dgfined in section 103 of the Solid Waste Management Act (SWMA), Act of July
7, 1980, P;L- 380, as amended, 35 P.S. §6018.103, and in 25 Pa. Code §260.2.
~ Under Air Quality Operating Permits Nos. 48-309-040 and 48-309-041,
issued by DER on AugqstV18, 1986 and reissded on August 21, 1991, Keystone was
authorized to add'w&ste so]vént fuels to the fuel mixture at a rate not to
exceed 10 gallons per minute for kiTn #1 and’ndt to exceed 30 galldns
per minute for ki]nv#z. Keystone also possesses Hazardous Waste Storage
Permit No. PA0002389559, issued‘DecemberA27, 1991. It has storage capacity
for approximate]y'75,000'ga116ns of waste solvent fue]sﬂ
© Air Quality Plan Approvals Nos. 48-309-040B and 48-309-0418, issued
by DER 1in March 1989, dealt with the burning of residual waste (as defined in
section 103 Qf the SWMA, 35 P.S. §6018.103,'and in 25 Pa. Code §260.2) as part
of thé fuel mixture in Keystone’s kilns. Since issuance of theée Plan
Approvals, DER has issued only Temporary Air Quality Operating Permits Nos.
48-309-040B and 484309-0418, the most recent of which were released by DER on
January 14,.1992.

2 Keystone is a subsidiary of GIANT Group, Ltd.
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Air Quality P]an Approvals Nos. 48-309;04CC and 48-309-041C, issued
by DER on December 27, 1991, concern modifications dealing with expanded use
of hazardous and residual wastes tn Keystone's kilns. These two:P1an
Approvals, the‘HaZardous Waste Storage Permit and theiTemporaryAOperating
Permits are subjects of other proceedings pending before the Board at Docket
Numbers 92-041-MR, 92-042-MR, 92-043—MR 92-048-MR and 92-060-MR. |

On March 26, 1992 legal counse] for Keystone and its parent
corporation, Christopher H Marraro and Howard J. Wein, met w1th DER ]ega]
counse1, Michael D. Bedrin and Barbara L. Smith, and disclosed that an
internal review occasioned'by document requests in one of these‘other‘appeals ‘
had uncovered instances where thevfeed rates for waste solvent fuels had been
exceeded. The number and extent ot these'exceedancesVWere difficult to .
quantify, according to Marraroband Wein, because of defictenciesvin‘Keystone’s’
monitoring and inventory tracking systems. These defitiencies had'been‘
e]iminated by improved systems insta]]ed in March 1992, and the exceedances
had stopped. - Marraro and Wein promised Keystone s full cooperat1on in any
1nvest1gat1on DER wanted to conduct | |

DER investigators arrived at Keystone}s plant on the fo]iowing day;
toured the fac111ty to become familiar with the process and secured copies of
Daily 0perat1ona1 Reports for- the per1od December 31, 1988 through March 24
1992. These Reports contained a var1ety of detailed data concerning da11y ’
| product1on operat1ng hours and materials consumed DER 1nvest1gator Den1se
D. Str1ck1and d1v1ded the number of hours of operat1on for each k11n 1nto the
gallons of waste so]vent fuels consumed by that k11n to arrive at an average
'hour]y consumption rate which was then converted to:an average minutev |
consumption rate for that date. This calculation revealed that kiln #2 was

operated in excess of the 30 gallons-per-minute rate on 135 of the 310
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operating days in 1989, 144 of the 312 operating days in 1990 and 61 of the
263 operat1ng days in 1991. |

Somet ime dur1ng the latter part of 1991, the computer program used to
compile the Daily Operational Reports was mod1f1ed at the direction of
Keystone's Chief Operating Officer, James Longenbach, to conceal the excess
consumption of waste solvent fuels. When the gallons of fuel used durfng'the
daily period exceeded the 30 gallons-per-minute feed rate for kiln #2, the
report would show only the maximum permitted amount (43,200 gallons for 24 :
hours of.operation, for example). The computer would retain the overage in
its memory and apply it, in part or in whole, during the next operating day
when the fuel consumed was less then the maximum. Beg1nn1ng on August 24,
1991 the Daily Operational Reports reflect the 43,200 gallon maximum for kiln
#2 on 35 operating days up to November 26, 1991 (when the kiln was taken out
of operation) and on 10 operating daxs between February 2 and February 23,
1992-(after the kiln had been placed back in operation on January 26, 1992).

The amount of waste solvent fuels consumed, as shown'on the Daily
Operational Reports, is not precise. The amount is determined by comparing
fhe volume of waste solvent fuels in Keystone’s storage tanks on a given day
wfth the volume present on the preceding day and’adjusting the figure by fuel
deliveries. The volumes are determined by daily measurements (using a string
and ba]])lof the 1iqujd levels in the horizontal fenks and daily readings of
the pressure gauge‘on the vertical tank. The volume determinations are not
made at the exact same time everyday and may be made while waste so]vent fuels
are being added to, or removed from, the tanks. Moreover, the pressure

readings can be influenced by temperature and barometric pressure. The amount
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of waste solvent fuels cohsumed, as shown on the Daily Operational Reports, is
nonetheless used by Keystone on its Pennsylvania Emission Data System (PEDS)
reports filed annually with DER.

The waste solvent fuels consumed, as reflected on the Daily
Operational Reports, waé not enough to cause violations of the stack emission
limits applicable to Keystone's plant.

On March 31, 1992 DER issued the Order prompting this appeal. After
reciting the circumstances 1eéding up to issuance, the Ordér (1) directed
Keystbne to cease immediately accepting and burning hazardous and residual
waste; (2) suspended the Hazardous Waste Storage Permit, the Air Quality Plan
Approvals issued on December 27, 1991, the authority to burn hazardous waste
under the Air Quality Operating Permits reissued on August 21, 1991, and the
authority to burn residual waste under the Temporary Air Quality Operating
Permits issued on January 14, 1992; and (3) directéd Keystone to have the
hazardous and residual waste removed from its premises to an appropriate
facility. On that same date Keystone suspended James Longenbach and replaced
him with Terry Kinder, Keystone's Chief Executive Officer since June, 1989.
Longenbach will never again be employed by Keystone, according to Kinder.

| The hézardous and residual waste co]1ectivé1y account fof about 50%
of Keystone's fuel use. The other 50% is coal. DER’'s Order will necessitate
the use of 100% coal, increasing Keystone’s costs by approximately $400,000 a
~month.3 The cdmpanyAexperienced,a—pre-tax loss in 1991 in excess of.$4
million. While a slight profit had been pfojecfed for 1992, having to burn
100% coal will generate another $4 milljon loss. If the Order is not

superseded, Keystone will have to'ask all of its employees, salaried and

3 Fuel costs could be lowered to a more competitive figure if Keystone
upgraded the efficiency of its kilns. The cost of doing so, perhaps $50 - $60
million, is more than the company can handle in a depressed economy.
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hourly, for a pay cut of 15% to 20% as well as reductions in benefits. If the
employees refuse, the plant will have to be closed. Keystone also is
threatened with the loss of a‘$5 million line of credit needed as operating
capital. |
. Recently, Keystone has modified its monitoring and control systems by

installing on the waste solvent fuel lines serving both kilns
_ microprocessor-based liquid flow meters with feed-rate controls, deviation
alarms, automatic interlocks and strip charts which record the actual -
gallon-per-minute feed rates. Richard A. Familia, who became president of
Giant Resource Recovery, one of Keystone's sister companies, in February,
1992, has an extensive background in environmental compliance. After DER's
Order was issued, he was sent to Keystone with authority to establish |
monitoring and control systems to insure compliance with DER permits. It is
not clear whether he was responsible for specifying the new flow meters but
expressed confidence in their reliability. |

‘As currently programmed, the flow meters will automatically stop the
flow of waste solvent fuels at 9.6 gallons per ﬁinute for kiln #1 and at 29
gallons per minute for kiln #2. These levels were established by accounting
for equipment error and including a safety factor. When the flow reaches 1
gallon per minute below those levels, the high flow alarm will activate to
alert the control room operétor that the limits are being approached. This
alarm is both audible and visual. The audible alarm can be silenced by the
operator but the visual alarm continues to flash until the flow drops below
the alarm point. If the flow is not reduced and reaches the cutoff point, it
will be stopped automatically.

Familia has set up procedures for calibrating and verifying the flow

meters, inspecting the components of the monitoring and control systems, and
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invoking security to the computer database. He has also modified the
organization so that Keystone's in-house vice-president for environmental
affairs, Michael J. Luybli, and his staff report directly to him. The mission
of this group is strictly compliance and not operations. The computer code
can be changed only by Luybli or Familia. The system also is equipped with a
modem which could be accessed by DER by telephone at any time.

. To be entitled to a supersedeas, Keystone must show by a
preponderancé of the evidence (1) that it will suffer irreparable harm, (2)
that it is likely to prevail on the merits, and (3) that there is no
likelihood of injury to the public or other parties. Where pollution or
injury to the public health, safety or welfare exists or is threatened, a
supersedeas cannot be granted: section 4(d), Environmental Hearing Board Act,
'Act of July 13, 1988, P.L. 530, 35 P.S. §7514(d); 25 Pa. Code §21.78. We are
" to balance the interests of the parties and the public: Pennsylvania public
Utility Commission v. Process Gas Consumers Group, 502 Pa. 545, 467 A.2d 805
(1983). '

IWe have held that significant financial or economic injury
constitutes irreparable harm: Elmer R. Baumgardner et al. v. DER, 1988 EHB
786. Ceftain]y, the consequences described by Keystone’s Chief Executive
Officer fall within this category. While DER challenges the sufficiency of
this testimony it presented no countering evidence. Accordingly, as we did
in Eugene Nicholas, t/d/b/a Nicho las Packing -Company v. DER, Board Docket No.
92-025-MR, Opinion and Order issued March 6, 1992, we will agree with Keystone
that it will suffer irreparable harm if forced to discontinue using waste
solvent fuels. | |

Despite all of Keystone's efforts to persuade us that the Daily

Operational Reports are not reliable enough to establish permit violations, we
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remain unconvinced for several reasons. First, it is obvious that Keystone's
management considered them to be credible. Not only were the waste solvent
fuels consumed data used on the annual PEDS report, the company modified the
computer program to conceal the daily overages. When the circumstances were
brought to the attention of the parent company, they decided on a full
disclosure to DER. These actions place a significance on the Daily
Operational Report figures that contradicts attempts to discount them. More
important, however, is the extent and régu]arity’of the.overburnings. It
occurred on nearly one-half of the operating days in 1989 and 1990. While it
dropped in 1991, it still happened on one-third of the days (including those
reported at the maximum). The excess consumed was less than 1,000 gallons
only about 10% of the time. It exceeded 2,000 gallons about 67% of the time.
On 46 occasions it topped 10,000 gallons. We are unwilling to attribute these
overages to the inaccuracies deséribed by Keystone's witnesses. Consequently,
we do not consider it likely that Keystone will prevail on this issue.

The other issue is whether DER abused its discretion in suspending
the permits and directing removal of the wastes. It clearly has the statutory
authority to take such action: section 503(c) of the SWMA, 35 P.S.
§6018.503(c), and section 6.1(c) of the Air ﬁo]]ution Control Act (APCA), Act
of January 8, 1960, P.L. (1959) 2119, as amended, 35 P.S. §400671(c). Whether
it should have exercised that power in this situation depends upon a
consideration of a multitude of factors. DER cites the duration and regular
nature of the violations - and these are important. It emphasizes Keystone's
breach of the trust that necessarily underlies the permitting process - and
the importance of this cannot be minimized, especially where hazardous waste

is involved.
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We must also weigh the fact that Keystone divulged the overburning to
DER, removed the individual who authorized it and put in place
state-of-the-art monitoring and control systems as well as organizational
changes in effort to prevent it from happening again.- We must keep in mind
that plants where hazardous waste is beneficially consumed are desirable
facilities. And we must place on the scales the fact that Keystone's stack-
emission limits were not exceeded despite .the overbufning.

Weighing these factors as carefully as we can, given the abbreviated
record necessarily produced by a supersedeas proceeding, we find a
near-perfect balance. We are loathe to second-guess DER on a matter of such
importance, but we believe that an indefinite suspension of the permits was
excessive. Keystone, in our opinion, is likely to prevail on this issue.

Harm to the public was not shown to have occurred as a result of the
past overburning. That does not mean that harm will not occur in the future,
however, if Keystone is allowed to resume burning waste solvent fuels. We are
satisfied that the feed rates which have been in effect since 1986 will not
produce stack emissions detrimental to the public health, safety and welfare.
The risk is that Keystone will resume its past practice of ignoring those
rates. While the monitoring and control systems that have been put in place
are impressive, they will be no more trustworthy than the individuals
operating them. The fidelity of Keystone's management and employees to
environmental compliance has been thrown in doubt by practices as recent as
three months ago. DER and the public are more than justified to be skeptical
about promises of future performance;--In the final analysis, however, there

can be no other assurance. We must either rely on the integrity of permittees
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or stop issuing permits entirely. Balancing the interests of the parties and
the public, we conclude that the threat of environmental harm is not enough to
warrant a denial of the supersedeas.

We admonish Keystdne, its management and employees in the strongest
terms possible that their investments and livelfhoods have come within a -
hairsbreadth of extinction by their disregard of environmental regulations.
Handling hazardous waste is one of the most Sensitive undertakings in our
society, demanding a scrupulous adherence to safety and health requirements.
Any deviation from that standard in the future will be grounds for Tifting the
superéedeas. If you truly wish to avoid the irreparable harm that will
entail, you must pay meticulous attention to the responsibilities imposed upon
you in connection with the privilege of using hazardous and residual wastes.

During the supersedeas period, we will require Keystone at its own
cost (1) to provide DER with 24-hour access to the monitoring and control
systems (as Keystone already has offered to do), and (2) to provide DER with
~daily printouts of the gallon-per-minute feed rates of waste solvent fuels
used in the kilns. These printouts will be delivered to DER’s Wilkes-Barre
office (or other designated location) within 24 hours after the close of the
daily period to which they apply. DER, of course, may waive one or both of

. these requirements.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 7th day of May, 1992, it is ordered as follows:

1. Keystone’'s Petition for Supersedeas is granted.-

2. DER’s Order of March 31, 1992 is Superseded'unfij furiher notice.

3. Prior to resuming the use of waste solvent fuéis, Keyétone shall-

(a) certify to DER and the Board that all compOnenté of ité
monitoring and control systems, as described to the Bdard, are in place,
calibrated and functional, and

(b) provide.DER with 24-hour access to‘the.mOniférfng ahd;éontrol
Sysfems, unless DER waives this requirement in writing. | ”

4. While waste solvent fuels are being utilized, Keystone shall
provide DER with daily printouts of the gallon-per minute feed fatés of Waste
solvent fuels, to be delivered to DER's Wilkes- Barre off1ce (or other
designated location) within 24 hours after the c]ose of the daily per1§d to

which they apply, unless DER waives this requirement in writing.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

G,

ROBERT D. MYERS = AP
Administrative Law Judge :
Member

DATED: May 7, 1992

cc: See next page for service list.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
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J. P. MASCARO & SONS, INC.
V. . EHB Docket No. 89-580-F.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : ‘
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 8, 1992

ADJUDICATION

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member

Sy1labus

The Board reverses a civil penalty assessment issued by the
Department of Environmental Resources (DER) pursuant to the Solid Waste
Management Act. The legal definition of the term "solid waste" includes,
among other tbings, "residual waste;" therefore, DER erred in finding that the
Appellant's pérmit, which authorized ft to process "solid waste," did not
authorize‘it to process "residual waste."

INTRODUCTION

This Adjudication involves an appeal by J. P. Mascaro and Sons, Inc.
(Mascaro) from a civil penalty assessment issued by DER on October-30, 1989 in
the amount of $19,215. Mascaro owns and operates the Mascaro transfer;
facility in Franconia Township, Montgomery County, Pehnéy]vahia. The civil
penalty was based on an alleged violation of the Solid Waste Management: Act,
the Act of July 7, 1980, P.L. 380, as amended, 35 P.S. §6018.101 et seq. and
the regulations promulgated under this' law. “More specifically, DER alleged

that Mascaro processed residual waste at its facility without a permit
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authorizing this activity.

A hearing on this matter was held on November 7, 1990. Mascaro did
not present any testimony at the hearing. DER presented testimony through
compliance specialist Nancy Roncetti, and through waste management facilities
manager Larry Lunsk. The parties filed post-hearing briefs on January 9, 1991
and January 10, 1991.. |

After a full and complete review of the record, we make the following
findings of fact: |

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Appellant in this proceeding is J. P. Mascaro & Sons, Inc.
(Mascaro), a waste processor with offices at 320 Godshall Road, Harleysville,
Montgomery County, Pennsylvania and with a solid waste processing facility,
the Mascaro transfer station, in Franconia Township, Montgomery County,
Pennsylvania.

2. The Appellee in this procéedfng is the Departmentﬂpf 
Environmental Resources (DER), the executive agency of the Comﬁonwea]th with
fhe duty and authority to administer and enforce the Solid Waste Management
Act (SWMA), the Act of July 7,'1980, P.L. 380, as amended, 35 P.S. §6018.101
et seq.; Section 191f—A of the Administrative Code, the Act of April 9, 1929,
P.L,_177} as amended, 71 P.S. §510-17; and the rules and regulations adopted
under these laws. v

\ 3. On October 30, 1989,vDER issued-a civil pena1ty.assessment of
$19,215 tobMascaro, a]]eging that on December 1,»1988 Mascarp processed drums
containing residué] waste without a permit authorizing the acceptance of such

waste, in violation of 25 Pa. Code §279.201(c) and Sections 301’and 302(a) of
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the SWMA, 35 P.S. §§6018 301 6018 302(a)

4. DER issued So]1d Waste Permit No. 101237 to Mascaro on September
25, 1981. This perm1t authorized operat1on of a solid waste" processing
fac111ty - ij.e. the "Mascaro Transfer Station” (Commonwealth Exhibit 1 -
"Exh. C-17). |

5. The first page of Mascaro's permit stated that application number
101237‘was made a part of the permit (Exh. C-1, Transcript 13 - "T. 13").

6. The first page of the permit provided: "See attachment for waste
limitations and/or‘special conditions.” The attachment (the second page of t
the perm1t) did not contain any waste 11m1tat1ons (Exh c-1).

7. Mascaro’s application stated that the transfer station wou]d |
process "solid wastes from res1dent1a1 commerc1a1 and 1ndustr1a1
fac111t1es In a footnote on ‘the application, Mascaro c]ar1f1ed that 1t was
referr1ng to solid wastes as referred to in the SWMA and 25 Pa. Code §75 1,
but that no hazardous wastes would be accepted (Exh C 2). |

8. Both at the time the perm1t was issued and at the present t1me
thefterm ”so]1d waste” included mun1c1pa], residual, and hazardous wastes (T.
26, 25 Pa. Code §75.1, 35 P.S. §6018.103). - |

>9. Mascaro s permit authorized it to accept among’other things,
res1dua1 waste | | -

| '10.' Paragraph 3 of the civil pena]ty assessment which states that
Mascaro S perm1t author1zes it to operate a mun1c1pa1 waste transfer |
stat1on i does not accurate]y reflect the terms of Mascaro’s perm1t

DISCUSSIUN

This is an appeal by Mascaro from DER’s assessment of a $19,215 civil
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penalty. DER bears the burden of proof in this appeal. 25 Pa. Code
§21.101(b)(1)(3), T.C. Inman, Inc. v. DER, 1988 EHB 613. In reviewing DER's

imposition of a civil péna]ty assessment, the Board must determine two things:
whether the appellant has vio]ated'the statute or regu]atiohs, and, if we ffnd
that the appellant has committed'a violation, whether there is a “reasonable
fit” between the severity of the vio]ation and the amount of the penalty.

Chrin Brothers v. DER, 1989 EHB 875.

In this case, it is not necessary to address the amount of the
penalty beca&se we find that Mascaro did not commit the vio]at{on upon which
the ci9i1 penalty was based. Accordingly, we will Timit our discussion to the
issue regarding the violation.

Mascaro argues in its brief that its permit authoriZed it to handle
residual waste. In support; Mascaro points out that its permft authorized it
tb handle “solid waste,” and thas the definition of this term includes
residual waste, citihg‘Section 103 of SWMA, 35 P.S. §6018.103, and the v
regu]ations at 25 Pa. Code §§75.1, 271.1. Therefore, Mascaro contends that
DER erred in finding, in paragraph 4 of the civil penalty sssessment, that the
permit did not authorize processing of residual waste. |

DER argues that Mascaro’s permit did not authsrize processing of
residual waste. DER relies upon Mr. Lunsk’s interpretation of the permit
language - that Mascaro coqld_on]y accept "municipa] waste” from residential,
commercial, and industrial sourcés (T. 14-15). The réasoning behind Mr. Lunsk’s
interpretation is that if an app]iéant intended to handle residual waste, he
would have ts be more specific about the soufée and type of waste involved

(T. 40-41). DER also relies upon 25 Pa. Code §279.201(c), which provides that
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an operator of a transfer facility may not allow residual waste to be handled
there unless DER has specifically approved handling that waste in the permit.

The term "solid waste” is defined in the SWMA as:

Any waste, including but not limited to,

municipal, residual or hazardous wastes,

including solid, liquid, semisolid or contained

gaseous materials ...
35 P.S. §6018.103. The definition of solid waste stated in 25 Pa. Code §271.1
is virtually identical to that stated in the SWMA.l The term solid waste is ‘
defined in 25 Pa. Code §75.1 as follows:Z

Garbage, refuse and other discarded materials

including, but not limited to, solid and liquid

waste materials resulting from municipal,

industrial, commercial, agriculture [sic] and

residential activities.
Although stated in slightly different terms, the definition in Section 75.1 of
the regulations is consistent with the definition of solid waste stated in
Section 103 of SWMA.

It is obvious that DER’s interpretation of Mascaro’s permit is
inconsistent with the above definitions. Section 103 of SWMA states expressly
that the term solid waste includes, among other things; residual waste. DER’s
argument that the permit’s authorization to process ”"solid waste” only
encompasses processing of "municipal waste” from residential, commercial, and
industrial sources does not have any basis in SWMA or the regulations.

DER's interpretation of the permit is disturbing. The Department is

not free to brush aside the definitions in the statute whenever it finds those

1 Chapter 271 of DER S regu]at1ons is ent1t]ed ”Mun1c1pa1 Waste Management
- General Provisions.’

Z.Chapter 75 of DER’s regulations is entitled "So1id Waste Management.”
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definitions inconvenient. In the present case, DER's action is particularly
egregious because it is attempting to p]abe this strained construction upon
the permit language years after the permit was issued, in a civil penalty
proceeding.

Qur conclusion that Mascaro's permit authorizes it to process
residual waste is not affected by the language of 25 Pa. Code §279.201(c),
which reads:

A person(or municipality that operates a transfer

facility may not allow residual waste or special

handling waste to be received or handled at the

facility unless the Department has specifically

approved handling that waste in the permit.
Chapter 279 of DER’'s regulations was adopted in 1988, after the issuance of
Mascaro’s permit. The question which'this raises is whether the adoption of
Section 279.201(c) had the effect of automatically revoking Mascaro’s
authority to process residual waste.

The adoption of this regulation does not alter our conclusion here

because we find that Mascaro’'s permit was sufficiently specific to
. authorize it to process residual waste. Although Mascaro’s permit does not
contain the term "residual waste,” it does contain the term ”"solid waste,”

which, as explained above, includes residual waste.3 Moreover, if DER

believes that Mascaro’s facility cammot safely process residual waste, then

3 If we were to construe Section 279.201(c) of the regulations to require
the actual term "residual waste” in the permit - so that the term “solid
waste” was deemed insufficient to authorize handling of residual waste - we
would be creating a conflict between this section of the regulations and the
definition of "solid waste” in the SWMA. In this situation, we would be
forced to honor the statute over the regulations. Tiani v. Commonwealth, DPW,
86 Pa. Commw. 640, 486 A.2d 1016 (1985).
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DER can consider modifying the permit.4
Since we find that Mascaro has authority to process residual waste,
we need not address whether Mascaro’s handling of that waste constituted
“processing” as defined in 25 Pa. Code §271.1.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Board has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter of
this litigation. |

2. Mascaro’s permit, issued in 1981, authorizes it to process “solid
waste.” This includes the right'tq process "residual waste” because the term
solid waste is defined to include “residual waste.” Section 103 of SWMA, 35
P.S. §6018.103.

3. DER’s adoption in 1988 of 25 Pa. Code §273.201(c), which provides
that DER must "specifically approve” handling of residual waste, did not have
the effect of revoking Mascaro’s previously granted authority to handle
residual waste.

4. DER erred as a matter of law in concluding that Mascaro lacked

authorization to process residual waste at its transfer facility.

4 DER's action here contrasts sharply with the action under appeal in
Grand Central Sanitary Landfill, Inc. v. DER, EHB Docket No. 90-506-F (Opinion
and Order issued July 11, 1991). In the Grand Central case, DER had modified
a landfill operator’s permit by revoking its authority to receive certain
types of residual waste; this action was based upon 25 Pa. Code §273.201(d),
which is virtually identical to 25 Pa. Code §279.201(c) except that the former
applies to landfills and the latter applies to transfer stations. In the
instant case, rather than taking the administratively responsible step of
modifying Mascaro’s permit, DER has charged Mascaro with illegal conduct and
is attempting to impose a civil penalty.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 8th day of May, 1992, it is ordered that the -appeal of
J. P. Mascaro & Sons, Inc. is sustained, and the civil penalty assessment
issued by the Department of Environmental Resources on October 30, 1989 is

reversed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

apizss Wi

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

MUAM é/

Administ;ative Law Judge
Member

Administrative Law Judge
Member

RICHARD S. EHMANN ,
Administrative Law Judge
Member

,,E;Zf%‘“a o Cllnol

2?5 H N. MACK
AdWinistrative Law Judge

DATED: May 8, 1992 ‘Member

cc: For the Commonwealth, DER:
Virginia Davison, Esq.
Superfund Enforcement
For Appellant:
William F. Fox, Jr., Esq.
Harleysville, PA

jm
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMI
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

ROBERT AND SHARON ROYER, et al.
V. | | . EHB Docket No. 91-165-MR

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 8, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis
An appeal will bé dismissed when it seeks review of DER's inaction,
since the Board has no jurisdiction.
| OPINION
Appellants filed a Notice of Appeal on April 24, 1991 seeking review
of inaction on the part of the Department of Environmental Resources (DER)
with respect to Appellants' requests to 1ift a moratorium on the issuance of
sewage permits for lots in the Sandy Creek Forest Subdivision, Covington
<jw\V/Township, Clearfield County. The requests were made in letters to DER dated
May 8, 1990, July 16, 1990 and March 15, 1991. -The Tast letter contained the
following language:
Please be advised that if I do not hear a
response from you within ten (10) days of the
date of this letter, I will assume that DER has

determined to deny our request for an exempt1on
from the ban.

611



DER did not respond and Appellants filed their appeal, claiming that DER's
~inaction amounts to a denial of their requests. On December 2, 1991 DER filed
a Motion to Dismiss to which Appellants have filed no response.

As DER points out, this Board has held that DER inaction does not
constitute action subject to appeal to this Board: Westinghouse Electric
Corporation v. DER, 1990 EHB 515; S5. A. Kele Associétes, Inc. v. DER, Board
Docket No. 90-223-F, Opinion and Order issued May 28, 1991; Phoenix Resources,
Inc. v. DER, Board Docket Nos. 91-122-MR and 91-123-MR, Opinion and Order
issued October 16, 1991. .Appe]1ants cannot convert DER's inaction into action
simply by employing the language quoted above. ’Action involves a deliberate
exercise of will or force and can never be presumed (exceﬁt by legislative or
regulational fiat) from a failure to act. Appellants' remedy is to request
Commonwéa]th Court to invoke its equity powers by ordering DER to act. We
have no such powers: Marinari v. Commonwealth, Dept; of Environmental

Resources, 129 Pa. Cmwlth. 564, 566 A.2d 385 (1989).
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 8th day of May, 1992, it is ordered as follows:
1. DER's Motion to Dismiss is granted.

2. The appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

hedimne Woeeltiing

MAXINE WOELFLING v g
Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

G;gwﬁz{% /;4%,,/

ROBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

Tonancs ST FLiRmitad

TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
-Administrative Law Judge
Member

-

RICHARD S. EHMANN -
Administrative Law Judge
Member ’
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DATED: May 8, 1992

cc:

sh

Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
Harrisburg, PA

For the Commonwealth, DER:
Nels J. Taber, Esg.
Central Region

For the Appellants:
Jeffrey W. Stover, Esq.
NOVAK, STOVER & McCARTHY
Bellefonte, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET'
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 : M. DIANE SMI™
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE |

TELECCPRIER 717-783-4738

CONSHOHOCKEN BOROUGH AUTHORITY
V. : EHB Docket No. 91-276-MR

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 8, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS

Robert D. Mvers, Member

Synopsis

DER's refusal to reverse a final decision on Federal grant
participation in a wastewater treatment plant construction project is not an
appealable action. To be timely, an appeal seeking to challenge the final
decision must be filed within the appropriate appeal period fo]]onng that
final decision.

OPINION

This appeal was filed on July 9, 1991 by Conshohocken Borbugh
Authority (Appellant) seeking review of a rejection by the Department of
Environmental Resources (DER) of a request for Federal grant participation
with respect to Change Order No. 10 of Contract No. 17, the Conshohocken
Wastewater Treatment Plant (Grant No. C-421039). On November 20, 1991 DER
filed a Motion to Dismiss the appeal as untimely. Appellant filed Objections
to the Motion on December 20, 1991. | | |

According to its Motion, DER maintains that its fina1‘action on
Appellant's request for Federal grant participatfon for Change Order No. 10

was issued on November 5, 1990. Appellant requested reconsideration of this

615



decision by letters dated February 12 and 21, 1991. DER responded to these
requests by letters dated April 9, 1991,-affirming the November 5, 1990
denial. Informed during a telephone conversation on June 3, 1991 that some
confusion existed regarding the April 9, 1991 letters, DER issued another
letter on June 10, 1991 which reiterated the affirmation of the denial. The
appeal is timely only if this latest Tetter can be viewed as DER's final
action. _DER, of course, contends that it cannot be considered in that mannér;
Appellant argues thét it.can.. _ |

This field was ploughed, disced and thoroughly harrowed by the Board
in Borough of Lewistown v. DER, 1985 EHB 903, and Lansdale Borough v. DER,
1986 EHB 654. We held that DER's_rejetfion of Federal grant participation is
a final, appealable action even if the 1éffer communicating the rejection does
not specifically say so. We held further that a subsequent refusal by DER to
reconsider the rejection is not an appealable action. The soundness of these
decisions has not‘paled with time and govern our disposition of this appeal.

bER‘sVNovember 5, 1990 letter staied that its rejection “constituteé
the Department's final deéision on Federal grant participation specific to
this change order" but did not contain the "notice-of-appea]-rights" language
commonly inserted in DER letters. The omission of this 1angﬁage was held to
be of no consequence in the Lewistown casé. Accordingly, the November 5, 1990
letter constituted DER's final decision. .Appellant's February 12 and 21, 1991
]Etters were sent in response to this final decision - one requesting a |
"re-evaluation" and the other a "reversal of your previous determination.”
DER's April 9, 1991 letters informed Appe]lanté that the November 5, 1990
determination would not be changed. Each letter stated that rejection of
Appellant's reduests “constitutes the‘Departﬁent's final decision on Federal
grant participation specific to this change order" and contained the

"notice-of-appeal-rights" language.
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While the April 9, 1991 letters, on their face, appear to reflect
appealable actions of -DER, they amount to no more than a refusal by DER to
alter its November 5, 1990 action.! According to Lewistown and Lansdale,
such action is not appealable. The same must be said of DER's June 10, 1991
letter, which simply reiterated the substance of the April 9 letters. "To
hold otherwise,”" as the Board observed in Lewistown, supra at 913, "would mean
that DER decisions are never final in that a party who fails to timely appeal
a DER decision can still challenge that decision by requesting DER to
reconsider that decision, and then appealing to this Board DER's refusal to
reconsider the decision.” Or, as the facts of this case show, appealing DER's
clarification of its refusal fOVTeC6£STAér. |

ORDER
AND NOW, this 8th day of May, 1992, it is ordered as follows:
1. DER's Motion to Dismiss is granted.

2. Appellant's appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Hraginy Wotts
MAXINE WOELFLING

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

st Jue

" "ROBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

1 we note that, even if these letters reflected an appealable action,
Appellant's appeal was untimely since it was not filed until July 9, 1991.
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DATED: May 8, 1992

cc:

sh

Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
Harrisburg, PA

For the Commonwealth, DER:
Martha A. Blasberg, Esq.
Southeast Region

For the Appellant:

Francis T. Dennis, Jr., Esq.

Conshohocken, PA
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Administrative Law Judge
Member
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Administrative Law Judge
Member '

' /l EPH N. MACK
( Administrative Law Judge

Member



COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 " M. DIANE SMF
717-787-3483 ) SECRETARY TO THE

TELECCPIER 717-783.4738

NEW HANOVER CORPORATION

v. - i EHB Docket No. 90-225-W
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, _ i |
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES, = : =
NEW HANOVER TOWNSHIP, COUNTY OF . Issued: May 11, 1992

- MONTGOMERY , and'PARADISEvWATCH DOGS -

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
 DEPARTHENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES'
‘MOTION FOR PARTIAL DISMISSAL

“OF NEW HANOVER CORPORATION'S APPEAL

By Maxine WOélijnq
‘Synopsis:-
| A motion to dismiss'portiéns of an appeal as a’reéult of an appellant's"
~ failure to appeal a prévidus Departmenf of Environmehta],Resources' (Department)
action is denied wheré.the Board is'uhablé to determine the date, manner, and
contént of the notice received by the appellant.
OPINION
_'Thiszmatter[Waé initiated with the June 5, 1990, filing of a notice of -
appeal by New Hanover Corpéfatﬁoﬁ"(Corporation) challenging the Department's
May 7, 1990, denial of the Corporation's re-permitting app]iéation for a
municipal waste disposal féci]ity in New Hanerr Township, Montgomery_Counfy.
| The procedural history of this matter is recounted most recently in the
Board's March 21, 1991; opinions granfing the petitions to intervene by the

County of Montgomery (County) and New Hanover Township (Township) and the
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Board's June 19, 1991, opinion denying the Corporation's motion for a
protective order.

Now before the Board foh:disposition is the Department's motion to
dismiss! those portions of thé Corporation’s appeal which challenge the
Counfy's compliance with §513 of the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling, and
Waste Reduction Act, the Act of July 28, 1988, P.L. 556, 53 P.S. §4000.513,
commonly referred to as Act 101.2 The Department argues that the Board is
without jurisdiction to hear’the Corporation’s claims in this regard because
the Corporation faf]ed to file an appeal within 30 days of receiving‘notice,of
the Department’s March 16, 1990, letter to the Couhty approvingyfhe

implementing documents, which notice was allegedly received by the Corporation

via an April 10, 1990, filing with the Commonwealth Court in James Marinari et

al. v. Department of Envirénmenta] Resources, No. 159 M.D. 1989 (Commonwealth
Court filing).3 |

The Corporation’s October 29, 1991, response to the Department’s motion
in large part dwells on its substantive arguments relating to the County’s
compliance with §513 of Act 101. It also incorporates its response to
Jurisdictional arguments set forth in the County’s September 16, 1991, motion

for partial summary judgment, alleging that it never received notice through‘

either the Commonwealth Court filing or publication in the Pennsylvania

Bulletin.

1 This motion was included in a filing captioned, "Objections to New
Hanover Corporation’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and Motion to
Dismiss Portions of Appeal.” OQObviously, the better practice would have been
to file a separate motion. ‘

_ 2 Section 513 of Act 101 requires counties to submit "all executed
orq1naqces, contracts, or other requirements" that are necessary to, inter
alia, implement their approved waste management plans to the Department within
one year of its approval of the plans. This statutory provision does not
address what the Department is to do with these submissions, although it does
enumerate the criteria to judge whether the implementing documents accomplish
their designated purpose. '
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The Corporation was not a party to the Department's actions with regard
to the County plan, so its appeal period must be measured from the date notice

of the Department's action is published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, Lower

Allen Citizens Action Group, Inc. v. Department of Environmental Resources,
119 Pa. Cmwlith. 236, 538 A.2d 1301 (1988), aff'd on reconsideration, __; Pa.
Cmwith. ___, 546 A.2d 1330 (1988). Where the Department does not publish

notice of its action in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, the appeal period runs from

the date the third party otherwise receives actual or constructive notice of

the Department's action, New Hanover Township et al. v. DER and New Hanover

Corporation, EHB Docket No. 88-119-W (Opinion issued July 30, 1991). Because
we must construe this motion in the light most favorable to the Corporation,

Robert L. Snyder et al. v. DER, 1988 EHB 1084, and there is doubt concerning

the manner and date of notice to the Corporation, we must deny the
Department's motion.

The Department's only support for its contention is the Commonwealth
Court filing. The Department makes no mention of publication of notice of

its approval in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, much less provide any affidavit or

other confirmation of any such publication or lack of publication. While the
Corporation responds by stating that the Department did not publish notice of
its approval, it also fails to attach an affidavit confirming this.* Since
there is no evidence of ootice via publication, we must ascertain whether
notice was given through another means. That means of notice is alleged by
the Department to be the Commonwealth Court filing, but it also is

unsatisfactory. The‘Department does not cite us to any specific part of the

4 We have searched the Pennsylvania Bulletin issues in the time period of
the Department's March 16, 1990, letter and have uncovered no notice. While
we are able to take official notice of this, Doreen Smith and Evelyn Fehlberg
v. DER et al., EHB Docket No. 86-523-W (Adjudication issued March 11, 1992),
it is not our responsibility to develop the factual support for a party's
position.
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filing, and we can find only one statement pertinent to this issue. Paragraph
7 of the filing states; “On January 26, 1990, Montgomery County submitted all
of the necessary plan implementation requfrements, pursuant‘to Section 513 of
Act 101, P.S; §4000.513,‘and fhé Department has detefmined this submission to
be comp]ete." The Tetter itseTf is‘ndt attached to the Commonwealth Cburt |
filing. At best, we can con;]qde that the Cgrpqration knew on or about April
10, 1990, that the Department determined the County’s §513ksubmission to be
“complete,” whatevér that meant. Such phrasing 1ogica11y‘imp]ies that the
Department had all the information that was'necessary t6 undertake a review,
not that it had taken a final action with regard to the County’s implementing
documents. We must, df course, resolve this doubt in favor of the Corporation

and, accordingly, enter the following order.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 11lth day of May, 1992, it is ordered that the
Department of Environmental Resources’ motion to dismiss portions of New

Hanover Corporation’s appeal is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

WAXINE WOELFLING

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

DATED: May 11, 1992

cc: For the Commonwealth, DER:
Mary Y. Peck, Esq.
~ Southeastern Region
For New Hanover Corporation:
Paul W. Callahan, Esqg.
FOX, DIFFER, CALLAHAN, SHERIDAN,
O'NEILL & LASHINGER
Norristown, PA
and
Marc D. Jonas, Esq.
SILVERMAN AND JONAS
Norristown, PA
and
Mark A Stevens, Esq.
BALLARD SPAHR ANDREWS & INGERSOLL
Philadelphia, PA '
For New Hanover Township:
Albert J. Stlap, Esq.
Mary Ann Rossi, Esq.
FOX, ROTHSCHILD, O'BRIEN & FRANKEL
Philadelphia, PA
For the County of Montgomery:
Sheryl L. Auerbach, Esq.
DILWORTH, PAXSON, KALISH & KAUFFMAN
Philadelphia, PA
For Paradise Watch Dogs:
John E. Childe, Esq.
HummeIstown, PA

bl
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 ) ’ M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

BRODHEADS PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION :
v. : EHB Docket No. 91-349-F
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES and :
PARADISE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
and POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, :
Permittees, and POCONO MOUNTAIN SCHOOL : Issued: May 12, 1992
DISTRICT, Intervenor :

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION TO LIMIT ISSUES

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member
Synopsis:

A motion to Timit issues filed by the Intervenor is granted. Where
the Department of Environmental Resources previously authorized two sewage
treatment plants to process certain levels of flow, the Appe]]antlmay>not
challenge those flows in a later proceeding where DER has authorized that
certain flows be directed to those two plants, but the total flows processed
at the plants will still be within the previously authorized limits.

OPINION

This is an appeal by the Brodheads Protective Association
(Association) from an action of the Department of Environmental Resources
(DER) dated July 26, 1991 granting a revision to the official sewage
facilities plans of Paradise and Pocono Townships, Monroe County. The
background of this appeal is stated in a separate Opinion (issued on this same

date) regarding the Association's motion for summary judgment, and will not be
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repeated here.

This Opinion and Order addresses a motion to limit issues filed by
Pocono Mountain School District, an intervenor in this proceeding. In its
motion, the School District seeks to exclude from consideration at the hearing
any evidence regarding whether the increased flows ét the Mount Airy Lodge and
Swiftwater treatment plants resulting from the new school bui]ding will cause
degradation of the streams into which these plants discharge.l The School
District contends that the increased f]oWs at the two plants are both within
the amounts which the plants have previously been authorized to discharge
under their National Pb]]utant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits.
Therefore, the School District asserts that the Association's argument
regarding degradation from those flows may not be considered here because it
has already been decided. |

The Association filed a response opposing the School District's
motion. The core of the Association's argument seems to be that the current
proposal to "split" the sewage from the new school between the Mt. Airy and
Swiftwater plants is an interim measure, as evidenced by the safeguqrds which
are built into the plan revision for handling flows in excess of the permitted
capacity of the two p]ants.2 The Association contends that, ultimately, the
Mt. Airy plant will receive all the School District's flow and that the impact
of this increased discharge must be considered in this plan revision.

We agree with the School District that the Association should be
precluded from introducing evidenc; of stream degradation resulting from
increased flows at the treatment plants. The reason for this is obvious; the

Association is merely speculating when it states that all of the School

1 The Mt. Airy Lodge plant discharges into Forest Hills Run; the
Swiftwater p]ant discharges into Swiftwater Creek.

2 These safeguards consist of a plan to transport excess wastewater to a
third treatment plant.
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District’'s sewage will, at some point, be shipped to the Mt. Airy plant. Just
as importantly, if at some point there is a proposal to ship all of the School
District's sewage to the Mt. Airy plant, the Association will have the
opportunity to‘chaﬂlenge_the proposal at that time.3

Accordingly, we will enter the following Order limiting the evidence

at the hearing.

3 As the School District points out in its reply brief, the Association's
response to the School District's request for admissions shows that the
Association admits that the increased flows into the Swiftwater and Mt. Airy
plants are both within those plants' authorized 1imits, and that any proposal
to increase the flows from the plants would require planning approval separate
from DER's approval which is under appeal here. (Association Response to
Intervenor's Request for Admissions, filed April 14, 1992, para. 10, 14.)
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AND NOW, this 12th day of May 1992, it is ordered that:
1) The motion to limit issues filed by Pocono Mountain
School District is granted.
2) The Brodheads Protective Association is precluded from
introduéing evidence regarding the legality or the iﬁpact-of the

flows from the Mt. Airy Lodge and Swiftwater Campus treatment p]anfs.

" ENVIRONMENTAL ’HEAR{NG' BOARD
T onence s F‘w R
TERRKNtE‘JT‘FITZFKTRIUK“"“"
Administrative Law Judge
Member

DATED: May 12, 1992

cc: For the Commonwealth, DER:

Barbara L. Smith, Esq.
Northeast Region

For Appellant:
John E. Childe, Jr., Esq.
Hummelstown, PA

For the Permittee:
Rebecca Sease, Secretary
Paradise Township Board of Supervisors
Cresco, PA

For the Permittee:
Jane Cilurse, Secretary
Pocono" Townsh1p Board of ‘Supervisors
Tannersville, PA

For the Intervenor:

~ Terry R. Bossert, Esq.
Bernard A. ‘Labuskes, Jr., Esq.
MCNEES, WALLACE & NURICK
Harr1sburg, PA

jcp S EEE e

627



ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 g M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 ’ SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

BRODHEADS PROTECTIVE ASSOCIATION
v. :  EHB Docket No. 91-349-F

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES and
PARADISE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS and
POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,

Permittees and .POCONO MOUNTAIN SCHOOL :
DISTRICT, Intervenor : Issued: May 12, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member
Synopsis:

A motion for summary judgment is denied for failure to set out
clearly, in the motion, the alleged undisputed factS. "In addition, the
materials which are cited in the memorandum of law accompanying the motion
fail to establish that there are no material questions of fact.

OPINION

This is ‘an appeal by the Brodheads Protective Association
(Association) from an action of the Department of Environmenta] Resources
(DER) dated July 26, 1991 granting a revision to the official sewage
facilities plans of Paradise and Pocono Townships, Monroe:Counfy. The purpose
of these plan revisions was to provide for the sewage needs of Pocono Mountain
School District, an intervenor in thiprroceeding, which plans to build a new

school building on its Swiftwater Campus. In a nutshell, the plan revisions
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call for treatment of the new building's sewage at two different treatment
plants - the Mt. Airy Lodge plant (which would receive 8,000 gallons of the
13,800 gallons generated per day), and the existing treatment plant on the
Swiftwater Campus (which would receive the remaining 5,800 gallons per day).
There is no dispute between the parties that these additional flows at the two
tréatment plants are within the limits set by their respective National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)‘permits.

This Opinion and Order addresses a motion for summary judgment filed
| by the Association on April 2, 1992. In this motion, the Association
contendé, first, that DER erred in granting‘the pTan revision of Paradise
Township because the Township did not have a sewage faci1ities'p1an,vor did
not have a revised plan.1 Second, the Association contends that DER erred
by failing to consider the future needs of the Townéhip in grénting the
revision. Third, the Association asserts that DER erred by failing to’
consider Sections 4 and 5 of the Clean Streams Law (CSL), Act of June 22,
1937, P.L. 1987, as amended, 35 P.S. §§691.4, 691.5. Along with its motion,
the Association filed a document entitled ”Uhdispufab]é Facfs," and a |
memorandum ' (with six attached exhibité) in support of its motion.

" The School District filed a memorandum in opposition to the
Association’s motion. ' The School District contends that the motion should be
denied because it is not supported by the proper types of material to
establish that there are no matérﬁé1uneétﬁbns‘bf"fact. The School District
also argues that the supporting materials fail to establish the following:

that the Township does not have a sewage facilities plan, that DER failed to

1 Atthough the Association appealed from DER's action with regard to the
plans of both Paradise and Pocono Townships, the Association mentions only the
. Paradise Township plan in its motion for summary judgment. : ’
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consider future needs in granting the plan revision, and that DER failed to
consider Sections 4 and 5 of the CSL, 35 P.S. §§691.4, 691.5.

The Board may grant summary judgment only if the "pleadings,
depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with
the afffdavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material
fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.”
Pa. R.C.P. No. 1035(b). -The evidence must be viewed in a light most favorable

to the non-moving party. Ingram Coal Co. v. DER, 1990 EHB 395. In ruling on

a motion for summary judgment, the Board is simply to determine whether there
are triab]e issues of fact and is not to decide such issues. County of

Schuylkill v. DER, 1990 EHB 1370.

Applying these standards to‘the instant case, the Association’s
motion for summary judgment must be denied. First, the Associatiqn’s motion
is fatally flawed due to the form in which it was fjied, The motion itself is
a scant two pages. The factual allegations in the motion are not tied to
either the statement of “Undisputable Facts” or to the exhibits attached to .
the memorandum of law. As a result, we are forced to refer back and forth
between the various documents to see if there is any evidence to support the
contention that there are no material questions of fact.2 Both thé Board
and the Courts have chided Titigants for failure to properly support motions
for summary judgment, and have denied such motions as a result. County of

Schuylkill, supra, Laspino v. Rizzo, 40 Pa. Commw. 625, 398 A.2d 1069 (1979).

Second, even if we were to overlook the deficiencies in form

described above, it is clear that the Association’s motion lacks merit. With

2 One example of this difficulty is with regard to the Association’s claim
that Paradise Township does not have a sewage facilities plan. We have
- searched the statement of "Undisputable Facts” - in vain - for any evidence to
support this allegation.
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regard’to each of the contentions raised in the motion, the Assbciation has
failed to demonstrate that there are no questions of fact which bar summary
judgment. The Association cites the deposition of DER employee Paul Fosko for
the proposition that Paradise Township does not have a sewage facilities plan;
however, none of the pages which were cited support this proposition. In
fact, Mr. Fosko refers to this plan - which the Association claims does not
exist - at other p]aceé fn(his deposition (See Exhibit-C attached to |
Association’s memorandum of law, pp. 61-62, 81-82). In addition, thefe is no
direct supporf in the c{féd‘materia15'for'the‘pfopositiéh that DER did not
consider the future needs of Paradise Township in acting upon this plan
revision. While it may be possible to read these materials as creating an
inference that DER did not consider future needs, it is also réasdnablevto

draw a contrary inference from them - which precludes us from granting summary

judgment. County of Schuylkill, supra, Helinek V. He]inek, 337 Pa; Super 497,
487 A.2d 369 (1985). Finally, the Association cites no facfua] support
whatsoever for the proposition that DER failed to consider Sectjon$14 and 5 of
the CSL, 35 P.S. §§691.4, 691.5. |

In summary, we find the Association’s motion'1ackihg both in.form and

in substance. ' Accordingly, we enter the following Order.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 12th day of May, 1992, it is ordered that the motion

for summary judgement filed by the Brodheads Protective Association is denied.

DATE: May 12, 1992

cC:

Jjm

For the Commonwealth, DER:

" Barbara L. Smith, Esq.

Northeast Region

For the Appellant:

John E. Childe, Jr., Esq.

Hummelstown, PA

For the Permittee:

Rebecca Sease, Secretary

Paradise Township Board of Supervisors

Cresco, PA . : ' C

For the Permittee:

Jane Cilurse, Secretary

Pocono Township Board of
Supervisors

Tannersville, PA

For the Intervenor:

Terry R. Bossert, Esq.

Bernard A. Labuskes, Jr., Esq.

McNEES, WALLACE & NURICK

Harrisburg, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
: 101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
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717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE B

TELECOPIER 717-783.4738

THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE
CITY OF SCRANTON

V. ' ; “ EHB Docket No. 91-370-MR

'COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 12, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK
OF_JURISDICTION

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis
The 30-day appeal period applicable to a permittee seeking to

challenge conditions in the permit begins on the date the permit is received,
not the date it is published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.
| OPINION
The Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton (Appellant) filed a
- Notice of Appeal on’September 9, 1991 seeking review of a National Pollution
Dischérge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit issued to Appellant by the
Department of Environmental Resources (DER). On December 6, 1991 DER filed a
Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction, contending that the appeal is
untimely. Appellant filed Objections to the Motion on December 26, 1991.
According to allegations in the Motion which have been admitted by
Appellant, the NPDES Permit was issued by DER on July 11, 1991, received by

Appellant . (according to a statement in the Notice of Appeal) on or about July
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25, 1991, and recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds of Lackawanna
County on July 29, 1991. " The issuance of the Permit was published in the
August 10, 1991 edition of the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

The appeal can.be considered timely only if the 30-day appeal period
began to run on August’10, 1991, when the notice was published. 25 Pa. Code
§21.52 (a) provides, in pertinent part that:

Jurisdiction of the Board shall not atiéch‘to an
appeal from an action of [DER] unless the

~appeal...is filed with-the Board within 30 days
after the party appellant has received written
notice of such action or within 30 days after
notice of such action has been published in the
Pennsylvania Bulletin....

We have held that, where a permittee is concerned, the appeal period
begins on the date the permit is received, not on the date of publication in
the Pennsylvania Bulletin: City of Reading v. DER, 1987 EHB 979. Applying
that rationale here, it is apparent that the appeal is untimely and that we

have no jurisdiction to hear it. Since the permit was recorded on July 29,

1991, it obvibus1y had to be received on or prior to that date.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 12th day of May, 1992, it is ordered as follows:
1. DER’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction is granted.

2. The appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Patiny Weeltiing
MAXINE WOELFLING T Y
Administrative Law Judge
Chairman ,

Clowtd Jugpes

ROBERT D. MYERS 4
Administrative Law Judge
Member

TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
Member

Administrative Law Judge
Member

635



DATED: May 12, 1992

cc:

sh

Bureau of Litigation
Library:  Brenda Houck -
Harrisburg, PA

For the Commonwealth, DER:.

Barbara L. Smith, Esgq.

jiortheast Region

For the Appellant:
Arthur J. Rinaldi, Esgq.
RINALDI & RINALDI
Scranton, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
) SUITES THREE FiVE .
HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMITH
717.787.-3483 SECRETARY TO THE 0.
TELECOPIER 717-783-4738 ' '

WESTTOWN SEWER COMPANY
| v. . EHB Docket No. 92-135-E
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA | :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES . : Issued: May 12, 1992
OPINION AND ORDER
SUR TIMELINESS OF APPEAL

~ By: Richard S. Ehmann; Member

Synopsis

Where the records of this Board reflect receipt by the Board of’
Appellant’s Notice Of Appeal thirty-one days after Appellant received the
letter from the Department of Environmental Resources ("DER"), which it .
challenges by appeal, the appeal will be dismissed as untimely:. It is the. -
Board’s records as to the date of an appeal rather than the hand written
notations by the staff at the office of Appellant’s counsel on a fax machine’s
transmittal which.contron on the question . of timeliness.

OPINION

On February 27, 1992, counsel -for Westtown Sewer Company ("Westtown")
received a letter from Joseph Feola of DER responding to counsel’s letter of
January 8, 1992. In Mf.;Feo]a’siletter he advises Westtown of DER’s rejection:
of the proposed management plan Westtown submitted to DER to address an

existing sewage overload in Westtown’s sewerage system.
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On April 1, 1992, the Board received an appeal by Westtown from the
DER action set forth in this letter. Because it appeared that this appeal
might be untimely filed under 25 Pa. Code §21.52(a) and thus the Board might
have nb Jurisdiction over it, on April 6, 1992 we issued Westtown a Rule To
Show Cause why the appeal should not be dismissed as untimely.

On April 24, 1992, Westtown filed Appellant’s Response To Rule To
Show Cause. In this Response Westtown again asserts receipt of the Feola
letter on Febrﬁary 27, 1992, and avers that the last day for the filing of its
appeal is March 30, 1992 and that it "faxed" its Notice Of Appeal to the Board
on that date. Accordingly it conc]udeslits appeal was timely. |

Obviously, under 25 Pa. Code §21.52(a) Westtown’s appeal had to be
filed with this Board within thirty days of its receipt of DER’s letter if we

were to have jurisdiction over it. Rostosky v. Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. -

Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). It is equally obvious that Westtown is
correct when it asserts that this means the appeal had to be filed by March
28, 1992, which is a non-business day so Westtown had until the close of
business on March 30, 1992'(the ne*t'business day) to file this appeal. Where
the "crunch" comes is that Westtown failed to meet the March 30, 1992
deadline. '

The Board’s -records reftect receipt of this Notice Of Appeal on April
1, 1992. They do not show any filing of any type by Westtown on March 30,
1992. | | |

To prove the timely filing of its appeal Westtown offers us a one
page‘docdment bearing its attorney’s name and address and a title of "Fax
Cover Sheet". This page contains a handwritten notation saying that the

Appeal was sent by fax from its counsel to this Board on March 30, 1992 at
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4:00. The date and time are written in ink on the printed page. In addition,
this page has stamped upon it the words "FAX SENT" and, ét a blank space
headed "Comments" in the middie of the page another hand written note saying
"Confirmed Receipt". This page is Exhibit A to Westtown’s response to our
Rule.

The problem with Westtown’s argument that this proves a timely appeal
is that nothing on Exhibit A shows an acknowledgment by this Board of a
successful transmittal on March 30, 1992 of this Notice Of Appeal. The Board
received a Fax Cover Sheet with'wesiioﬁn’sruotice Of- Appeal which is identical
in all respects but two to Exhibit A. The sheet received by this Board does
not contain either the stamped "FAX SENT" or the words "Confirmed Receipt".
Moreover, the Fax Cover Sheet received by the Board was receivéd by the Board
with Westtown’s Notice Of Appeal on April 1, 1992, not March 30, 1992.

The Notice Of Appeal form filed by Westtown states in bold capital
letters:

THIS FORM AND THE CERTIFICATION OF SERVICE MUST BE

RECEIVED BY THE ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD WITHIN 30 DAYS

AFTER YOUR RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF THE ACTION OF THE

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES THAT YOU ARE

APPEALING (emphasis added).
25 Pa. Code §21.52(a) also makes it clear it is the date of filing with the
Board which matters as to jurisdiction.

Obviously, it is the date on which the Board records receipt of the
appeal which controls rather than the’date-written‘on a Fax Cover Sheet by an
Appellant, its counsel or emp]oyeés bf its counsel. To hold otherwise would

not only require us to ignore the plain language of this rule but also would
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mean there would never be any future untimely appeals because"the Appellants
in those appeals would be free to select any filing date and we would be bound
thereby.

As Westtown advances neither further evidence showing why its appeal
was timely nor other argument supporting a contrary ruling, and our records
show the appeal was untimely fi]ed, we must enter the foT]owing order making
this Rule ahsolute and dismissing this appeal.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 12th day of May, 1992, upon consideration of Westtown’s
Response to this Board’s Rule To Show Cause, its Notice Of Appeal and our
docket reflecting when'this appeal was filed with this Board; it is ordered

that our Rule To Show Cause is made absolute and this appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

FViefere 5%4’01’E§f;rgf
MAXINE WOELFLING

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

ROBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

-71:;,~?,‘¢=7? F?;Fi;zkdi‘f
TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK

Administrative Law Judge
Member
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DATED:  May 12, 1992

' ¢c: Bureau of Litigation

o Library: Brenda Houck

. For the Commonwealth, DER:
‘Louise Thompson, Esq.

- - -Southeastern Region

-For Appellant:
‘Robert J. Sugarman, Esq.
Philadelphia, PA

med
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 " M. DIANE SMITH
- - 717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

EDMUND WIKOSKT :
v. :  EHB Docket No. 91-183-MR
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA- :

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES ¢ Issued: May 13, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
MOTION IN LIMINE AND MOTION
FOR A MORE SPECIFIC PRE-HEARING MEMORANDUM

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis

Where legal objections set forth in a pre-hearing memorandum fall
within the scope of objections contained in the Notice of Appeal, DER's Motion
to prohibit the presentation of evidence on those objections will be denied.
DER's Motion will be granted, however, to the extent it seeks to compel
Appellant to identify expert witnesses and provide summaries of their
testimony.

OPINION

On May 7, 1991 Appellant filed a Notice of Appeal from Compliance
Order 91-5-070-N issued by the Department of Environmental Resources (DER) on
March 29, 1991. The Compliance Order cited Appellant fof violations of the
Noncoal Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act, Act of December 19,
1984, P.L. 1093, 52 P.S. §3301 et seq., ordered him to cease mining

immediately and to apply for a license and a "large noncoal mining permit".1

1A “large” permit apparently applies to operations producing 2,000 or
more tons per year.
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In the Notice of Appeal, Appellant objected to DER’s action in broad, general
‘language.  When Appellant filed his pre-hearing memorandum on October 1, 1991,
“he set forth three specific legal objections to DER's inclusion of overburden
in the tonnége calculation.
" On October 16, 1991 DER filed a Motion in Limine and Motion For a
More Specific Pre-Hearing Memorandum. Appellant answered the Motion on
November 5, 1991 and DER replied on November 13, 1991. DER’s Motion, in part,
seeks to brevent'Appe]]ant from presenting evidénce on the.specific objections
set forth in the pre-hearing memorandum, arguing that they are beyohd the
scope of the objections‘contaihed in the Notice of Appeal. Appellant argues
to the contrary. |

Our rules at 25 Pa. Codev§21.51(e) require an appellant to state in
the Notice of Appeal his factual and legal objections to DER’'s action. Any
objection not so stated is waived. Since the proper raising of objections
affects our jurisdictioh, we are not at Tiberfy to excuse an appellant from
these requirements unless good cause is shown:‘Pennsylvanfa Game Commission
v. Commonwealth, Department of Environmental Resources, 97 Pa. Cmwith. 78, 509
A.2d 877 (1986). Good cause is not an.issue here because Appellant insists
that the objections in his pre-hearing memorandum are encompassed within those
fn his Notice of Appeal. Based on the standarﬁ applied by Commonwealth Court
in Croner, Inc. v. Department of Environmental Resources, Pa. Cmwlth.
_____, 589 A.2d 1183 (1991), we agree.

DER’s Motion also complains that Appellant’s pre-hearing memorandum
is defective because the identity of expert witnesses and summaries of their
testimony are not included even though Appellant states an intention-to
present expert testimony. Certainly, DER is entitled to this information

before being required to file its own pre-hearing memorandum.
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| ORDER

AND NOW, this 13th day of May, 1992, it is ordered that DER’s Motion
in Limine and Motion For A More Specific Pre-Hearing Memorandum is granted in
part and denied in part, as follows: |

1. The Motion is denied with respect to the legal objections
contained in Appellant’s pre-heéring memorandum; and

2. The Motion is granted with respect to the identity of expert.
witnesses and summaries of their testimony. Appellant $ha11 sﬁpp]ement his
pre-hearing memorandum, on or before May 29, 1992, by identifying expert
witnesses and .setting forth summaries of their testimony. Failure to do so
will result in an order prohibiting the calling of any such witnesses. DER

shall file its pre-hearing memorandum within fifteen (15) days after Appellant

has filed his supplement.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Ctowtd Juypus

ROBERT D. MYERS 4

Administrative Law Judge
~ Member

DATED: May 13, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
Harrisburg, PA
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Dennis A. Whitaker, Esq.
Central Region
For the Appellants:
Frank J. Muraca, Esgq.

- Dunmore, PA
sb
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMIT
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE E

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

CONCERNED CITIZENS OF EARL TOWNSHIP
AND DR. FRANK J. SZARKO

v. | "+ EHB Docket No. 88-516-MR
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES :  Issued: May 21, 1992
and DELAWARE COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY,:
PERMITTEE :

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT
AND TO LIMIT EVIDENCE

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis

The Board grants partial summary judgment on issues concerning which
a citizens group has not alleged standing. Partial summary judgment is denied
with respect to an individual appellant who owns land in the vicinity of the
landfill through which flow two streams that could be contaminated by the
landfill. In reaching this result the Board considers administrative
finality, jurisdiction, mootness and standing.

OPINION

These consolidated appeals challenge the November 16, 1988 issuance
by the Department of Environmental Resources (DER) of a Solid Waste Management
Permit Modification and a>National Pollution Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) Permit to Delaware County Solid Waste Authority (DCSWA) in connection

with expansion of the Colebrookdale Landfill located in Earl Township, Berks
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County. The remaining appellants are Concerned Citizens of Earl Township
(CCET) and Dr. Frank J. Szarko (Szarko).

Because of the complexity of the issues, discovery has been unusually
extensive and the subject of repeated controversies. Just as a hearing was at
last being scheduled for December 1991, DCSWA filed (on November 20, 1991) a
Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and to Limit Evidence. The Board decided
to entertain the Motion, even though it would force a postponement of the
hearing, in the hope that it would bring about a narrowing of the issues and a
reduction in hearing time. Both~appe11ants responded to the Motion on
December 10, 1991. DCSWA filed replies on December 17 and 20, 1991, and
Szarko filed a Sur-Reply on January 3, 1992.

Despite the hopes of the Board, this exercise in paperwork has
accomplished little in simplifying and expediting the ultimate resolution of
these appeals.

In its Motion DCSWA.identifies 25 issues raised by Szarko and 5
issues raised by CCET. Szarko cautions that he does not necessarily agree
with DCSWA's characterization or numeration of his issues but makes no
addition to the list. Accordingly, we will deal with the 30 issues stated by
DCSQA. It s axiomatic that summary judgment can be rendered only if the
pleadings, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on fi]e,-together with
the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to anyvmateria1
fact and that the moving party (DCSWA) is entitled to judgment as a matter of
law: Pa. R.C.P. 1035(b). We must view the Motion in the light most favorable
to the non-moving parties (CCET and Szarko): Robert C. Penoyer v. DER; 1987
EHB 131.
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Szarko Issues

DCSWA claims that issues 5, 11 and 24 deal with the design of the
~ Landfill approved by DER when it issued permits to DCSWA's predecéssor in 1978
and 1983. Since Szarko filed no appeals from those permit issuances, DCSWA
argues that the Board has no jurisdiction to adjudicate these 3 issues now.
The argument is a correct statement of the law. It is not applicable in this
instance, however, because Szarko's attack on these design features focuses on
the manner in which they affect, or are affected by, the design approved in
the 1988 Permits.l If the integrity of the systems installed pursuant to
the earlier permits will be threatened by the design approved in 1988, or if
the reverse is true, DER may have abused its discretion in issuing the 1988
Permits. Clearly, these are issues that could not have been Titigated until
the 1988 Permits were issued. AccordinQ]y, they are within our jurisdiction
on these'appea]s. |

DCSWA makes another jurisdictional attack - on issues 5, 8, 9, 10,
11, 13, 14, 22 and 25 - based on Szarko's alleged failure to include these
issues in his Notice of Appeal, as amended. Szarko's Notice of Appeal stated
3 specific objections and added: "Other items to be submitted after permits
have been obtained and reviewed." Accompanying the Notice of Appeal was
correspondence documenting Szarko's inability to review the P;rmits. Szarko
filed an Amendment to his appeal on December 5, 1989, incorporating the
grounds for appeal set forth by CCET and by the County of Berks (now withdrawn
as a party) in their Notices of Appeal as well as additional grounds included

in Szarko's deposition of February 9, 1989.

1 The 1988 Permits, 7nter alia, authorize DCSWA to place a new liner over
trash already deposited on top of the liner and underdrain systems installed
pursuant to the earlier permits and to deposit more trash on top of the new
Tiner. This design feature is referred to as "overtopping”.
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A reservation contained in a Notice of Appeal that discovery is
necessary in order to formulate additional grounds for appeal is effective
under 25 Pa. Code §21.51(e): Philadelphia Electhfc Company et al. v. DER et
al., 1990 EHB 1032; Raymark Industries, Inc. et al. v. DER, 1990 EHB 1775.
While Szarkb did not use the word "discovery” in his reservation, he made it
clear that he would have to review DER’'s Permits in order to state additional
grounds for appeal. The examination of documents such as these is discovery:
Pa. R.C.P. 4001(d) and 4009. Therefore, the reservation was effective and the
Amendment to his Notice of Appeal must be considered. |

As noted, Szarko incorporated into his Amendment the grounds for
appeal set forth by Berks County and CCET in théir Notices of Appeal. Berks
County objected to issuance of the Permits primarily because of (1) DER’s
failure to comply with Article I, Sectién 27, of the Pénnsy]vania
Constitution, (2) DER’'s failure to consider past, present and continuing
surface water and groundwater pollution and (3) DER’'s failure to consider:
DCSWA's compliance status under the Solid Waste Management Act (SWMA), Act of
July 7, 1980, P.L. 380, as amended, 35 P.S. §6018.101 et segq.

CCET filed 2 Notices of Appeal, one challenging the Solid Waste
Management Permit Modification and one challenging the NPDES Permit. With
respect to the ldtter, CCET raised (1) DER’s noncompliance with Article I,
Section 27, of the Pennsylvania Constitution and (2) DER’s violation of 33
U.S.C. §13422, 35 P.S. §691.53, and 25 Pa. Code §92.1 et seq., because,
inter alia, of DCSWA’'s unlawful conduct and compliance history. CCET's
gfounds for appeal from the Solid Waste Management Permit Modification are

more numerous. In addition to Article I, Section 27, of the Pennsylvania

2 part of the Clean Water Act (also known as Federal Water Pollution
Control Act), Public Law 92-500, 86 Stat. 816, 33 U.S.C.A. §1251 et seq.

3 part of the Clean Streams Law (CSL), Act of June 22, 1937, P.L. 1987, as
amended, 35 P.S. §691.1 et seq.
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Constitution, CCET asserted violations of (1) 35 P.S. §6018.503(c) and (d)4
because of DCSWA's compliance history, (2) 25 Pa. Code §273.111 and §273.131
dealing with application requirements, (3) 25 Pa. Code §273.251 et seq. and
§273.281 et seq. relating, inter alia, to leachate collection and water
quality monitoring, and (4) 25 Pa. Code §273.231 et seq. relating, inter alia,
to cover, vegetatioh and slope requirements.

Issue 5 deals with an asserted violation of 25 Pa. Code §273.202.
This section is paft of Subchapter C of Chapter 273 which is referenced in 25
Pa. Code §273.131, one of the sections cited by CCET. Issue 8 alleges a
condition violative of 25 Pa. Code §273.241, another section in Subchépter C
of Chapter 273, and is also raised in Berks County’s Notice of Appeal. Issue
9 challenges the integrity of the liner system, governed by 25 Pa. Code
§273.251 et seq., which was cited by CCET and is also part of Subchapter C.
Issue 10 involves a number of regulatory provisions, including 25 Pa. Code "
- §273.255 whicﬁ was cited by CCET. Issue 11 also deals with the integrity of
the liner system and is covered by 25 Pa. Code §273.251 et seq. Issue 13
objects to the erosion and sedimentation control plan, which is governed by 25
Pa. Code §273.151 and also referenced in 25 Pa. Code §273.131.

Issues 14 and 25 involve the NPDES Permit. CCET cited violations of
: 25 Pa. Code §92.1 et seq. While DCSWA's compliance history was specifically
mentioned in connection with the citétion, CCET was careful to indicate that

it was én]y one among other violations of the NPDES regulations. 25 Pa. Code

-§92.31, dealing with effluent limits, comes within the scope of the citation.

The manner in which these grounds forvappeal were stated certainly
satisfies the standard applied by Commonwealth Court in Croner, Inc. v.

Department of Environmental Resources, Pa. Cmwith. , 589 A.2d 1183

4 part of the SWMA, 35 P.S. §6018.101 et seq.
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(1991). Accordingly, they are properly before us. This is not true with
respect to issue 22, however, which simply refers fo "numerous issues which
had not been satisfactorily resolved.” Without at least some indication of
the nature of those issues, they cannot be considered appropriate grounds for
appeal. |
| DCSWA argues that issues 3, 5, 10, 13, 19 and 23 are now moot because

of DER’s issuance of a new Solid Waste Permit and an Earth Disturbance Permit
to DCSWA on December 17, 1990. The Solid Waste Permit is the subject of
another appeal filed by Szarko at Docket No. 91-049-MR. According to DCSWA,
the erosion and sedimentation control measures and groundwater menitoring
program approved in the 1990 Permits replace those in the 1988 Permits,
rendering moot Szarko's issues relating to those aspects of the 1988 Permits.
This includes issues 10, 13, 19 and 23.9 Invaddition, DCSWA asserts that

the alleged perennial stream referred to in issue 5 has now been re-directed,
rendering that fssue moot.

While Szarko denies that any of these 1$sues is moot, he fails to
satisfactorily explain his denial. Apparently, the 1990 Permits authorize
expansion of the Landfill into an area contiguous to that covered by the 1988
Permits. It is possible that some of the drainage and other systems serving
the two areas are fully or partially integrated, but that it not clear to us
at this time. The dispute can be resolved, in our opinion, by conso]idating
the appeals for hearing. We denied Szarko’'s Motion to Consolidate on June 3,
1991 because of our concern that it would delay resolution of the 1988
appeals. Those appeals have not gone to hearing yet, however, and the appeal

at Docket No. 91-049-MR is now ready for hearing. Accordingly, there is merit

5 DCSWA asserts that it also includes issue 3. However, that issue deals
‘with erosion and sedimentation violations existing prior to the 1988 Permits
and not with inadequacies of the erosion and sedimentation measures approved
by the 1988 Permits.
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to consolidating them now. To the extent that the 1990 Permits have mooted
any of the issues, that will become apparent at the hearing.

Szarko’s standing to litigate certain issues is contested by DCSWA.
The Board has held that an appellant must demonstrate standing to prosecute
every issue raised by his appeal: Borough of Glendon v. DER, 1990 EHB 1501.
While Commonwealth Cdurt reversed the Board’'s determination of lack of
standing in that case (No. 18 C.D. 1991, No. 472 C.D. 1991, No. 517 C.D. 1991,
Opinion issued January 28, 1992), it did not question the premiée that
standing must be shown with respect to every issue. We will continue to

impose that requirement.

Szarko maintains that, since the Board has already determined that he
has standing, the subject matter is closed for purposes of this litigation.
The reference is to an Opinion and Order sur Motion to Dismiss Appeal, issued
on January 26, 1990 (1990 EHB 83), in which the Board held that Szarko's
allegations were sufficient to survive the Motion to Dismiss. Szarko's effort
to raise this preliminary ruling to the status of a final decision must fail.
As we said in Philadelphia Electric Company et al. v. DER et al., 1989 EHB
678:

Allegations of standing, of course, may be
sufficient to survive a motion to dismiss but
must be proved ultimately. The remaining members
of the Coalition will be required to submit

. their proof at the hearing on the merits. In the
meantime, the other parties to these appeals will
have the opportunity to probe the allegations by
way of discovery.

If we adjudicated standing on the basis of a]]egétiohs in a pleading,

without giving other parties occasion to probe these allegations or present'
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countering evidence, we would seriously undermine the concepts of fairness on
which the judicial system is based. Needless to say, we cannot agree with
Szarko's argument. | |

DCSWA first attacks Szarko's standing to litigate the NPDES Permit
(issues 14 and 25), pointing out that the discharge point is approximately 1
mile downstream of Szarko’s land on Manatawny Creek. Szarko asserts, however,
that degradation of the stream (because the effluent limits are not sfrict
endugh) will affect the quality of the Manatawny even at his upstream
location. He supports this assertion by an affidavit of Thomas Cahill, P.E.,
an expert in water resources engineering. Cahill’'s affidavit is not
absolutely clear that his predicted decline in the water quality of the
Manatawny will extend upstream as far as Szarko’s land; but, since we must
view DCSWA's Motion in a manner most favorable to Szarko, we will dive Szarko
the benefit of the doubt on this point at this timé. However, we caution him
that his standing depends upon a showing that the waters of the Manatawny will
be degraded at his land.

In so ruling, we reject Szarko’s argument that his status as a
citizen of the Commonwealth, a resident of O1éy Township and an inhabitant
of the Manatawny Creek Qatershed, apart from any other consideration,bgive him .
standing to litigate these Permits. While any of those roles may be a vital
element in proving standing, Szarko must go further and show a substantial,
direct and immediate interest which he seeks to protect: William Penn Parking
Garage, Inc. v. Ciﬁy of Pittsburgh, 464 Pa. 168, 346_A.2d 269 (1975). This
interest must be more than the abstract interest of all citizens in having
others comply with the law: William Penn, supra, and must be in direct danger

of harm caused by the issuance of the Permits.
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Szarko’s interest is tied to the land he owns at the ;onf]uence of
Furnace Run and Manatawny Creek and the dwelling in which he and his family
reside on a portion of the land. That interest must be shown to be in danger
of direct and immediate harm in order for Szarko to have standing to raise
issues 14 and 25, pertaining to the NPDES Permit.

DCSWA also disputes SzarkOfs standing to raise issues 1, 2, 4 to 12,
and 14 to 25, which arise undef the Solid Waste Management Permit
Modification, arguing that Szarko’s only concern is sedimentation. The
rationale supporting this argument unfairly circumscribes Szarko's interest;
While he complained about sediment being deposited at the mouth of Furnace
Run, he also expressed apprehension about the contaminants entering Furnace
Run from the Landfill and degrading the water flowing through his land.
Because of the Tocation of his land, it is apparent that any contamination
that makes its way into either Furnace Run or Manatawny Creek (upstréam of the
confluence with Furnace Run) could have an adverse impact on the.water flowing
through Szarko's land.

_ DCSWA's hydrogeologic expert, Dr. A. A. Fyngaro]i, states in his
affidavit that surface water from the Landfill discharges to Furnace Run and
that groundwater either discharges to Furnace Run or flows “generally toward
and in the direction of Furnace Run and then toward Manatawny Creek.” If this

~is true, then it follows that surface water and grouhdwater contamination
could have an impact on Szarko’s land through which these two sfreams flow.
While Fungaroli opines that "it is extfeme]y unlikely that surface water or
gfoundwater discharges to Furnace Run from the vicinity of the Colebrookdale
Landfill will result in detectable concentrations of contaminants” at Szarko's

land, Dr. John K. Adams, Szarko’s hydrogeiogic expert, disagrees.
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In viewing this dispute in the light most favorab]e to Szarko, we
hold that Szarke has standing to raise issues 1, 2, 4 to'iz} 14 to 21 and 23
to 25. We have aTready ruled that issue 22 cannot be considered.
CCET Issues ’

, of the.S issues raised by CCET, DCSWA recognizeskoniy issue 30 -
odors emanating from the Landfill - as viable. According to DCSWA; CCET has
no standing to raise}the other iseues. CCET correctly peints out- that its
standing is representatienal, based on alleged substantial, direct and
immediate interests of its members. If it is shown that any of its members
has such an interest, CCET will be accorded standing. As with Szarko, CCET
“must sﬁow standing with respect to each issue it elects to litigate: Borough
of Glendon, supra. |

The only information provided us regarding CCET derives from
stateﬁents in its pre-hearing memorandum and assertions in»its Response to
DCSWA’s.Motipn. According to these filings, CCET consists of about 70 members
and has fhe purpose: "to protect‘the‘environment and educate the citizens of‘
Earl Township to maintain and promote an interest in the civic'aﬁd
environmental affairs of the community.” Many CCET members live in close
proximity to the Landfill and are exposed daily to the "stench, litter, hoise,
truck traffic and events” of the Landfill which significantly deteriorate the
quality of 1ffe of these members. Odors can be detected as much as a mile
away from the Landfill, forcing many members to curtail or eliminate outdoor
activities. The value of several members’ hOmes Has been advefse]y affected.

Aftached to CCET’s Response to DCSWA’s.Motion is an affidavit of
Margaret McCloskey who avers that (1) she is a member of CCET, (2) she is
routinely exposed to stench from the Landfill and, at times, is unable to

enjoy the outdoors, (3) the expansion of the Landfill has changed the
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esthetics of the area because, inter alia, of increased truck traffic, and (4)
| she believes the value of her home to have been severely reduced by operations
at the Landfill.

We find nothing in these representations constituting substantial,
direct and immediate interests fn (1) the aquatic characteristics of Furnace
Run (iséue 26), (2) the siltation of Furnace Run (issue 27), (3) the adequacy
of erosion control measures (issue‘28) and (4) the wetlands adjacent to
Furnace Run (issue 29). Accordingly, these issues will be stricken.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 21st day of May, 1992, it is ordered as follows:

1. DCSWA’'s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and to Limit Issues
is granted, in part, and denied, in part, as follows:

(a) The Motion is granted with respect to issues 22, 26, 27, 28
and 29; and |
(b) The Motion is denied with respect to all other issués.

2. The appeal at 91-049-MR is consolidated into the appeals already
consolidated at 88-516-M. No change of caption is necessary.

3. The appeals shall be placed 6n the 1ist of cases to be 'scheduled

for hearing.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Tnatirw Wodlftirg
MAXINE WOELFLING
Administrative Law Judge

Chairman
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RO;;éT D. MYERS 4

Administrative Law Judge
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TERRANCE J.- FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
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RICHARD S. EHMANN
Administrative Law Judge

Member
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMI”
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE

TELECCPIER 717.783-4738

EMPIRE COAL MINING AND DEVELOPMENT, INC.

V. ; EHB Docket No. 90-344-F
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, ;
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 21, 1992
and MT. CARMEL TOWNSHIP SUPERVISORS, : :
Permittee :

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member

Synopsis

A motion to dismiss filed by the Department of Environmental
Resources (DER) is granted. A mine operator lacks standing to appeal DER's
"Order and Modified Closure Plan" issued tb a landfill operator where the
mine operator has hot alleged sufficient facts to show that it has any legal
rights in connection with the area involved in the qiosure plan.

OPINION

This matter involves an appeal brought by Empire Coal Mining and
Development, Inc. (Empire) of a DER order dated July 19, 1990 adopting, and
ordering the landfill operator to implement, a "modified closure plan." DER's
order Was issued to the landfill's owner and operator - the Mount Carmel
Township Supervisors, Northumberland County. (The landfill is located in
Mount Cérme] Township.) Empire operates a strip mine approximately one
hundred and fifty feet from,fhe toe of the 1andfi]1,land claims to possess

rights to both the coal itself under the 60 acre landfili, and to enter upon
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and use the surface as necesséry to remove the coal. In its appeal, Empire
objects to 1anguége in the modified c]bsuré‘plan which, Empire contends,
adversely affects its right to conduct.its mining operation.

This Opinion and Order addresses a motion to dismiss filed by DER.
"In this motion, DER argues, among other things, that Empire lacks standing to
bring this appeal because Empire cannot show that it has any legal rights
regarding the property which is invelved im the modified closure plan. This
argument'ié two-pronged. First, DER contends that Empire cannot show that its
coal rights include the right to use the surface to remove the coal. Second,
DER contends that Empire cannot show that the owner of the surface estate has
granted Empire the right to use the surface.

Empire filed a response oppoSing DER's motion. Empire asserts that
its rights to the coal estate include the right to use the surface without the
permission of the surface owner. In support of its argument that surface

mining rights run with the coal rights for this particu]ar tract of Tland,

Empire cites Mount Carmel R. Co., et al. v. M.A. Hanna Co., 371 Pa. 232, 89
A.éd 508 (1952). Empire further asserts that it does not need a lease from
the surface owner to give it the right to conduct surface mining, because, as
stated above, this right allegedly runs with the coal estate for this tract.
Finally, Empire asserts that DER acted contrary to 25 Pa. Code §273.202(a)(3)
by directing the Townshfp to conduct landfill actfvities on the sffe without
first obtaining an agréement with the owner of coal rights beneath the site -
Empire - to‘provide support.

To have standing, a party must be able to show, among other things,
that it has a substantial, direct, and immediate interest in the SUbjecf

matter of the litigation. William Penn Parking Garage, Inc. v. City of

Pittsburah, 464 Pa. 168, 346 A.2d 269 (1975), South Whitehall Twp. Police
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Service v. South Whitehall Twp., 521 Pa. 82, 555 A.2d 793 (1989). As applied

~ to this case, Empire must be able to show that it has a legal right to use the
surface before we can find that it hés an interest in challenging DER’s action
which mandates landfill closure activities on the surface. We find that
Empire has not alleged sufficient facts to show that it has a legal right to
use the surface; therefore, we conclude that Empire lacks standing to bring
this appeal.

As DER poinfs out, under Pennsylvania law a person who wishes to
conduct surface mining of coal must either: 1) own or lease both the coal
rights and surface rights, or 2) own or lease coal rights which include the

right to employ the surface mining method. Stewart v. Chernicky, 439 Pa. 43,

266 A.2d 259 (1970).

Applying these principles here, it is clear that, firét, Empire does
not have permission from the owner of the surface rights to conduct surface
mining. DER asserts, and Empire does not deny, that while Empire had such‘an
agreement with the surface owner - Susquehanna Coal Company - that this
agreement expired on November 11, 1990. (See, paragraphs 7, 8, 9, and 11 of
DER’s Motion and Empire’s Response). Therefore, whether Empire has any right
to conduct surface mining turns on whether Empire’s coal rights include the
right to conduct surface mining to remove the coal.

Empire has not produced or cited any evidence to support its position
that its coal rights include a right to conduct surface mining. It has not
referred to any document in the chain of title to the coal rights which
supports Empire’s claim of inherent authority to conduct surface mining.
Instead, Empire argues that the inherent right of the owner of the coal rights

in this particu]ar tract to conduct surface mining was upheld in Mount Carme]

R. Co., et al. v. M.A. Hanna Co., 371 Pa. 232, 89 A.2d 508 (1952).
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‘The Board has addressed this argument in a separate appeal by Empire
from DER's denial of Empire’s application for a surface mining permit. In
granting DER's motion for summary judgment in that appeal, the Board stated:

In its Notice of Appeal and Response to DER’s
Motion, Appellant cites Mount Carmel R. Co. et
al. v. M.A. Hanna Co., 371 Pa. 232, 89 A.2d 508
(1952), as upholding Appellant’s right to surface
mine the "Jesse Brooks Tract” without the consent
of the surface owner. [footnote omitted] That
case invoived the right of M.A. Hanna Co. to
surface mine coal beneath a right-of-way owned
and occupied by the railroad. Hanna claimed the
right on the basis of reservations and
restrictions contained in an 1891 document
establishing the right-of-way. Since the grantor
in that document (Hanna's predecessor in title)
owned both the surface and the minerals, legal
principles relating to the severance of the two
estates were specifically stated to be
irrelevant. Whether coal could be removed by
surface mining or had to be removed by deep
mining turned, the Supreme Court said, on “the
interpretation of the words of the document ....
89 A.2d 508 at 510 (italics in original). Their
interpretation of the words found that surface
mining was permissible.

”

How this decision endows Appellant with the right
to engage in surface mining on the Mining Site is
an enigma. We have no certain proof that the
Mining Site is part of the Jesse Brooks Tract.
While the Official Coal Land Lease for Strip
Mining between the County and Appellant indicates
that the mining operation is to be located on the
"Jesse Brooks Tract,” we have no way of knowing
whether this is the same tract as that involved
in the Hanna case. Appellant maintains that we
“must take judicial notice of the fact that there
is only one Jesse Brooks Tract in Northumberland
County since it is an original warrantee or
patent as issued and therefore the portion of the
Jesse Brooks Tract which [Appellant] has the
right to mine” is the same as that involved in-
the Hanna case.

This is certainly not a matter of universal

knowledge; and we are not at liberty to
supplement the record "by conducting a title
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search through any such extended concept of
judicial notice”: Active Amusement Company v.
Zoning Board of Adjustment, 84 Pa. Cmwlith. 538,
479 A.2d 697 at 701 (1984).

Empire Coal Mining and Development, Inc. v. DER, EHB Dkt. No. 91-115-MR

(Opinion and Order issued February 11, 1992, pp. 8-9). There is no reason why
we should reach a different conclusion here; therefore, we find that Empire
has not estab]ished that its coal righté include the right to remove the coal
via the surface mining method.

Finaily, we disagree with Empire’s argumEnt that it has standing
pursuant to 25 Pa; Code'§é53.202(a)(3), which provides that prior to
conducting landfill activities on a site which has underlying coal deposits,
the landfill opefator must (unless he is the owner of the coal rights) obtain
an agreement with the coal owner to provide support. Empire conveniently
neglects to mention that this requirement only applies to areas which were
permitted after April 9, 1988. 25 Pa. Code §273.202(a). DER's order states
(and Empire does not contest this in its notice of appeal) that the Township
Landfill was permitted on November 16, 1983 (order, para. B). According]y,
this section isvinapp]icabie here, and it cannot provide a basis for Empire’s
standing. B

It follows from what we have stated above that Empire has not
established its standing to prosecute this appeal. Accordingly, we will grant

DER's motion to dismiss.

1'Empire also appears to argue that DER has ordered Empire to move its
operations. This is incorrect inasmuch as DER’s order was directed to the
Township, not to Empire (order, para. 2).
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 21st day of May, 1992, it is ordered that the motion to
dismiss filed by the Department of Environmental Resources is granted, and the

above-captioned appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD*

Padiny Woetfing

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman '

-

Administrative Law Judge
Member

'—7:=;auvn4=t:ﬂ'faaiE;BJZézai:

Administrative Law Judge
Member ’

DATED: May 21, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library, Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER: ddinistrative Law Judge
Kurt J. Weist, Esq. - Némber
Central Region
For Appellant:
W. Boyd Hughes, Esq.
HUGHES, NICHOLLS & O'HARA
Scranton, PA
For Permittee: -
Mt. Carmel Township Supervisors
Mt. Carmel, PA

jm

*Board Member Richard S. Ehmann concurs in the result only.
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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LEHIGH TOWNSHIP, WAYNE COUNTY : EHB Docket No. 91-090-W
V. :

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES ¢ Issued: May 22, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR _MOTION TO DISMISS

By Maxine Woelfling, Chairman
Synopsis

A motion to dismiss an appeal of a letter refusing to reconsider a
decision regarding denial of a reimbursement grant and return of monies is
granted. The refusal to reconsider is not an appealable action. 'Aithdugh the
deadline for return of the monies specified in the létfér is appeaiabie,:fhe
appeal must nonetheless be dismissed because the issue was not raised in the
notice of appeal.

OPINION

This matter was initiated with the March 7, 1991, filing of a notice
of appeal by Lehigh Township, Wayne County (Township), seeking review of
letters from the Department of Environmental Resources (Depaftment) dated
January 14, 1991, and February 8, 1991. The letters concerned grants to the |
Township for reimbursement of expenses incurred in administering the

" Pennsylvania Sewage Facilities Act, the Act of January 24, 1966, P.L. (1965)
1535, as amended, 35 P.S. §750.1, et seq. The Board, in an opinion dated

663



September 6, 1991, dismissed the Township’s appeal of the January 14, 1991,
letter as untime]y.1 In another opinion dated November 13, 1991, the Board
denied the Township’s request for leave to appeal nunc pro tunc, rejecting the
Township’s argument that the Department failed to advise it that the January
- 14, 1991, letter was a final action which coqu be appealed to the Board.

On October 31, 1991, the Department filed a motion to dismiss the
Township’s appeal of the Department’s February 8, 1991, letter, contending
that the letter was not an appealable action. The Township responded to the
Department’'s motion on November 14, 1991, alleging that the February 8, 1991,
letter adversely affects the rights of the Township, although appearing to
cbncede that there has been no action or adjudication by the Department in
thiskmatter (Township’s Answer, § 12, 13).2

Actions of the Department are appealable only if they are "adjudica-
tions” within the meaning of the Administrative Agency Law, 2 Pa.C.S.A. §101,
or "actions” as defined at 25 Pa. Code §21.2(a)(1). To fall within either of
these cafegories, the Department’s letter of February 8, 1991, must have some

impact on the Township’s rights and duties. See Pe#ry Brothers Coal Company

v. DER, 1982 EHB 501, M. C. Arnoni Company v. DER, 1989 EHB 27, and James

Buffy and Harry K. Landis, Jr., v. DER, 1990 EHB 1665, at 1692. Applying this

standard to the February 8, 1991, letter, we must conclude that the letter as
it relates to the amount and propriety of reimbursement, is not an appealable
action. |

 The February 8, 1991, letter responds to the Township’'s January 22,
1991, letter which requests the Department to reconsider, inter alia, its

decision to deny the Township’s 1988 reimbursement grant application. The

1 The Township has filed a petition for review of the Board’s decision at
No. 2142 C.D. 1991. ~

2 On the other hand, the Township also appears to érgue that the February
8, 1991, letter was the Department’s first correspondence on the subject of
the grants which could be inferred to be a final action.
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February 8, 1991, letter restates the Department’'s findings as set forth in
its April 24, 1990, and January 14, 1991, Tletters, and again requests the
Township to repay the amount of the 1987 and 1988 reimbursements, less the

amount of the approved 1989 reimbursement.3

The Board’'s recent decision in Conshohocken Borough Authority v. DER,
EHB Docket No. 91-276-MR (Opinion issued May 8, 1992) is on point. There, we
dismissed an appeal of the Department’s refusal to reconsider its decision
disallowing federal grant funding for a treatment plant change order. In
holding that the Department’s refusal to reconsider was not an appealable
action, we stated:

This field was ploughed, disced and thoroughly
harrowed by the Board in Borough of Lewistown v.
DER, 1985 EHB 903, and Lansdale Borough v. DER,
1986 EHB 654. We held that DER’s rejection of
Federal grant participation is a final, appealable
action even if the letter communicating the re-
jection does not specifically say so. We held
further that a subsequent refusal by DER to
reconsider the rejection is not an appealable
action. The soundness of these decisions has not
paled with time and governs our disposition of
this appeal.

* %k Kk Kk Kk

While the April 9, 1991 Tletters, on their
face, appear to reflect appealable actions of
DER, they amount to no more than a refusal by DER
to alter its November 5, 1990 action. According
to Lewistown and Lansdale, such action is not
appealable. The same must be said of DER’'s June
10, 1991 Tletter, which simply reiterated the sub-

3_The following passages from the Department's February 8, 1991, letter
make it clear that the Department was merely restating its earlier position:

The Township was informed in my letter of April 24, 1990
that there would be no reimbursement of the 1988 sewage en-
forcement expenses as recommended in the audit report. We
felt it was not necessary to repeat this in our subsequent
letters, since the decision to not pay on the 1988 expenses
was made and the Township had been informed of it....

We processed the Township's 1989 application for reim-
bursement and advised the Township and your office that the
1989 reimbursement of $8,248.26 would be applied to the re-
payment request of $12,518.57 for 1987. We reguested that a
check for the balance of $4,270.31 be forwarded to my office.
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stance of the April 9 letters. “To hold other-
wise,” as the Board observed in Lewistown, supra
at 913, "would mean that DER decisions are never
final in that a party who fails to timely appeal
a DER decision can still challenge that decision
by requesting DER to reconsider that decision,
and then appealing to this Board DER’'s refusal to
reconsider the decision.” Or, as the facts of
this case show, appealing DER’'s clarification of
its refusal to reconsider.

(footnote omitted)

The letter here, like the letter in Conshohocken, is merely a reiteration of

earlier Department final actions and, as a result, does not constitute an
appealable action. |

There is one aspect of the Department’s letter which does affect the
Township’'s rights - the time specified for return of the moqies owed to the
Department. The last paragraph of the Department’s February 8, 1991, letter
states that a check in the amdunt of $4,270.31, made payable to the Common- -

wealth, should be sent to the Department within 30 days of the receipt of the

letter. (emphasis added). However;.the Township cannot challenge the new
deadline for submitting monies owed to the Department, because it did not

‘raise this particular issue in its notice of appeal. F.A.W. Associates v.

DER, 1990 EHB 1791, 1796-7.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 22nd day of May , 1992, it is ordered that the
Department of Environmental Resources' motion to dismiss Lehigh Township's °

appeal of the Department's February 8, 1991, letter is granted.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
h . w EE' .

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman..

. /
Administrative Law Judge
Member

‘Administrative Law Judge
. Member .

Administrétive Law Judge

Member
- JOSEPH N. MACK _ ,
Administrative Law Judge

S Member :
DATED: May 22, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
~ Barbara L. Smith, Esq.
Northeast Region
For Appellant:
Timothy B. Fisher, Esq..
Gouldsboro, PA -
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD.
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

PARADISE TOWNSHIP CITIZENS : EHB Docket No. 91-152-W
COMMITTEE, INCORPORATED, et al. :
‘ v :

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA e
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 22, 1992
and PARADISE TOWNSHIP, Permittee :

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION TO QUASH AND RULE TO SHOW CAUSE

By Maxine Woelfling, Chairman

Synopsis

A motion to quash is granted. Where the Department fails to publish

notice of an action in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, the appeal period for a
third party runs from the date the party receives actual or constructive
notice of the Department's action. "Constructive notice" is information or
knowledge of a fact imputed by law to a person (although he may not have
actually had it), because he could have discovered the fact by proper
diligence and his situation was such as to requife him to inquire into it.
Actual notice to an attorney will be imputed to the client he represents.
Notice of a plan approval will be imputed‘from an association to the officers
of the association where thé officers had actual notice of where they could |
have discovered that the plan had been approved and their positions in the
association imposed a duty.upoh them to inquire into the matter. The Board
will not disregard a corporate entity and fmpute knowledge from an association
to the corporation under the theory that they are, in fact, one organization

where it is inappropriate to “pierce the corporate veil." Even where a
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corporation's officers refer to the corporation by different names, the Board
will not "pierce the corporate veil" where there is no indication the
corporation invoked corporate status for anything other than legitimate
purposes or that it failed to observe corporate formalities. Notice to the
chairman and secretary of a nonprofit corporation will be imputed to the
corporation, even when the officers received the notice prior to
incorporation.

A rule to show cause why an appeal should not bé dismissed as
dntime]y is made absolute where appellants admit in their response to the rule
that they had notice of the»Department’s action at Teast two years prior to
the filing of their appeal.

Appellants’' request for allowance of an appeal nunc pro tunc is
denied wﬁere the grounds presented relate to the substantive meritskof their
appeal. | |

OPINION

vThis matter was initiated»With the Aprﬁ] 18, 1991, filing of a notice
of appeal by the Paradise Township Citizens Committeé, Incorporated |
(Committee), Reynold Schenke, and Gar]and and Ora Hoover (c611ective1y,
Appellants) seeking review of the Deparfment okahvironmental Resources'
(Department) April 15, 1987, appfova] of a 1974 Sewerage Feasibility Study as
the official plan for Paradise Township, Lancaster County, as‘we11 as a
revision to the official plan to incorporate é sewage treatment plant on
Pequea Creek (collectively, official plan). Appei]ants allege numerous
deficiencies in its preparation, review, and approval. |

The procedural histdry of this méttér is recounted in the Board's
Octobérié, 1991, opinion denying Péradise Township's (Township) motion to
quash for lack of jurisdiction. There, the Townsﬁip's contention that the

appeal was untimely was rejected because it was fmpossib]e for the Board to
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determine whether the Department had published notice in the Pennsylvania
Bulletin of its approval of the Township's official plan. The Board also
noted that it was unable to ascertain the relationship of Appellants herein

and the named appellants in Bobbi Fuller et al. v. DER and Paradise Township

Sewer Authority, 1990 EHB 1726, aff'd at ___ Pa. Cmwlth. ___, 599 A.2d 248

(1991).

The order accompanying the Board's opinion directed the parties to
file various documents tb assist the Board in the resolution of this dispute.
The Department was directed to file an affidavit concerning the publication of

notice of the pTan approval in the Pennsylvania Bulletin. A rule was issued

upon Appellants Reynold Schenke and Garland Hoover to show cause why their
appeals should not be dismissed as untimely in light of their testimony in

Bobbi Fuller. And, all parties were directed to file a memorandum of law

concerning whether knowledge of the plan approval could be imputed from the

appellants in Bobbi Fuller to Appellants herein.

On October 17, 1991, the Department filed the affidavit of Timothy J.
Finnegan, Water Quality Specialist Supervisor, Water Quality Planning Section
of the Southcentral Regional Office. Mr. Finnegan's affidavit indicated that
he searched the files pertaining to the Department's approval of the Township's
official plan and found no evidence that notice of the plan approval was

published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

On October 31, 1991, Appellants Schenke and Hoover responded to the
Board's rule to show cause why their appeals should not be dismissed as
untimely filed. Their response admitted that they did not appeal the plan
approval in 1987 because they did not receive a copy of the approval letter
and the Department did not publish notice of the plan approval. Schenke and
Hoover further admitted that they were aware of the plan approval in 1989, but -

did not appeal it "because they were not aware that they could have" and "they
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believed they had no grounds to appea].“‘ They continuéd by asserting that
because of alleged misrepresentations, the approval of the Lancaster County
Planning Commission (Commission) was fraudulently obtained and, as such,
constituted grounds fofla11oWing their éppea] hunc pfo tunc.

The Appellants filed their memorandum on November 14, 1991. ‘Despite
the Board's express instructions in its October 2, 1991, order, thé Appellants
ﬁever specifically addressed the question of whether notice of the plan
approval could be 1mputed to the Committee. Instead, the Appellants again
‘contended that'they did not file the notice of appeal when first made aware of
the plan approval because they'did not realize the app]iéation containéd
"ﬁis]eadihg or fkaudu]ent"'information.‘ They maintain that the app]icétion
for plan approval was misleading because it contained a 1etfer from the
Commission to the Township stating that the p1an was approved uncoﬁditiona]]y.
AcCording to the Appellants, the approva1‘Was, in fact, only conditfohai; and
the Township had promised to submit more detailed information so that.the |
Commission would possess sufficient information to render a decision.

The Township énd'thé Department filed their memoranda on Ndvember 15,
1991. The Department'argued that the individual appe1]ants had'actﬁa1 notice
and that the Paradise Township Citizens Association (Assoéiafjoh) and ité
officers had notice of_the'b1an;appr0va1 more than 30 days before the presenf
appeal Qas filed and that this notice should be imputed to the Associétion'sv
successor cofporation, the Committee. The Township adopted the same pdsitiqn
but ajso asserted that the infbrmation contained in the application was not
misleading and eyen:if the abp]ication wére mis]eadihg, the'Appe]]antS had to
file an appeal in the 30 day appeal period or petition for an appea1'nunc pfq.
tunc. According to the wanéhip, the fndividua] appe]]ants and the Committée
received notice because fhe Association knew of the plan appr69a1 on June'S,

1990,}when.counse1 for the Association filed its list of intended exhibits
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for the Fuller hearing; because the plan approval was discussed during the
Fuller hearing, June 11-13, 1990; and because the Association hadvaccess to
the minutes of the Township's supervisors' meetings, which minutes
specifically referred to the plan approval. Neither the Départment nor the

Towhship cited any legal authority to support their contentions that knowledge

of the plan approval could be imputed from the appellants in Bobbi Fuller to
the present Appellants.

We will begin our anatysis herezWith'a statement of the obvious - the
Board has no jurisdiction over appeals which are not timely filed. Joseph

Rostosky v. Comm., Dept. of Environmental Resources, 26 Pa. Cmwlith. 478, 364

A.2d 761 (1976). In the case of a third party appeal of a Department action,
as is the case here, the appeal must be filed with the Board within 30 days

after notice of the action has been published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin by

the Department. Lower Allen Citizens Action Group, Inc. v. Dept. of Environ-

mental Resources, 119 Pa. Cmwlth. 236, 538 A.2d 130 (1988), aff'd on

reconsideration, __ Pa. Cnwlth. _ , 546 A.2d 1330 (1988).
Where the Department has not published notice of its action in the

Pennsylvania Bulletin, the 30 day period may be established in two ways. It

may run from the date the third party receives actual notice of the

Department's action, Doreen V. Smith and Evelyn Fehlberg v. DER, Herbert

Kilmer, and Joseph Bendick, EHB Docket No. 86-523-W (Adjudication issued March

11, 1992). Or, it may run from the date the third party receives constructive

notice of the Department's action, New Hanover Township et al. v. DER and New

Hanover Corporation, EHB Docket No. 88-119-W (Opinion issued July 30, 1991).

The permittee in New Hanover Township moved for partial summary judgment
asserting, inter alia, that the third party appellant had failed to file its
appeal of the Department's waiver of permitting requirements under the Dam

Safety and Encroachments Act, the Act of November 26, 1978, P.L. 1375, as
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amended, 32 P.S. §693.1 et seq., in a timely fashion. The Department did not

publish notice of its waiver in the Pennsylvania Bulletin, but New Hanover

Township’s counsel had received actual notice of the wafvef. The Board
jmputed counsel’s actual notice to his client and dismissed New Hanover
Township’s appeal as untimely filed.!

The Department and the Township concede that notice of the approval

was never published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin. (Township’s memorandum of

law, p.3, N.T. 3; Department’s affidavit filed October 17, 1991). Whether the
Appellants filed their appeal within 30 days of receiving notice, therefore,
depends on when they otherwise received actual or constructive notice of the
Department’s action.

In order to ascertain whether the Committee’s appeal was timely, it
is first necessary to describe the relationship of this organization to the

Associjation.

1 We wish to clarify a potential problem arising out of this passage
from New Hanover Township:

Since there are no publication requirements

- for permit waivers, we believe that the appeal
period runs from the date the Township received
actual notice of the waiver, which, in the case
of the February 2, 1987, waiver, was on or about
June 5, 1987, when the Township’s counsel
received notice, a material fact which is not
disputed by the Township. New Hanover Township,
p.9 (emphasis -added)

The problem with this language is that the notice received by the appellants
in New Hanover Township was constructive, not actual. "Actual notice” is
positively proved to have been given to a party directly and personally, or
such as he is presumed to have received personally because the evidence within
his knowledge was sufficient to put him upon inquiry. Black's Law Dictionary,
4th Ed. "Constructive notice," by contrast, is "information or know]edge of a
fact imputed by law to a person (although he may not actually have it),
because he could have discovered the fact by proper diligence, and his
situation was such as to cast upon him the duty of inquiring into it." Id.
Thus, New Hanover Township had constructive notice of the Department's action
by virtue of its attorney's knowledge of it. See p.8, infra.
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The facts are convoluted, but the differences among the parties'
~versions are minimal. The relationship between the Association, party
appellant in Fuller, and the nonprofit corporation here, the Committee, is
close. Reynold Schenke, co-chairman of the Association, is chairman of the
Committee. (Township‘s memorandum of law, Ex. B; N.T. 157). Ora Hoover,
secretafy of the Association, is secretary of the Committee. (Township's
memorandum of law, Ex. B; N.T. 129). Schenke and Mrs. Hoover were also two of
the three incorporators of the Committeg, incorporated on April 16, 1991.
(Township's memorandum of law, Ex. C). Both organizations consist of members
who are potential users of the public sewer system described in the plan
revision or who live in the area of the proposed sewage system and are
concerned with its impact. (Township's memorandum of law, Ex. é, N.T. 129;
Ex. D, N.T. 3).

On June 5, 1990, in response to a pre-hearing order in the Fuller
proceedings, counsel representing the Association filed a fist of exhibits he
intended to introduce at the hearing. The list included "correspondence to
Carl Meshey approving Plan Revision to the Township's Official Sewerage
Plan...." (Township's motion to quash, Ex. F). None of the submissions
accompanying the motions or memorahda indicate that the Department's approval
letter was admitted into evidence, although the contents of the offiéia] plan
approved by the Department were discussed during the Fuller hearing and the
official plan was admitted into evidence. (Township's motion to quash, Ex. G;
N.T. 136). |

Two members of the Association testified in Fuller: Reynolq Schenke,
a co-chairman of the Association, and Garland Hoover, a member of the
Association and husband of Ora Hoover, the Association's’secretary.
(Township's memorandum of law, Ex. B; N.T. 129, 147). During the course of

the Fuller hearings, the members and counsel of the Association referred to
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the organization variously as the Paradise Township Citizens Committee, the
Paradise Township Concerned Citizens Group, and the Concerned Citizens
Committee. (Township’s memorandum of law, Ex. B; N.T. 94, 129, 157, 180). In

proceedings'before the Lancaster County Court of Common Pleas, moreover, Mr.

. 3
Schenke testified as follows:
Q [Frank Mincarelli (Counsel for the Township of

Paradise, the Paradise Township Board of
Supervisors, and Paradise Township Sewer
Authority)]: I get confused because I see
so many names: Paradise Concerned Citizens
Committee, Paradise Township Concerned
Citizens, Paradise Township citizens
Committee, Incorporated.

A [Mr. Schenke]: That is correct. The last one
is correct.

Q Last one is correct. It’'s one organization?
A Correct.

(Township’s memorandum
of law, Ex. D, p.13)

It is clear that the Association had constructive notice of the plan
approval before the Fuller hearing. On June 5, 1990, when counsel for the
Association filed the 1ist of intgnded exhibits, including the letter
approving the plan revision, counse] showed he was aware of the plan approval.
His notice ié imputed to his client, the Association. See 3 P.L.E. Attorneys

§45 and Yeager v. United Natural Gas Company, 197 Super. Ct. 25, 176 A.2d 455

(1961).

The Department and the Township would have us impute notice directly
from the Association to the Committee because, they maintain, the Association
and the Committee are essentially the same entity. As noted earlier in this
opinion, the relationship between the Association and the Committee is close.
Because the Committee is a nonprofit corporation, however, and because

corporations are traditionally regarded as separate entities under the law, we
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can impute notice from the Association to Committee only by disregarding the
Committee’s corporate form or "piercing the corporate veil.”

It is inappropriate to disregard the Comm{ttee’s corporate form here,
however. The Township and the Department contend that a number of facts show
that the Association and the Committee were, in reality, one organization:

(1) Schénke and Ora Hoover were officers in both groups and were two of the
three incorporators of the Committee; (2) both groups consist of members who
are potential users of the pub]ﬁc sewer system or who live in the area and are
concerned with the system’s impact; and (3) Association members and Committee
members referred to their respective groups by various names, some
overlapping, in proceedings before the Court of Common Pleas and before this
Board in Fuller. The fact that the members and officers of the Association
and the Committee are similar does not dictate that we disregard the corporate
entity. The general rule in Pennsylvania is that a corporation shall be

regarded as a separate entity even if its stock is owned entirely by one

person. (College Watercolor Group, Inc. v. William H. Newbauer, Inc., 468 Pa.

103, 360 A.2d 200 (1976); Kaites v. Dept. of Environmental Resources, 108 Pa.

Cmwlth. 267, 529 A.2d 1148 (1987). Thus, even if the Township had shown that
the Association and the Committee consisted of identical members or had the
same officers, the Towﬁship would not have established that the corporate
~entity should be disregarded.

The fact that officers of the Committee sometimes referred to it by
various names does not change the result. Factors which may justify .
disregarding the corporate fprm include undercapitalization, failure to adhere
to corporate formalities, substantial intermingling of corporate and personal

affairs and use of the corporate form to perpetrate a fraud. Department of

Environmental Resources v. Peggs Run Coal Co., 55 Pa. Cmwlth. 312, 423 A.2d

765 (1980); Kaites. There is no indication that the Committee invoked
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corporate status for anything other than legitimate purposes or that it failed
to observe corporate formalities. The fact that the Committee’s officers
sometimes referred to the organizafion by different names is careless,
perhaps, but it certainly does not reflect sufficient disregard of the
corporate entity by the officers and members to justify disregarding the
corporate form.

While the Board will not impute constructive notice from the
Association to the Committee directly, we find it appropriate here to impute
notice from the officers of the Committee to the Committee itself.

Whether notice to officers of a corporation will be imputed to the
corporation itself is a question of the law of agency. As explained later in
this opinion, both Ora Hoover and Reynold Schenke had notice of the plan
approval as officers of the Assoéiation. Because Schenke and Mrs. Hoover did
not form the Committee until April 16, 1991, and because the Township failed
to establish that Mrs. Hoover or Schenke received notice anytime after
incorporation, notice can be imputed to the corporation only if notice
received by its agent before they entefed into the agency is bihding on the
principal. |

Pennsylvania case law on the question is sparse. The Pennsy]vania

Supreme Court held in Houseman v. Girard Mutual Bui]dinq & Loan Association,

81 Pa. 256, 2 W.N.C. 573, 33 L.I. 108 (1876), that notice to an agent received
before the agency relationship existed will not be imputed to the.principa].
No Pennsylvania court appears to have addressed the question this century,
however. The decisions from other jurﬁsdictions conflict on the question of
whether information obtained before a person became an officer or agent will
be imputed to the corporation after he becomes an officer or agent:
Generally, ... notice to, or know]edge of,
corporate officers or agents, in order to be

imputable to the corporation, must have been
received or acquired during the existence of the
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agency and while acting in the particular trans-
action to which the notice or knowledge relates.

- However, according to the better rule and the
decided weight of authority, knowledge “possessed”
by an agent while he or she occupies that
relation and is executing the authority conferred

“upon the agent, as to matters within the scope of
his or her authority, is notice to the principal,
although such knowledge was acquired before the
agency was created....

Fletcher Cyc. Corp. §797 (Perm Ed)

The Second Restatement of Agency subscribes to the latter of the
views outlined above, imputing knowledge of an agent to the principal even if
it was received prior to the agency: "Except for knowledge acquired |
confidentially, the time, p]ace, or manner in which knowledge is acquired by a
servant or other agent is immaterial in determining the liability of his

principal because of it.” Second Restatement of Agency, §276. We agree that

this is the better rule. Were we to hold that notice to officers received
before the corporation was formed could not be imputed to the corporation,
appellants could circumvent the Board’s rules requiring that appeals be timely
filed simply by incorporating within 30 days before they file the appeal.
Turning now tb the individual named Appellants, two 6f them - Garland
Hoover and Reynold Schenke - had actual notice of the plan approval. In
response to the Board’s October 2, 1991, rule to show cause in this matter,
both Hoover and Schenke conceded that they knew of the plan approval in 1989
before explaining the reasons they did not appeal the plan approval at that

time. Furthermore, Mr. Hoover testified in Bobbi Fuller at N.T. 135-1422

regarding sewage facilities planning for both Paradise and Leacock Townships.
He obviously had notice of the plan approval if he was testifying about the

plan. Thus, we must dismiss Schenke’s and Hoover'’s appeals as untimely.

2 We take official notice of this testimony. 1 Pa. Code §35.273 and
Abbruzzese v. Comm., Bd. of Probation and Parole, 105 Pa. Cmwlth. 524 A.2d
1049 (1987).

678



Ora Hoover, meanwhile, had constructive notice of the plan approval.
We established earlier in this opinion that the Association received notice
because its attorney’s knowledge of the plan approval is imputed to the
Association. Ora Hoover received constructive notice of the plan approval by
virtue of her position in the Association. She could have discovered that the
plan had been approved had she been reading the documents the Association’s
attorney filed with the Board. Her position in the Association, moreover,
imposed a duty on her to inquire into the matter. Because the Association’s
attorney had notice of the p]an approval at least by the date of the hearing

in Bobbi Fuller, and because that notice is. imputed to Ora Hoover through the

Association, we must conc]ude that she failed to file her appeal within 30
days of the notice.

One final issue must be addressed. ‘Appe]lants3 have requested that
they be permitted to file this appeal nunc pro tunc. As'grounds for doing so,
they allege that the contents of the plan were misrepresented to the
Commission; that, because of this misrepresentation, the abprova] of the
Commission was not valid; and that the facts relating to this alleged
misrepresentation were not discovered until the deposition of one Michael
Domin of the Commissioh.4 The_bases for allowing an appeal nunc pro tunc

are set forth in Eleanor Jeane Thomas v. DER and Resource Conservation Corp.,

EHB Docket No. 91-526-E (Amended Opinion issued March 30, 1992). What is
présentedvby Appé}]énts here does not fall into any of the recognized grounds.
Rather, the reasoné relate to the merits of Appellants’ claims - namely, that

the Department abused its discretion in approving the official plan. There is

3 It is unclear whether this request related to the Committee or the
individual named Appellants or all the Appellants. We will treat it as
applying to all Appellants.

4 This is contrary to the representations at pp.1-2 of Appellants’ July 8,
1991, memorandum of law submitted in response to the Township’'s motion to
quash, wherein they stated that the information was learned on April 12, 1991,
during a review of Lancaster County Planning Commission records and that the
appeal was filed shortly thereafter. .According to that same memorandum, Mr.
Domin's deposition was taken on May 24, 1991.
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nothing to suggest that this information was hidden from Appellants in either
1987 or 1989 or that they could not have ascertained it as a result of a
search of the Commission files in 1987 or 1989. As a result, we must deny
their request to allow their appeal nunc pro tunc.
ORDER
AND NOW, this 22nd day of May, 1992, it is ordered that:
'1)‘ The Board’'s rule of October 2, 1991, as it pertains to

Garland Hoover and Reynold Schenke, is made absolute and their

appeals are dismissed for lack of jurisdiction;

2) The Township's motion to quash with regard to Ora Hoover and
the Paradise Township Citizens Committee, Inc. is granted and their
appeals are dismissed as untimely; and |

3) The request of Appellants for allowance of their appeal nunc

pro tunc is denied. -

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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STEVEN HAYDU :  EHB Docket No. 92-154-MJ

V.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA _
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: May 29, 1992
and PBS COALS CO., INC., Permittee
OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTION TO DISMISS
OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE
TO STRIKE PART OF APPEAL

By Joseph N. Mack, Member
Synopsis -

The appellant may reserve the right to raise additional issues in his
appeal which are determined through discovery. A]though the appellant
characterizes his appeal as a "skeleton appeal"”, the appeal meets the
requirements of 25 Pa.Code §21.51, and the permittee’s motion to dismiss is
denied.

OPINION

This matter originated as an appeal by Steven Haydu ("Haydu" or "the
appellant") from a Bonding Increment Approval No. 1-00222-56803089;04 issued
to PBS Coals Co., Inc. ("PBS") by the Department of Environmental Resources

("Department”) for Job 24 on S.M.P. 568 03 089 in Shade Township, Somerset
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County on April 13, 1992. The appeal sets out five major objections under
section 3 in paragraphs A through E, as well as paragraph F, a reservation "to
-raise-additional issues as may be determined by discovery prior to hearing".

| The appellant in paragraph F also characterizes his appeal as a
" "skeleton appeal” even though it is a fully fleshed-out appeal with the
exception of the reservation indicated above.

The permittee, PBS, on May 1, 1992 filed a Motion to Dismiss or in
the Alternative to Strike Part of Appeal. The motion takes issue with the
paragraph F reservation as well as the appellant’s characterization of the
appeal as a "skeleton appeal” and asks the Board to dismiss the appeal as a
non-perfected skeleton appeal because it does not comply with the requirements
of 25 Pa.Code §21.51. |

An examination of the subject appeal indicates that the appellant has
satisfied all of the requirements of 25 Pa.Code §21.51 as to caption (25
Pa.Code §21.51(a) and (b)), the appellant’s home address and phone number (25
Pa.Code §21.51(c)), the action of the Department which is being appealed (25
Pa.Code §21.51(d)), and separate numbered paragraphs setting forth the
objections to the action being appealed (25 Pa.Code §21.51(e)). This
constitutes a full appeal Whefhéf or not mistakenly characterized as a
"skeleton appéa]" by the appé]]ant; We therefore hold that the appeal will
not be dismissed for failure to comply with 25 Pa.Code §21.51. | ;

The balance of the motion asks us to strike péragraphvBFTOf‘the |
appeal because it contains a reservation of right to add tbiorﬁéméndlpheiv
appeal after discovery is completed. We have examined this type of_jz

reservation recently in Raymark Industries et al v. Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, DER,'1990 EHB 1775 where we said the fo]]owingff

‘We have acknowledged that where it is alleged
that discovery was necessary to formulate an
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issue and the right to amend was reserved in the
notice of appeal, an opportunity to amend the
" notice of appeal is proper (though 1limited to add
~ the grounds shown to have been "discovered")
~Id. at 1778.

See also NGK Metals Corp. v. DER, 1990 EHB 958, and Commonwealth,

Pennsylvania Game Commission v. Commonwealth, Department of Environmental

Resources, 97 Pa. Cmwlth. 78, 509 A.2d 877 (1986), aff’d on other grounds, 521
Pa. 121,.555 A.2d 812 (1989).

At this stage of the proceedings we are not aware of what discovery by
the appellant may bring to light and, therefore, hold that the appellant may
reserve the right to amend his appeal within the limits 0ut1ined‘in our

Raymark Industries decision, supra. We, therefore, deny PBS’ motion to strike

paragraph 3F of the appeal.
ORDER
AND NOW, this 29th day of May, 1992, the Motion to Dismiss or in the
Alternative to Strike Part of Appeal is denied for the reasons set forth

herein.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Hd" ¢ 'ZC/,{,J___,,. -
Xg; H N. MACK
\dministrative Law Judge

CL ber '

DATED: ~May 29, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck"
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Michael J. Heilman, Esg.
Western Region
For Appellant:
William Gleason Barbin, Esg.
GLEASON, DiFRANCESCO, SHAHADE,

BARBIN & MARKOVITZ

Johnstown, Pa.
For Permittee:
Vincent J. Barbera, Esq.
BARBERA & BARBERA
Somerset, PA

ir
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMIT
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE B

TELECOPIER 717-783.4738

ENVIROTROL, INC. | . EHB Docket No. 91-388-W
v. ’ :

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA o :

DEPARTHENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES . Issued: June 1, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS

By Maxine Woelfling, Chairman

Synopsis

A motion to dismiss an amended notice of appeal is granted. An
appe]]aht must show good cause béfbre the Board wf]] allow if to amend its
nofice of.appeal, even if the appellant included a ciause, purporting to
reserve the right to amend, in the initial notice of appeal. An appellant
does notvhavé good cause Where it'fa{]ed to‘object“toua provision in a permit
to store haiardous waste éfmb]y becauéé:if felt, at fhe timé it filea the
initial appea1; that it»was Qn]ike]y to engage in the conduct the provféion
proscribed. | | | o

OPINION

This matter Was'inftfated by.the Seﬁtember 16, 1991,.fi1ing of a
notice of appeal by Envirotrol, Incorborated (Envirdtfo]), seeking review of
the Department of Environmental Resburces"(Departmeht) fssuance of é permit
to Envirotrol to store hazardous waste at a facility in Beaver Falls, Beaver

County. Envirotrol, a Pennsylvania corporation engaged in the business of
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reactivating spent carbon, challenged Part II, Paragraph N of the permit.
That provision prohibited Envirotrol from sforing spent carbon containing F032
hazardous waste.!

On October 21, 1991, Envirotrol fi1ed an emended notice of appeal,
which incorporated the original notice of appeal's challenge to Section II,
Paragraph N of the permit, banning fhe storage of F032 waste materials. In
addition, however, the amended appeal contested a provision in Section II,
Paragraph B, which prohibits storing waste materials that contain a "loading
of moisture and light volatiles" greater than fifty percent. Envirotrol made
no reference to SectionkII, Paragraph B, or the moisture and volatiles limits,
in the originel appeal.

On February 27, 1992, the Department filed a motion to dismiss
Envirotrol's amended notice of appeal. The Department argues that the Board
lacks jurisdiction over the amended notice of appeal because Envirotrol filed
the amended appeal more than 30 days after receiving notice of the action and
specific objections not set ferth in the notice of aeeea] are waived unless
the appe]fant shows good cause, which, according to the Department, does not
exist here. |

Envirotrol filed objectiens to the motion to dismfss on March 19,
1992." Envirotrol maintains that good cause eXists here‘beeause, in its |
original notice of appeal, it hed expressly reserved the righf to amend ‘and
because "further investigation was neeessary to formulate the object{on to the
restriction on loading of light volatiles and moist&re.” (Envirotrol's
Objections to Motion to Dismiss, { 8). vAccording to Envirotrol, it did not
find the provision prohibiting the storage of waste wifh a loading of moisture

or light volatiles greater than fifty percentbobjectionab1e because the

1 Fo32 hazardous waste is generated from wood-preserving processes
utilizing chlorophenolic formulations. 40 CFR §261. 31(a)
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activated carbon Envirotrol typically treated was bituminous cda]-based.
Well-drained, bituminous-based carbon in aqueous phase applications,
Envirotrol maintains, generally has a moisture content of between forty and
fifty percent by weight. Envirotrol had second thoughts about the limits on
the amount of moisture and volatiles after discovering that a potential
customer, American Norit Cbmpany; Inc. (American Norit), used activated cafbon
produced from lignite coal, instead of the. usual bftumihous variety. Un]ike
bituminous carbons, lignite-based carbon apbarentiy absorbsvfifty-five to H
siXty percent moisture when used in aqueous phase applications. It is unclear
from Envirotrol’s response to the Department’s motion whether it knew American
Norit utilized Tignite-based carbon atrthe time Envirotrol filed the original
notice of appeal or how long after discovering that information Envirotr§1
filed the amended notice of appeal.

Except in‘the case of nunc pro tunc appeals, kjurisdiction of the
Board extends only to appeals f11ed w1th1n 30 days of notice of the
Department’s action. 25 Pa. Code §21,52(a);vRostpsky V. DER 26 Pa. me]th

‘478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). Section 21;51(e) of the Board’'s rules, 25 Pa.,CQde
§21.51(e), meanwhile, prov1des ‘in pertinent part

Any objection not raised by the appeal shall.
be deemed waived, provided that, upon good cause
shown, the Board may agree to hear such objec-
tion or objections. For the purpose of this sub-
section, good cause shall include the necessity
for determining through discovery the basis of
the action from which the appeal is taken.

The Commonwealth Court construed §21.51(e) of the Board’s rules in

Pennsylvania Game Commission v. DER, 97 Pa. Cnwlth. 78, 509 A.2d 877,(1986),
aff’d on other grounds 521 Pa. 121, 555 A.2d 812 (1989), holding that "a
decision to allow a party to amend an appeal to include new grounds, after the

thirty-day period has run, is ana]o@ous to a decision to allow any agency
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appeal nunc pro tunc." 509 A.2d 877 at 885. The Court distinguished appeals
to the Board from civil suits, where leave to amend should be Tiberally
granted. The Board "need not grant the petition [to amend a notice of appeal]
absent a showing of goodﬂcauée.“ 509 A.2d 877 at 886. This Board has
previously held that goodvcaﬁse includes instances of fraud or breakdown in
the operation of the Boafd, or where digcovery was nécessary to formulate

issues and the notice of appeal reserved the righf to amend. Raymark

Industries, Inc., et al. v. DER, 1990 EHB 1775.

| Envirofrol maintains that it can amend its original notice of appeal
betause, as noted above, the appéa] contained 1ahguagé purporting to reserve
Ehvirbtro1's’right to amend. Envirotrol is incorrect, however{, The "righf to
amend" a notice of appeal is not conferred by an appellant upon itself. |
Rathér, it is within the discretion of the Board, in acCordance with the
applicable precedents, to bestow that opportunity upbn‘an appe]Tant. Raimark

Industries, Inc. et v. DER, supra. Even though it included the "right to

amend” clause in its original notice of appeal, therefore, Envirotrol must
demonstrate good cause before the Board will allow it to amend its notice of
éppea]. | o U

Envirotrol asserts that it didvnot, at the time it filed its nofice
of appeal, realize that the moiétureiand volatiles limits in Section II,
Paragraph B, of the permit might'ihterfEre with its plans to receive
lignite-based carbon from American Ndrit. That does not cbhstitute good
cause, however. |

The situation here is not akin to those instances where discovery is
neceSsafy to ferret out additional grounds for appeal. " Indeed, Envirotrol
does not contend that this additional ngunds was ascertained through

discovéky and admits that it did not initially cha]]engé the moisture and
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volatility limits in the permit because it typically accepted only bituminous-
based carbon. Rather, the basis for amending its appeal is potentially
acquiring a customer which utilizes lignite-based carbon. '

The phrase "good cause" {n 25 Pa. Code §21.51(e) does not encompass
any prob]ém whfch may ariéé after the filing of an appeal. Some circumstances
may best be addressed by'other remedies. For instance, where, after the
- issuance of a permit, information becomes available which may have resulted in
.the inclusion of’differEnt‘permit conditions, modification of the permit under
either 25 Pa. Code §270.31(a)(2) or (b)(2) may be the best means to address

such a problem. Othérwise,.fhe Board, in allowing amendment of the notice of
appeal, would be placed in the difficult position of resolving an issue which
was not contemplated by either party during the processing of the permit
application. ‘

ORDER

AND NOW, this 1st day of June, 1992, it is ordered that the
Department’s motion to dismiss Envirotrol’s first amended notice of appeal is

granted. The Board retains jurisdiction over the allegations set forth in

Envirotroi’s notice of appeal filed on September 16, 1991.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Srngirss Wesigiing

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

@MM /ﬂ;@w

ROUBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE.FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMITH
717.787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOA

TELECOPIER 717.783-4738

ROY and MARCIA CUMMINGS, :
RONALD BURR and JOHN and :
RITA C. MILAVEC :
V. : EHB Docket No. 91-494-E
: (Consolidated)
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: June 10, 1992
OPINION AND ORDER
SUR DER’S MOTION TO DISMISS
TWO OF THE THREE CONSOLIDATED APPEALS
By: Richard S. Ehmann, Member | |
Synopsis
The Environmental Hearing Board grants the Department of
Environmental Resources’ (DER) Motion to Dismiss Two of Three Conso1idated
Appeals which asserts that we lack jurisdiction to hear two challenges to
DER’s denial of mine subsidence insurance claims that thé Board of Claims has
transferred to us. Under the Judicial Code at 42 Pa.C.S. §5103, the Board of
Claims was authorized to transfer these matters to us, as the Commonwealth
Court has decided that the Environmental Hearing Board, rather than the Board
of Claims, has jurisdiction over such claims. The date upon which the

transferred actions were commenced before the Board of Claims is beyond the

thirty day period following DER's denials, however, so that we are without

Jurisdiction over them. Rostosky v. Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478,
364 A.2d 761 (1976). Moreover, our exercise of jurisdiction over the

transferred actions as appeals nunc pro tunc is not warranted. See Suburban
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Cable TV Co., Inc. v. Commonwealth, 131 Pa. Cmwlth. 368, 570 A.2d 601 (1990),

affirmed, 527 Pa. 364, 591 A.2d 1054 (1991); Falcon 051 Company, Inc. v. DER,
No. 1960 C.D. 1991 (S]ip'Op; issued May 14, 1992).
OPINION

Beforé the Environmental Hearing Board is DER’s Motion to Dismiss two
of the three appeals consolidated at the instant docket number. The
compTicated procedural history surrounding the appeals is as follows.

On October 9, 1987 Roy and Marcia Cummings (Cummings) anorRona1d-Burr
(Burr) filed separate appeals with the Environmental Hearing Board from DER’s
September 10, 1987 denial of their claim for coverage under their mine
subsidence insorance policies for damages to their Homes on Stonebrook Drive
in Peters Township, Washington County. Cummings' appea1 was assigned EHB
Docket No. 87-435-R, while Burr’s appéa]lwas asSigned EHB Docket No. 87-434-R.
Both Cummings and Burr were represented by the same counsel. 'DER moved to
dismiss both appeals on December 24, 1987 on the basis that jurisdiction over
these coverage deniaTS‘restéd with the Board of Claims rather than the
Environmenta] Hearing Board. |

While DER’s motion was pending, Cummings and Burr cohmenced actions
before tHe Board of C]aims on February 8, 1988 by filing comp]aints seeking
damages from DER under their mine subs1dence insurance po11c1es for the same
property damage involved in the appea1s before the Environmental Hear1ng
Board. The Cummings’ action was assigned Docket No. 1217 and Burrs’ action
was assigned Dockef No. 1218.

OnbAugust 31, 1988, we issued an Order denying DER’s Mofion to
Dismiss, ruling that/tﬁe Environmental Hearing Board, rafher than the Board of

Claims, had jurisdiction to review DER’s denial. See 1988 EHB 749. DER then

692



petitioned to amend our August 31, 1988 Order so as to permit it to take an
interlocutory appeal to‘Commonwealth Court; we granted this request by an
Order dated November 21, 1988. See 1988 EHB 1129. EHB Docket Nos. 87-434-R
and 87—4355R were then consoiidated along with a related appeal (EHB Docket
No. 87-436-R) at EHB Docket No. 87-434-R. Upon Commonwealth Court’s review of
our interlocutory order, the sole question before the Court was whether
jurisdiction over these types of appeéls 1ies with the Board of Claims or with
the Environmental Hearing Board. On April 28, 1989; a panel of the |
Commonwealth Court issued an Opinion in which it deterhined Jjurisdiction
properly rested with the Environmental Hearing Board and remanded to us for

further proceedings. Commonwealth, DER v. Burr, et al., 125 Pa. Cmwlth. 475,

557 A.2d 462 (1989). Based upon the Court’s decision, both Cummings and Burr
filed praecipes to discontinue their actions before the Bbard‘of Claims on May
25, 1989. The Board of Claims denied the praecipes by an Order issued August
2, 1989, however, stating that it had exclusive jurisdiction over contractual
claims against the Commonwealth. DER, rather than Cummings and Burr; then
filed Petitions for Review in the Nature of a Writ of Prohibitibn with the
Commonwealth Court (Nos. 260 M.D. 1989 and 261 M.D. 1989) in an attempt to
force the Board of Claims to discontinue the actions. While DER’s petitions
were pending before Commonwealth Court, Cummings and Burr filed second
praecipes to discontinue their Board of Claims actions which the Board of
Claims struck onvOctober‘18; 1989, stating it would retain jurisdiction "until

an appellate court order is received."!

1 DER’s Petition for Review in the Nature of a Writ of Prohibition was |
addressed to the original jurisdiction, and not the appellate jurisdiction, of
the Commonwealth Court pursuant to 42 Pa.C.S. §761(c).
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On October 18 1989 Cumm1ngs and Burr f11ed praecipes to d1scont1nue
their appea]s before the Env1ronmenta1 Hear1ng Board. We ordered EHB Docket
Nos. 87-435-R and 87-434-R w1thdrawn and the dockets closed and d1scont1nued

) Dur1ng the same ‘period while the Cummings and Burr matters were
pending on the Board of Claims’ docket, two other cases involving challenges
to DER’s denial of mine subsidenee:insunance poticy claims (to‘which Cummtngs
and Burr refer here as "the companion cases") were brought before‘the Board of
C]aims. wnen Raymond andICandia Ph1111ps (Phillips) attempted to discontinue
their action before the Board df Claims, tne Board of C]aims refused to
discontinue the mattersrand instead ruled on the merits of their claim. Uponv
the Phillips’ appea1 to Commonwealth Court from the Board of C1a1ms Orders,
the Court en banc held Jur1sd1ct1on rested with the Env1ronmenta1 Hear1ng
Board‘and not the Board of Claims. The Court accordingly vacated the Board of
Claims’ orders on June 28, 1990 and remanded the Phi]]ips matter, dinecting
the Board of Claims to transfer it to the Env1ronmenta1 Hearing Board.

Ph1111ps V. DER 133 Pa. me]th 598, 577 A.2d 935 (1990), a77ocatur denied,

Pa. , 593 A.2d 424 (1991). In the other matter before the Board of
Claims involving DER’s denia] of a mine subsidence insurance claim, an action
brought by Dale H. and Mary1eona Clapsaddle and Joseph andFStephanie Sopcak,
the Board of Claims refused to transfer the matter to the Environmental
Hearing Boardvun]ess and until a writ of prohibition ordering it to do so was
issued. Upbn a petition for review in the natune of a writ of.prohibttion
filed by the claimants, the Commonwealth Court on June 28, 1990 vacated the |

Board of Claims’ orders and granted the petition, ordering the Board of‘C1aims
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to transfer the matters to the Environmental Hearing Board. (Clapsaddle v.
Commonwealth, Bd. of Claims, 133 Pa. Cmwlth. 605, 577 A.2d 939 (1990),

allocatur denied, _ Pa. __ , 593 A.2d 424 (1991).

On November 13, 1991, the Board of Claims orderéd the Cummings and
Burr actions at Docket Nos. 1217 and 1218 transferred to the Environmental
Hearing Board.? We assigned the Cummings matter EHB Docket No. 91-494-FE and
the Burr matter EHB Docket No. 91-496-E. These matters were then consolidated
at the present docket number. (A third appeal was also consolidated at Docket
No. 91-494-FE but is not relevant to DER’s motion.) On February 27, 1992,
counsel for Cummings and Burr withdrew his appearance; these parties are now
both represented by the same new counse].3 '

In its motion to dismiss filed on April 6, 1992, DER contends the
Board of Claims’ transfer of the Cummings and Burr matters to us Q;s improper

because the Board of Claims lacked authority to transfer the cases. DER’s

motion further argues that we cannot exercise jurisdiction over the

2 The Commonwealth Court docket sheets attached to DER’s Reply as
Appendices 1 and 2 reflect that after issuing a rule to show cause, the
Commonwealth Court dismissed Nos. 260 M.D. 1989 and 261 M.D. 1989 on December
9, 1991. '

3 New counsel for Cummings and Burr contends on their behalf that the
withdrawals were ineffective because appeals were pending in the Clapsaddle
and Phillips matters, removing the Environmental Hearing Board’s ability to
take action in the Cummings and Burr matters because of Pa.R.A.P. 1551(a)(2),
1701(a), and 1736. Pa.R.A.P. 1551(a)(2) states, "No question shall be heard
or considered by the court which was not raised before the government unit
except [qJuestions involving jurisdiction of the government unit over the
subject matter of the adjudication." Pa.R.A.P. 1701(a) provides that a
government unit may no longer proceed in a matter after review of a
quasi-judicial order is sought. Similarly, Pa.R.A.P. 1736(b) provides for an
automatic supersedeas upon the taking of an appeal by certain parties. These
appellate rules were obviously inapplicable to prevent our action in closing
EHB Docket Nos. 87-435-R and 87-434-R, in which there were no pending appeals.
Upon Cummings’ and Burr’s withdrawals of these two appeals, those matters were
ended. See 25 Pa. Code §21.120(e).
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transferred matters because the February 8, 1988 commencement date for the
actions before the Board of Claims was well beyond the fhirty day period for
filing an apbea] From DER’s September 10, 1987 action before the Environmental
Hearing Board under 25 Pa. Code §21.52(a) and that the transfers cannot be
regarded as nunc pro tunc appeals. DER a]térnatﬁve]y asserts thatgthe
doctrine of laches prevents Cummfngs and Burr from briﬁging these claims
before us because of the delay occasioned between their Withdrawa1 of EHB
Docket Nos. 87-435-R and 87-434-R and the Board of Claims’ transfer of the

actions before it to us. DER’s motion must be construed in the 1ight most

favorable to Cummings and Burr. New Hanover Corporation v. DER, et al., EHB
Docket No. 90-225-W (Opinion issued May 11, 1992). o

We disagree with DER’s claim that the Board of Claims lacked
authority to transfer the Cummings and‘Burr'matters to us. Section 5103(a) of
the Judicial Code, 42 Pa. C.S. §5103, dealing with transfer‘of erroneously
filed matter, providés:

(a) General rule.-- If an appeal or other matter is
taken to or brought in a court or magisterial district of
this Commonwealth which does not have jurisdiction of the
appeal or other matter, the court or district justice shall
not quash such appeal or dismiss the matter, but shall
transfer the record thereof to the proper tribunal of this
Commonwealth, where the appeal or other matter shall be
treated as if originally filed in the transferee tribunal
on the date when the appeal or other matter was first filed
in a court or magisterial district of this Commonwealth. A
matter which is within the exclusive jurisdiction of a
court or district justice of this Commonwealth but which is
commenced in any other tribunal of this Commonwealth shall
be transferred by the other tribunal to the proper court or
magisterial district of this Commonwealth where it shall be
treated as if originally filed in the transferee court or
magisterial district of this Commonwealth on the date when
first filed in the other tribunal. ‘
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In Suburban Cable TV Co., Inc. v. Commonwealth, 131 Pa. Cmwlth. 368,

____, 570 A.2d 601, 611 (1990), affirmed, 527 Pa. 364, 591 A.2d 1054 (1991),
the Commonwealth Court en banc stated that pursuant to §5103, "appeals wrongly
filed in a ‘tribunal’ will not be deemed unfiled but will be treated as filed
in the proper court -- if the law designates a court -- as if originally filed
in the transferee court on the date filed 1h the erroneous p]ace.“4 The
circumstances in Suburban Cable involved an appeal to the Court filed by
Warner Cable Corp. of Pittsburgh and Warner Annex Cable Communications, Inc.
(Warner), seeking review of the Board of Finance and Revenue’s dismissal of
Warner’s petition for review on the basis of its untimeliness. Warner’s
petition had erroneously been accepted by the Board of Appeals of the
Department of Revenue for filing, and, when the Board of Appeals discovered
its error and sent Warner’s petition to the Board of Finance and Revenue, the
Board of Finance and Revenue refused to accept jurisdiction or treat it as
timely fﬁ]ed. The Commonwealth Court reversed the decision of the Board of
Finance and Revenue, reasoning that if a court case wrongly filed an
administrative tribunal is to be treated as if cbrrect]y filed, an
administrative proceeding filed with the wrong tribunal should be treated as

if filed in the correct one. Suburban Cable, at , 570 A.2d at 611. The

Court further noted that regardless of whether Warner’s petition with the

4 A "tribunal" is defined by 42 Pa.C.S. §5103(d) as including the Board of
Claims, the Board of Property, the Office Administrator for Arbitration Panels
for Health Care and any other similar agency. We have previously held this

Board to be such a tribunal. Thomas Fahsbender v. DER, 1988 EHB 417. The
cases cited in DER’s brief for the proposition that a tribunal may not
transfer a matter to another tribunal are inapposite for that proposition
since in those cases the Commonwealth Court was construing the language found-
in the pre-amendment version of 42 Pa. C.S. §5103 which -did not contain a

provision for tribunals.
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Board of Finance and Revenue were treated as an allowable transfer, with the
original time of filing preserved, or as the allowance of an appeal. nunc pro
tunc because of the circumstances in that case, Warner’s appeal should be
deemed effective. |

In the present matter, although we believe the Board of Claims had
the authority to transfer the Cummings’ and Burr’s actioné to the
Environmental Hearing Board,5 the date upon which those proceedings were
commenced befqre the Board of Claims, February 8, 1988, fell outside the
thirty day period after Cummings and Burr received notice of DER’s denials, so
that our Jjurisdiction cannot attach to these matters. Rostosky v.
Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. Cmwith. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976); Petromax, Ltd. v.

JER, EHB Docket No. 92-083-E (Opinion issued April 23, 1992).
The response to DER’s motion filed by Cummings and Burr urges us to

treat the transferred matters as appeals nunc pro tunc, citing Suburban Cable,

for the reason that the "procedural morass in these appea1s was not understood
)y either counsel for appellants or that of DER." Although the Commonwealth

ourt in Suburban Cable discussed allowance of an appeal nunc pro tunc as a

yasis for deeming the appeal involved in that case to be effective, the

;ourt’s decision in Falcon Qil Co., Inc. v, DER, No. 1960 C.D. 1991 (Stip Op.
issued May 14, 1992), makes it clear that an appeal nunc pro tunc is only

1\1Towable when there is "fraud or some breakdown" in our procedure or when

‘ Clearly, by its orders in Phillips and Clapsaddle, the Commonwealth Court
as indicated that it is appropriate for the Board of Claims to transfer
hallenges to DER’s denial of mine subsidence insurance claims filed in that

ribunal to the Environmental Hearing Board.
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there exist dnique‘and compe]]ing_factual circumstances establishing a
non-negligent failure to file a timely appeal. Neither of these requisites to
" an appeal nunc pro tunc have been met by Cummings and Burr.

Cummings and Burr contend that othér»considerations such as
equitable and judicial estoppel should prevent DER from objecting to the
transfer of these matters and that were we to dismiss these matters, they will
have been denied their rights to due process of law and equal protectfon under
“both the Pennsylvania and United States Constitutions. These arguménts cannot
succeed, however; since'jurisdictidn can be raised as an issue at any fime,
and the time for taking‘én gpbeal is.jurisdictional and cannot be extended for

the types of a]]egations which Cdmhﬁhgs and Burr raise. Thomas Fitzsimmons v.

DER, 1986 EHB 1190; Falcon Qil, supra at 3. Because Cummings’ and Burr’s
actions were filed with the Board of Claims beyond the thirty day period
following DER’s denials, we muSt grant DER’s motion and dismiss the
transferred actions for lack of‘jurisdiction over them.6

"ORDER
AND NOW, this 10th day of June, 1992 it is ordered that the

Department of Environmental Resources’ Motion to Dismiss Two of Three

Consolidated Appeals for lack of jurisdiction is granted. It is further

6 Cummings and Burr also argue sanctions should be imposed upon DER
pursuant to 25 Pa. Code §21.124 for its failure to file an answer the
complaints transferred from the Board of Claims, and that these sanctions
should consist of not requiring -Cummings and Burr to prove the assertions
contained in their complaints at a merits hearing. Although we are dismissing
these matters for lack of jurisdiction, we note that DER filed answers to
Cummings’ and Burr’s.complaints before the Board of Claims and there was no
need for DER to file answers with the Environmental Hearing Board.
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ordered that the appeals at EHB Docket Nos. 91-494-E are unconsolidated and
the appeals of Roy and Marcia Cummings at 91-494-E and Ronald Burr:at 91-496-F

are dismissed for lack of jurisdiction in the Environmental Hearing Board.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

FVilatere ébégggﬁguu’iay
MAXINE WOELFLING

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

ROBERT D. MYERS = °
Administrative Law Judge
Member
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J H N MACK
inistrative Law Judge
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DATED:  June 10, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation | For Appellant:
Library: Brenda Houck: Reed B. Day, Esq.
For the Commonwealth, DER: ‘Washington, PA

L. Jane Charlton, Esq.
Western Region
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SPANG & COMPANY

V. EHB Docket No. 87-042-E -

0 o8 ¢ 00 oo

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: ' June 16, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER

SUR APPELLANT’S
SECOND PETITION TO REOPEN RECORD

. By: Richard S. Ehmann, Member
Synopsis

The Board denies the appellant’s second petition to reopen the record .
in this reopened appeal after remand of the appeal to us by the Commonwealth
Court. A party cannot delay our adjudication of 'a matter by continuing to-
gather: evidence and by filing successive petitions to reopen the record
pursuant to 1 Pa. Code §35.231 long after a merits hearing has been conducted;
otherwise, the administrative adJud1catory process continues ad 1nf1n1tum
Where appe]]ant did not act with d111gence 1n attempt1ng to put the add1t1ona1:'
data asserted by 1ts second pet1t1on before the Board-vand the Departmentvof
Envirenmenta1 Resources (DER) ab111ty to meet" th1s ev1dence will be |
prejudiced by its lack of an opportun1ty to engage in d1scovery of this new
mater1a]»and expert op1n1on based thereon, we will’ not susta1n the-pet1t1on.

| - OPINION B
Spang and Company (Seang) commenEed-the iﬁstant appeal on.Jenuary 29,

1987 challenging an order issued to it by DER on January 6, 1987 which
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modified Spang’s amended proposal for closure of three lagoons at its
manufacturing faci]itieskin East Butler, Butler County. After the parties
engaged in pre-hearing procedure; é heariﬁg on tﬁé'meFits was held on March 1,
2, and 3, 1989 before former Board member wi11iam A. Roth.

At the hearing, DER bore the burden of proof regarding the propriety
of its‘closure order, which had been based on DER’s determination that Spang’s
lagoons contained hazandous,wastes,. DER offered evidence to show that the
treatment process at Spang’s drill pipe plant at its Manufacturing and Tool -
division produced sludge of a type Tisted as a haiardous wéste and that
this sludge had been discharged to Spang’s 1agoons.1

Prior to our issuance of én adjudicafion of the merits, Spang filed a
Petition to Reopen the Record (first petition) on July 21, 1989, pursuant to 1
Pa. Code §35.231, seeking to introduce certain new evidence regarding
discharges to the lagoons from its Magnetics division. This new evidence
consisted of an analysis of an April 6, 1989 sample of filter cake from the
wastewatér pretreatment facility at Spang’s Magnetics division.v'Spang

subsequently filed a Motion For Hearing on Appellant’s Petition To Reopen the -

1Spang’s facility consisted of a Manufacturing and Tool division and a
Magnetics division. The Manufacturing and Tool division’s drill pipe plant
copper-plated drill pipes and joints, utilizing a copper cyanide solution as
part of the process. The pipes were rinsed in water following plating. This
rinse water, after being treated in treatment tanks in an effort to remove the
free cyanide, was discharged into lagoon A; lagoon A’s effluent discharged to
lagoon B; and lagoon B’s effluent discharged into Bonnie Brook Creek. The
sludge from the bottom of lagoons A and B was removed and stored in lagoon C.
As of April of 1984, Spang modified its treatment system by removing the
sludge accumulated at the bottom of its treatment tanks prior to reaching the
lagoons and by placing this sludge.in drums identified as "Hazardous Waste :
Class F006" for off-site disposal. The principal hazardous component of F006
(a hazardous waste listed on the EPA 1ist at 40 C.F.R. Subpart D) is cyanide.
A more detailed description of the procedural history of this matter is set
forth in our adjudication. See 1990 EHB 308.
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Record and affidavits in support of its first petition and its motion. After
reviewing DER’s responses thereto, we denied Spang’s petition and motion and
issued an adjudication of the merits on March 27, 1990. See 1990 EHB 308.
Upon an appeal by Spang, the Commonwealth Couft, in Spang & Co. v. DER, 140
Pa. Cmwlth. 306, 592 A.2d 815 (1991), reversed our decision on this petition,
stating that we should have app]fed the requirements of the General Rules of
Administrative Practice and Procédure fouhd at 1 Pa. Code §35.231(a) to the
petition. It then determined that Spang’s first petition met this standard
and remanded,the matter to us with‘the direction to grant Spang’s.first
petition. |

Upon Eemand, on January 16, 1992 we held a telephone conference call
with counsel for both parties and issued an Order directing them to cdmp]ete |
all discovery sought in connection wfth the matter for Which the record has
been reopened, i.e., thé April 6, 1989 sample of filter cake, and to file any
amendménts to fheir pre-hearing memoranda necessitated by this discovery and
the Commonwealth Court’s remand order. After engaging in discovefy, DER filed
a Motion to Dismiss Spang's Objecfions.to DER’s Interrogatories and for |
Sanctions and a Motion 1h Limine. On March 17, 1992, Spang filed its Secbnd
Amended Pre—Hearing~Mem6randum, in which it states it inténds to demonstrate
at the reopened merits hearing that»wastewater discharged to its 1agoons prior
to 1988 from the Powdered Metals department and Ferrite department of its
Magnetics division contained the cyanide found in the Tagoons’ sludges. |
Spang’s amended pre—heéring memorandum then Tists several additional documents
which Spang intends to introduce at'the feopenéd hearing. On March 30, 1992,
Spang filed its Supplemental Answérs fo DER’s Interrogatories. DER filed ifs

Amendment to Pre-Hearing Memorandum on March 31, 1992. " We then issued an

703



Order on'Apri1 1, 1992, ruling on DER’s Motion To Dismiss Spang’s Objections
and Motion for Sanctions. | »

By our Opinion and Order dated Anr11‘17, 1992, we gnanted DER’s
Motion in‘ijine in part and denied 1f in part, 1imiting-the evidence to be ;
heard at the reopened merifs hearing to the enalytica1 evidence 1dentiFied.in
Spang’s first petitien and the expert testimony on how that‘evidence re]dtes
to Spang’s pfevjods]y—raised‘contentions.

On April 22, 1992, Spang filed its Re-Answers to DER’s
Interrogatories with us. Spang then fi]ed a Second Petition toxReopen the
Record (second petifion) on May 7, 1992 pursuant to'l Pa. Code §35.231(a). It
followed this Petition with a document captioned "Appellant’s Exhibits to be
Presented at Hearing", filed on May 18, 1992, which in addition to the
exhibits 1isted in its Second Amended Pre~Hearing Memorandum lists still more
exhibits Spang intends to try to introduce at the'reopened hearing.

| Presently before the Board is Spang’s Set_ondPetition.2 Spang seeks
to - have adnitted into the reopened reeord “a]i of the factual data and tne
expert opinions which are set forfh in Spang’s Second Amended Pre?Hearing
Memorandum and attachments thereto and in Spang’s Answers, SuppTementa]

Answers and Reanswers to DER’s Interrogatories,“ based upon its

2 We will review Spang’s second petition according to the standard set
forth in 1 Pa. Code §35.231(a) and not against the standard contained in 25
Pa. Code §21.122, which DER urges us to apply. Although we have issued an
adjudication in this matter and Spang’s second petition was filed after our
issuance of that adjudication, our review of the second petition under 25 Pa.
Code §21.122 would not be proper here because of the Commonwealth Court’s
decision ordering us to reopen the record to hear the evidence advanced in ;
Spang’s first petition. Until we have heard the additional evidence contained
in Spang’s first petition we do not know the impact that evidence will have on
our previously issued decision here. We therefore must treat Spang’s second
petition as if it was filed after the close of the merits hearing but before
an adjudication was issued. ,
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interpretation of the Commonwealth Court Opinion as indicating that all
evidence relevant to showing the'possibi1ity of an alternative, non-hazardous
source of cyanide in the lagoons shouid be entered into the record in this
case. Spang’s second petition alleges thét since the Commonwealth Court
Opinion was issued, Spang has developed considerable factual data and has
retained the services of an expert witness and that these facts and opinions
based thereon could not have been presented at the merits hearing because DER
did not develop its theory that the sole sburce of the cyanide in the Spang
lagoons was the Manufacturing and Tool division’s e]ettrop]ating line until
after the merits hearing.

We do not interﬁret the Commonwealth Court’s Opinion in Spang, supra,
in the fashion urged by Spang. The Codrt took care to note that we have
discretion in deciding whethef to grant a petition uﬁder 1 Pa. Code
§35.231(a), even where the petitioning party has met the standard found in
that regqulation, Citing the petitioning party’s lack of diligence and the‘
prejudice to the opposing party as non-exclusive ekamp]es of matters we may
consider in exercising our discretion. Spang, supra, at __ , 592 A.2d at 820.
At least equally important as these‘factars is the consideration that there
must be a point at which the parties are ﬁo longer engaged in gathering
evidence and seeking its addition to the record so that this Board can render |
its adjudication without being confronted by successive petitions to reopen
the record to introduce yet more evidenée. A pérty cannot delay our’
resolution of a matter by cohtinuihg to generate new evidence after:a merits

hearing has been held. Otherwise, the administrative adjudication process of
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this Board could continue ad 7nfinitum. The Commonwealth Court obviously did
not intend forvits Opinion in §ggng, supra, to bring‘about §uch an absurd
result in this matter. |

The additional evidence asserted by Spéng’s first petition_(wﬁich the
Court considered) related to the‘resu1ts of the April 6, 1989 sample of filter
cake collected shortly after thé merits hearing; The Commonwealth Court noted
that Spang's.supporting affidavit indicated this waétewater stream wa$ |
analyzed in the normal course of Spang’s business and was not analyzed for thé'
purpose of the proceedings before the Board. Spang, supfa at note _;_, 592
A.2d at note 12.

Unlike the data advanced in Spang?s first petition, much of the data
which Spang seeks to introduce into the record through its second petition was
not developed until long after the conclusion of the merits hearing, clearly
demonstrating é lack of di]igence on Spang’s part. At the time when Spang
filed its notice of appeal in 1987, it indicated three source§ of wastewater
which was discharged to its lagoons. It did not a11ege the wastewater from
its Magnetiés division contained any amount of cyanide, but did indicate
treated cyanide was discharged from its Manufactufing and Tool division’s
pipe-plating plant. DER’s pre-hearing Memorandum aséerted that samples
co]iected from the Tagoons’ sludges contained cyanide, one of the
constituents found in the hazardous waste which DER was alleging to be present
in the lagoons. When DER filed its post-hearing brief, it contended that the
only known source of cyanide discharged to the lagoons was Spang’s
pipe-plating plant, based in part on the testimony of Spang’s expert witness,
Timothy Kiester. Spang then filed its first petition to reopen and argued in

its post-hearing brief that the presence of cyanide in its lagoons was
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attributable to wastewater discharges from its Magnetics division. It was for
consideration of the evidence asserted .in Spang’s_first petition, the Apri] 6,
1989 filter cake sample, that this matter was reopened. Néverthe]ess, Spang
has continued to compile other materials and testimony it hopes to use as
evidence and to conduct testing at its Magnetics division in order to buttress
its argument that the Magnetics diviéion was the source of non-hazardous
amounts of cyanide in the lagoons’ s]udgés and, thus, its pipe-plating plant
was not the sole source the cyanide found ﬁn the lagoons, so that DER has not
proven the lagoons contained hazardous wastes discharged from the pipe-p]ating
plant. |

Spang has thus tried to continue to expand the scope of the mattef
for which the Commonwealth Court has reopened this record. Its first petition
and post-hearing brief asserted only the results of the April 6, 1989‘f11ter |
cake sample. Spang’s Second Pre-Hearing Memorandum and its Exhibits to be
Presented at Hearing show Spang seeks tb infroduce evidence going far beyoﬁd
this April 6, 1989 sample, consistiﬁg df analyses of sampling conducted prior
to the heafing‘in 1988 and subsequent to the hearing, as recently as February
of 1992. Also attached to Spéng's Exhibits to be}Presented at Hearing is the
affidavit of Timothy Kejster, sworn on March 13, 1992. In his affidavit, Mr.
Keister state§ that he was retained by Spang in January‘of 1990 to analyze |
Spang’s'scrapped ferrites and that he detected trace quantities of tyanide in
those materia]svin February of 1990. Keister further states fhat Spang
retained his services after the Commonwealth Court’s remand so that he could

analyze Spang’s ferrite manufacturing process, including its raw materials.
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He a]sd*indicates that he did not conduct an in-depth investigation of the
Powder Core Manufacturing brocess’because it is a.recognizéd generator of
trace quantities of cyanide. |

In its Second Amended Pre-Hearing Memorandum, Spang states that the
operationsAand raw materials to produce powdered metals powder cores at its
facility have been essentially unchangéd since 1958, and the processes and raw
materials used to produce ferrites at its facility have been essentially
unchanged since 1974, when ferrites were added to Spang’s product line. Even
if we accept'Spang’s argument that DER did not develop its "sole source"
theory until after the merits hearing, it fails to explain why Spang did not
include data pre-dating the merits hearing in its first petition, and instead
delayed until after the close of discovery regarding the information
addressed by its first petition to attempt to bring this "new" information
before the Board.3

Likewise, Spang’s second petition offers no explanation for
undertaking an investigation in 1992 of whether the wastewaters from its
Magnetics division contained cyanide which was discharged to the lagoons,
Tong after it was aware that the source of the cyanide in its lagoons was at
issue. | |

DER alleges in its verified Response that the first time that DER
learned that Spang might be'developing new evidence for the reopened Merits
hearing was from the depositfon testimony of Spang’s expert witness, Timothy

(eister, given on February 20, 1992, at which Mr. Keister indicated that .

3Some of the documents listed in Spang’é Exhibits to be Presented at
{earing were included in its Re-Answers to DER’s Interrogatories, but those
e-Answers were not filed until April 22, 1992.
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during the week prior to the deposition, he had bequn to develop additional
evidence solely for purposes of the reopened merits hearing, including
conducting additional analyses of samples of filter cake and of various raw
materials at Spang’s facilities. DER’s response further alleges that Keister
could not testify as to whether the information to be derived from the
February 1992 sample analyses would affect his expert opinion since he had not
yet obtained the resd]ts (and obviously had formed no expert obinion based on
them.) As is pointed out by DER, Spang had not disclosed in the conference
call among the Board and the attorheys for the parties held on January 16,
1992 for the purpose of setting the discovery schedule that it intended to
gather any such additional evidence for purposes of the reopened merits
hearing.

While the additional evidence Spang desires to make part of.the
record may have relevancy to its theory of the case, Spang’s é]ear-1éék of
diligence in collecting this additional data (which in volume and content is
substantially beyond that éddressed in its first petition) is not addressed or
explained by Spang’s second petition. Moreover, were we to'grant Spang’s
second‘petition, allowing Spang to introduce this additional factual data and
expert opinion would work to DER’s prejudice, since DER has had no opportunity
to undertake discovery of this new material and expert opinion based thereon,
let alone prepare rebuttal thereto. As we have previously ihdicated, this

Board disfavors "trial by ambush." Midway Sewerage Authority v. DER, 1990 EHB

1554. We accordingly deny Spang’s second petition to reopen in accordance

with the foregoing Opinion and enter the fo]]owing Order.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 16th day of June, 1992, it is ordered that Spang’s

Second Petition to Reopen Record is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Administrative Law Judge
Member

DATED: June 16, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation

Library: Brenda Houck ,

For the Commonwealth, DER:
George Jugovic, Jr., Esq.
Western Region

For Appellant: '
Ronald L. Kuis, Esq.
Pittsburgh, PA '

med
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ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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RON’S AUTO SERVICE

v. EHB Docket No. 91-207-E

s o6 66 06 o

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: June 17, 1992

ADJUDICATION

By Richard S. Ehmann, Member
Synopsis

A motion for directed verdict filed in an appeal to this Board is
only proper at the close of the presentation of the evidence and is reviewed
based upon all of the evidence presented by the parties. It is no defense
to a motion for directed verdict, as opposed to a motion for non-suit, for DEl
to argue that it has ﬁresented a.prima facie case or that there are disputes
between the parties a$ to material facts.

The presumption of Tiability of an owner/operator of
underground gasol ine stbrage tanks found in Section 1311 of the Storage Tank
and Spill Prevention Act applies to the owner of underground gasoline storage
tapks located 30 feet from gasoline contaminated subsufface soils, in an
m’yappea]_from an order to retain a consultant to study and report on both the

 gxtent of contamination and proposals to clean it up. Where the legislature

explicitly recognizes the need for prompt cleanups of contamination incidents
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and empowers DER to issue orders’regarding cleanups and orders which will aid
in enforcing the Act, ample authority exists for issuance of DER’s Order to
this gasoline service $tation owner/operator. |
\ Background

On Apri] 22, 1991, DER issued Ron’s Auto Service ("Ron’s") an
administrative order to hire a consu1tant‘to fully investigate and develop any
response to the gasoline found in a sump in the basement of the bank branéh
adjacent to the retail gasoline service station operated by Ron’s in West
Middlesex Borough, Mercer County. DER’s Order recites that it is issued
pursuant to Sections 1302, 1304 and 1309 of the Storage Tank and Spill
Prevention Act ("Spill Act"), the Act of July 6, 1989, P.L. 169, No. 32, 35
P.S. §§6021.1302, 6021.1304 and 6021.1309. It also asserts it is issued
pursuant to the authority found in Sections 5, 316, 402, 501 and 610 of the
“Clean Streams Law, the Act of June 22, 1937, P.L. 1987, as amended, 35 P.S.
§§691.5, 691.316, 691.402, 691.501 and 691.610 and Section 1917-A of the
Administrative Code of 1929, the Act of April 9,_1929, P.L. 177, hs amended,
71 P.S. §510-17.

On May 22, 1991 we received Ron’s appeal from that order. Thereafter,
the parties conducted T1imited discovery and filed their respective Pre-Hearing
‘Memoranda. After the filing of the parties’ Joint Stipulation and on December
18, 1991 and December 19, 1991, the Board conducted the hearings on the merits
of the issues raised in this appeal. Thereafter, as ordered, DER filed its
Post-Hearing Brief. In response, Ron’s filed not just a responding

Post-Hearing Brief but a Motion For Directed Verdict and supporting Brief. On
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April 10, 1992, DER filed its Motion In Opposition To Appe]]ant’deotion For
Directed Verdict and supporting Brief.

A transcript of the hearing in this appeal of 197lpage$, 3 Exhibits
and the parties’ Joint Stipulation constitute the factual record. After a
full and complete review of the record we make the findings of fact set forth
below, rule on the merits of the Motion For Directed Verdict and adjudicate
the merits of Ron’s Appeal.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Appellant is Ron’s, owned and operated by Ronald E. Holt.

Roh’s is located at Main and Erie Streets in West Middlesex Borough, Mercer
County. (Ron’s Not ice Of Appeal)

2. Appe11ee is DER, which is the agency of ‘the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania authorized to administer the Clean Streams Law, supra, and the
Spi]T Act, supra. (DER’s Order attaéhed to Ron’s Notice Of Appeal)

3. Ronald E. Holt took title to this property in a deed from Quaker
State Oil1 Refining Corporation dated June 29, 1982. (R-1)!

| 4. At Ron’s, there are two gasoline pumping islands and an
automotive service area located in bays ih‘the service station’s garage
building. (T-13)

| 5. As of 1991, Ron’s had four underground storage tanks at the

property, three of which were for gasoline and fhe fourth for used oil. (T-12)

1 "R-_;" references an Exhibit offered by Ron’s. "C-_" is an exhibit
offered by DER and "T-__ " references a page citation in the hearing’s
transcript. :
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At a point in the year preceding DER’s involvement with the Bank and Roh’s,
the tank used to store regular gasoline had been taken out of service because
of possible problems. (T-12, 142) o I |

6. On March 25, 1991, a representative of First,Nationa]'Bank of
Mercer. contacted DER about qaso]ine fumes in the basement of its branch bank
in West Middlesex. (T-11-12) | | -

7. Susan Vanderhoof ("Vanderhoof"), a DER Water Quality Specialist
dealing with underground storage tans and groundwater contamination’
incidents, was sent to investigate. In the course of her employment by DER
she has inspected about 150rsifes with lTeaking storage tanks. (T-9, 10, 12)

8. Upon reaching the bank, Vanderhoof went to its.basement where
there were strong gasoline fumes, with the strongest fumes found at a
dewatering sump. (C-1; T-12) The sump is an 18-inch diameter pipe located 12
feet below the earth’s surface with a pump 1n‘it which extracts groundwater to
prevent its infiltration into the basement. (T-94, 101)

9. While at the bank, Vanderhoof used a microtip meter to confirm
the existence of an ionizing compound in the bank’s basement which, from the
smell, she assumed was gasoline. (T-13, 17)

10. After collecting this sample, Vanderhoof went next door to Ronfs
to talk to Ronald E. Holt. (T-13) Ron’s underground gaso1ine storage tanks
are located about 20 to 30 feet horijzontally across the ground’s surface from
the sump in the bank’s basement. (T-14)

11. The sample collected from the 1iquids within the bénk’s sump on

March 25, 1991 was taken from the top several inches of the liquid in the
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sump. Vanderhoof cannot say how deep the sump is because it had liquid in it.
(T-24) |

12. The bank installed the sump about a week before Vanderhoof’s
inspection to keep watér from infi]trating into the building’s basement. The
pump in the sump connects by pipe directly to the storm sewer. (T-12-14,
26-28; C-1)

13. There is no place between the sump and the storm sewer in the
sﬁmp pump’s pfping to collect a sample of what i§ pumped out. The storm sewer
discharges to the stream at the bottom of the hill. {T-28)

14. No samples were taken of any discharge to this stream or of
the storm sewer’s content and none were taken at Ron’s. (T-23-24, 29)

15. Vanderhoof could not tell the sump’s age by Tooking at it; her
information on its newness came from a bank employee. (T-4Q—50)

\ 16. After the completion of her inspectibn, Vanderhdof prepared the
report of the inspection which is Exhibit C-1. (T-15)

17. There are no other gas stations in the immediaté vicinity of the
bank and Ron’s at present (T-21), but, according to Holt, at some point in
time in the past there were retail gasoline sales at a building across the
street which is now a drug store and at locations about 1,000 feet north and
1,000 feet south of Ron’s stétion (T-129). Ronald E. Holt does not know if
the gasoline tanks at those locations were removed or not. (T-129)

| 18. The’u1travioletvané1ysis of the sample collected by VandéFhoof

from this sump shows there is gasoline in this sample, according to
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DER’s Sherr1 Trometter ("Trometter"), who the part1es st1pu1ated was an expert
in 1aboratory analytical procedures (T-58-59, 63- 64)

19. The sample’s analysis showed it contained approximate]y.lGO parts
pf gaso]ine per m111f0n parts of Water.. However, becauée the\sample was not
ana}yzed to the tenths of a milliliter of vo]ume'of the sampTe, it cou1d‘not
be more accurate1y ana]yzed as to the parts per million (ppm)lof gasoline.
(C-2; T-75-76)

| 20. On December 12,‘1991, Vanderhoof returhed to the bank and Ron’s.
Again, she encountered strong fumes in the bank’s basement. ’In the sump there
were globules of a black material floating on the surface of the water in fhe
sump. Vanderhoof collected a sample of the>sump’s cohtents during this
December visit, too. (T>18) |

21.  Vanderhoof has no samp]es show1ng pollution of the stream at the
~point where the storm sewer d1scharges, but states the gasoline mixed w1th
vwater fn the sump‘would be pollutional. (T—27;29) Vahderhoof has not visited
the location where the sewer discharges to the stream. (T-29)

_ 22. Vanderhoof does not know if the water at the sdmp is a spring or
not. (1-36) |

>23.. Don Hegberg is employed by DER as a hydrogeo]og1st {T-81) but has
never- conducted a groundwater-study for BER, a1though on DER’s behalf he has
rev1ewed ‘studies done by others. (T-85) He has never conducted a

hydrogeologic study to determine the source of contamination. (7-86)
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24. The topography of the area around Ron’s and the bank is generally
flat with a slight slope from Ron’s toward the bank and from the bank to the
southwest toward the Shenango River. (T-93)

25. Generally topograbhy indicates the groundwater flow’s direction,
i.e.; it f011ows the slope of the topography. (T-93)

26. By operation, the sump’s pump may create a zone of influence where
it draws groundwater and contaminants toward it. (T7-94) The bank’s sump pump
would draw in groundwater and contaminants from the tank area at Ron’s. (T-97)

27. Groundwater in this area moves from”£gé‘prdpért;von which“Ron’s.
is located to the bank’s Tand and then toward the river (T7-95). In the
vicinity of Ron’s and the bank, though Hegberg did not look for other sources,
he believes that Ron’s tanks are the mosf probable source of this gasoline.
(T-97-98)

28. Hegberg did not conduct a hydrogeologic investigation of
groundwatek flow beneath this area and did not check DER’s files to see if one
had been done for this area by others; (T-99-100) Other than looking at the
surface and at the sump, he conducted no other investigation. He dug no pits
and did not locate the depth in the ground of the upper most aquifer.

29, Hegberg never checked to see if there were other storage tanks
upgradient of those at Ron’s because others are supposed to do that. (T-109)

30. In Hegberg’s opinion, the aquifer involved in the situatidn here

is most 1ikely an unconfined aquifer, i.e., there is no confining impermeable

layer above it to prevent surface water infiltration. (T-104-105)
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31. How long gasoline will stay in the groundwater and how far it
will travel varies with site conditions at each site and the subeurface soil’s
permeability. (T-107, 115) | | |

32. To Hegberg, the gasoline in the eank’s sump Wes very eungent and
between his March and December v%sits to the sump, the sump?s contents appear
to have worsened in terms of contamination. (T7-108, 114) |

33. Ronald E. Helt keeps a record of all of the gas he sells, as
required by 1aw. He does this by using a calibrated stick which is lowered
into the fank‘to‘measure volume, and by reading the volume sold on his pumps
and comparing the two to see if there 1s’any Toss. (T-129-132) His
comparisons of these records shows no loss of product at Ron’s, but
temperature,'atmosphere and other conditions impact oﬁ the accuracy of stick
readings. (T-132-133) |

34. There was a possible prob]emAwith the regular gas tank which
caused Ron’s to take it out of sefvice in April of 1991. (T-141-142) |

| 35. In the 1ast half of the 1950's, Wessex Corporation (a generai
contractor), was hired to build the current bui1eing housing this branch of
fhe bank. (T—160, 164)

36. When Wessex excavated the foundation hole for the ﬁew bank,
geso1fne ram into it from the side and bottom, filling the hole and
necessitatfng evacuation of people from surfounding buildings. (T-160-161,

168-172)
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37. The soil in the bank’s excavation was sandy (T-168) and there w:
suffiéient gasoline and water in the foundation hole to require installation
and use of an oil separator in draining the excavation. (T-161, 170)

38. Over the advice of Wessex not to build on this site because of
this incident, the bank decided to have the building completed. Wessex
completed it in 1959.‘(T-162-164) As completed, the building had additiona]
features built on it to minimize problems with any gasoline remaining after
Wessex pumped the pit out,-and checks by Emil Koledin of Wessex for six to
éight years thereafter showed no fume problem 1n.the bank. (T—162-165)

39. Quaker State 0il Refining denied all responsibility (T-162) as t
the gasoline in the foundation ho1e but admitted a fitting on one of the line
from one of its tanks had cracked. (T7-173) |

40. In unconsolidated subsurface materials 1ike those found around
the bank, contaminants and groUndwatér move quickly compared to movement
through bedrock, so the materials from 30 years agd would not be present
today. (T-193-194)

| 41. The petro]eum found at the bank’s sump at the time of fhe DER
inspection was fresh, not that released 30 years ago. (T-193; 195)
DISCUSSION |
Since this appeal is from issuance of an administfative order to
Ron’s by DER, it is clear that under our rules it is DER which bears the
burden of proof."See 25 Pa. Code §21.101(b)(3). DER does not disagfee with

this assignment of the bukden of proof and contends it has met same.
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At the close of DER’s case-in-chief, Ron’s ora]Iy moved for a
directed uerdict; (T;124) Ron’s argued that to make a case under the Clean
Streams Law, DER had to prove pollution and that DER needed to show a
violation ot one of its standards to prove pollution. It then argued that DER
showed only gaso]ihe in the sump and that it has no standard for gasoline.
Before Ron’s argued orally that DER'tai1ed to’prove its Spill Act case, the
s1tt1ng Board Member proper]y adv1sed h1m that such relief as it sought i.e.,
a d1rected verd1ct had to be granted by a]] five Board Members because, if
granted, it would be a final order in the appeal and thus that the Board
Membervcouldvnot grant this motion} See Hubert D. Taylor v. DER et al., 1991
EHB 1926. Accordingly, Ron’s agreed to brief and argue these issues in its
post-hearing brief. (T-126-127)

Ron’s Post-Hearing Brief is, in fact, a Motion For Directed Verdict
'and support1ng Br1ef The Motion argues DER may issue an order under Section
316 of the C]ean Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691 316, if there is pollution or a
danger of pollution and that pollution is def1ned as a violation of standards
set by DER It a]so argues DERhmay issue an order under Section 1309 of the
Spill Act 35 P.S. 6021.1309, only if it finds a danger of po]]ut1on or

"release” and a "release" only exists if certain federal standards are
exceeded. Ron’s then argues that no discharges or releases to waters of the
Commonwealth in exceedance of any state or federal standard uere established
by DER Ron’s further argues that DER is not authorized by statute to issue
Ron s th1s order unless 1t establishes that Ron S was respons1b1e for a

discharge or release in V1o1at1on of a standard and that it proved neither.
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Though DER filed the first post-hearing briéf in the matter, that
Brief did not address these issues, except tangentially in discussing the
evidence, and, as a result, DER filed its Motion In Opposition To Appeliant’s
Motion For Directed Verdict and supporting brief as a response to Ron’s
Motion.2 In this responding motion DER argues that a directed verdict is
improper where material facts are in dispute, or where, as here, a prima facie
case is made out by DER, that DER has demonstrated violations under both Acts
by a preponderance of the evidence, and that material issues of fact are in
dispute as to gasd]ine contamination of the soil and groundwater in the area
of Ron’s and the tank.

Motions for directed verdict are at best uncommon before this Board
because they are normally directed at removing the case from the jury’s
consideration and we have no juries in proceedings before this Board. See Pa.
R.C.P. 226. However, they are not unheard of, as we do receive requests for

directed adjudications and for non-suits. See, e.g., Readinq Company and

Consolidated Rail Corporation v. DER, EHB Docket No. 90-192-MR (Adjudication
issued March 3, 1992), and Hubert D. Taylor, supra. When the chaff of jury’s
participation issues are stripped away from the kernel of the challenge raised

in this Motion, the question presented is whether DER has proven sufficient

2 The Board does not understand why many attorneys appearing before it file
Motions In Opposition to Appellant’s Motion, whether as to Directed Verdicts,
Summary Judgments or otherwise. That is not proper practice. A response or
answer to the motion, as opposed to a counter motion, together with a brief
supporting such an answer or response is all that is necessary.
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facts to set forth a basis on which it can hang at least one of its legal
theories. In sayihg this, we exp]icit]y_reject DER’s argument that we should
deny this Motion because there are materia] issues of fact in dispute between
fhe parties. Such an‘argument may apply in jury trials but not before us. As
a Board we must test DER’s facts while acting as both judgé,and Jury Jjust as a
Common Pleas Court judge does in any non-jury trial or when weighing_the
evidence after a matfenvfor & directed verdict. We also reject DER’s argument
that we deny this Motion because DER has made out a prima facie case. We read
both Pa.R.C.P. 226(b) and 9 Standard Pa. Practice 2d §58.76 to correctly
suggest a motion for a directed verdict comes at the close ofvthe presentation
of evidence in a case, not at the close of the "plaintiff’s" case-in-chief
(When a motion for non-suit may prdper]y be made). The Board as a whole must
consider this Motion’s merit after receipt of all of the evidénce to be
offered by both sides, and we are considering all of this evidence when
evaluatihg Ron’s Motion. So, questions of making out a prima facie case no
1on§er héve merit.

N Accordingly, we now turn to whether a Vio]ation of either stétute has
been established by DER. If it has, then we need not look further to see if
other theories of 1ijability have been proven to deny Ron’s motion. Clearly
DER is authorized to issue orders as needed to aid in enforcement of the
provisions of this Act. See 35 P.S. 86021.1309. It is also empowered by the
Act to issue orders for corrective actions. See 35 P.S. §6021.107(g).

| In relevant bart, Section 1311 of the Spi11 Act, 35 P.S. §6021.1311,

provides:
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[I]t shall be presumed as a rebuttable presumption of law
in ... administrative proceedings that a person who owns or

operates an ... underground storage tank shall be 1iable

without proof of fault, negligence or causation, for all

damages, contamination or pollution within 2,500 feet of

the perimeter of the site of a storage tank containing or

which contained a regulated substance of the type which

caused the damage, contamination or pollution. Such

presumption may be overcome by clear and convincing

evidence that the person so charged did not contribute to

the damage, contamination or pollution.

‘In the instant case Ron’s underground tanks are between 20 and 30
feet from the bahk's,sump and thus are within 2,500 feet. Ron’s tanks store
or stored gasoline which is a regulated substance as defined in Section 103 of
the Spill Act, 35 P.S. §6021.103, and gasoline is the contaminant or pollutant
found in the sump at the bank according to the chemical analysis of the Tiquid
in the sump conducted in DER’s laboratory. Moreover, there is no question
that for gasoline to have reached this sump the gasoline had to travel through
the sandy soils surrounding the bank building thus contaminating that soil.
The need for prevention of contamination of the lands of the Commonwealth was
one of the findings of the legislature when it adopted this statute. See
Section 102(a)(1),(2)and (6) of the Spill Act, 35 P.S. §6021.102(a)(1),(2) and
(6). Accordingly, in this administrative law proceeding we find, as DER urges,

that this presumption of liability applies to Ron’s.3

3 In so doing we do not discount the 1ikelihood of the occurrence of
groundwater contamination here. The sump’s purpose s obviously to keep
underground water from entering the bank’s basement. It is also obvious,
since the evidence shows the sump to be more than ten feet below the ground’s
surface and at least partially filled with water, that either a groundwater
aquifer of some type must be intercepted by the foundation or there is a
(footnote continues)
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This presumption of Ron’s liability applies unless rebutted by the
clear and convincing evidence of one of four types as outlined in Section
1311(b), 35 P.S. §6021.1311(b). The only evidence offered by Ron’s which
could be argued to fall within these four groups was the testimony by Emil
Koledin of Wessex about gasoline contamination of the bank site when the bank
building was constructed in the late 1950’s. Clearly there was a
contamination incident then and clearly that is evidence that Ron’s did not
contribute to that contamination incident, since at the time Ron’s did not
exist and the‘ gas station was owned by.Quaker State. However, we have no
evidence that this gasoline is still in place over 30 years later. Indeed
Koledin testified that Wessex pumped out much of the gasoline and that after
completing the bank building, he monitored the bank for fumes for at least six
years but detected none. Moreover, this gasoline smelled fresh to DER’'s staff
and DER’s hydrogeologist opined that in the unconsolidated sandy soils of this

area 30-year-old gasoline would not be the problem seen today. Accordingly,

(continued footnote)

spring at this location. Either is a water of this Commonwealth which is now
polluted by gasoline. Moreover, contrary to Ron’s assertion, a DER standard
of 30 parts per million for o0il and its products, as found in 25 Pa. Code
§97.63(b), is violated. This regulation prohibits a discharge of oil-bearing
waste waters containing more than 15 ppm and the sample’s analysis shows 160
ppm. in the sampie from the sump. However, as Ron’s correctly points out, DER
has failed to prove a discharge from Ron’s tanks. Although circumstantial
evidence points at these tanks as the only possible source and DER’s
hydrogeologist opined that they were the most 1ikely source, we have found
that DER has proven a violation of the Spill Act and thus need not address
‘whether there is proof of a violation of the Clean Streams Law.
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especially since Ron’s admits since the presumption applies to a recent
possib1e prob]em with one of its gasoline storage tanks, we do not find this
preéumption rebutted.

Because the presumption applies, DER need not show a release from
these tanks at Ron’s; under the Spill Act Ron’s is the presﬁmed factual cause
of the contamination. Since the presumption is not rebutted, this means
that as to this appeal Ron’s released the gasoline now in this soil.
Accordingly, we must deny Ron’s Motion and proceed to adjudicate the merits ¢
this issuance of this Order consistent with the findings recited above. In
turn, these findings force us to conclude that DER has proven the factual
'support for its administrative order under the Spill Act.

In reaching this conclusion, we agree with Ron’s that but for this
presumption DER failed to prove a release of contaminants or pollutants from
Ron’s storage tanks under the Spill Act.* DER’s staff did 1ittle more than
look at the land’s surface, the adjacency of the bank and Ron’s, and sample
the sump’s content. DER did not check for a discharge from the storm sewer o
even into the storm sewer. It did not dig any pits or holes from which it
could extract a sample of the groundwater outside the bank or at Ron’s. It
did not analyze groundwater flows or depth in this area, except surficially,
nor, prior to issuance of its order, did it conduct any analysis of the natur

of the subsurface soils. Thus, had this statutory presumption not existed, w

4 We need not address whether a case for an order pursuant to Section
1917-A of the Administrative Code was made but observe the conditions here
vary greatly from those in Reading Company et al., supra, where we found no
evidence of public injury and thus no reason to invoke Section 1917-A.
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might not have sustained DER’s order to Ron’s to hire a consultant to do a
groundwater investigation in this area and propose remediation if revealed to
be hecessary.5 |

However, we cannot ignore Section 1311’$ presumption, and, as recited
above, there is ample authorization for DER to issue this order found at
35 P.S. §6021.1309 and 35 P.S. §6021.107(g). Clearly, since the legislature
recognizes in Section 102(b) of the Spill Act, 35 P.S. §6021.102(b), the need
to have prompt cleanups where regulated substances are released from tanks, in
this circumstance DER’s Order was statutorily authorized and not an abuse of
its discretion. Since, as stated above, we must deny Ron’s motion and there
is no other defense to this order offered on Ron’s behalf, we sustain DER’s
~ action. Accordingly, we make the following conclusions of law and enter the
following Order.

| CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. This Board has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject
matter of this appeal.

2. Where an appeal is.taken from issuance of an administrative

order, it is DER, as the agency issuing this order, which bears the burden of

proof pursuant to 25 Pa. Code §21.101(b)(3).

5 DER 1is capable of conducting an investigation which leaves no doubt as to
releases or violations of the Clean Streams Law, supra. See C & L Enterprises
et al. v. DER, 1991 EHB 514 and Gabig’s Service v. DER, 1991 EHB 1856.
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3. A single Board Member lacks the authority under this Board’s
rules to grant a motion for directed verdict because such an order is a final
order which can only be entered by the full Board.

4. A motion for directed verdict is properly made only at the close
of the hearings on the merits of an'appea1.

5. In review of the evidence pursuant to a motion for directed
verdict all evidence before the Board must be considered.

6. Because this Board’s members decide both the fact and legal
issues, i.e., sit without a jury, and considering when a motion for directed
verdict may properly be made in the course of an appeal, it constitutes no
defense to such a motion to argue the motion should be denied for the
reason that there are material facts in dispute between the parties.

7. Because of the timing of a motion for directed verdict in the
course of an appeal, as opposed to a motion for non-suit, it is no defense to
such a motion for directed verdict to argue that it should be denied because
the non-moving party has made out a prima facie case.

8. Gasoline is a regulated substance under the Spill Act.

9. Where gasoline contaminates soils within 30 feet of underground
gasoline storage tanks the presumption that the oWner/operator of those tanks
is liable in regard thereto as set forth in Section 1311 of the Spill Act
applies in an appeal from an administrative order issued by DER to that

operator regarding this contamination.
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10. Because Ron’s has failed to offer clear and convincing evidence
to rebut this presumption of liability for this contamination, Ron’s is liable
therefor. |

11. Since this statutory presumption applies,. DER is not required to
prove a release from these tanks to justify issuance of its order under the
Spitl Act.

12. Because Section 1309 of the Spill Act authorizes DER to issue the
orders necessary to aid in enforcement of this Act, Section 107(g) of the Act
authorizes DER’s issuance orders for corrective-actions, and the 1egis1aturg
explicitly recognized the need for prompt cleanups of released regulated
substances in Section 102(b) of the Spill Act, ample statutory authority
exists for DER’s issuance of the order to Ron’s to hire a consultant to study
the scope and extent of the gasoline contamination in this area and report his
study’s results and remediation proposals, if-any, to DER.

| ORDER
AND NOW, this 17th day of June, 1992, it is ordered that Ron’s Motion

For Directed Verdict is denied and its appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

MAXINKE WOELFLING 9 ?

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, STREETS DEPARTMENT
v. :  EHB Docket No. 91-420-E

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE : Issued: June 17, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
TIMELINESS OF APPEAL
By: Richard S. Ehmann, Member
§mgm_s’
~Where a party stipulates in a joint stipulation of facts filed with
this Board as to a date on which it received written notice of DER’s actions
which it has appealed, that party has made a judicial admission of a fact
which it may not later contradict. While in situations involving motions to
‘dismiss untimely appeals ;he dismissal jssues must be considered in the light
most favorable to the non-moving party, where the date of receipt of notice of
DER’s actions stipulated to by the appellant is moré than thirty days before
that party’s appeal was filed with this Board, the appeal must be dismissed as
untimely.
OPINION
This appeal by the City of Philadelphia, Streets Department
("Philadelphia") arises from a Department of Environmental Resources ("DER")

letter dated September 5, 1991 conditionally approving Philadelphia’s proposed
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Municipal w&ste Management Plan, as submitted pursuant to the Municipal Waste
Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction Act, the Act of July Zé, 1988, P.L.
556, 53 P.S. 4000.101 et seq. According to this Board’s records the Board
received Philadelphia’s appeal by facsimile transmitted from Philadelphia’s
counsel to the Board on October 9, 1991.
In its Pre-Hearing Memorandum which we received on February 6, 1992,
DER states its letter notifying Philadelphia of this conditional épprova] was
sent to Philadelphia by facsimile transmitted to Philadelphia on September 5
and by mail as a regqular letter which Philadelphia says it received on
September 11, 1991. When this statement appeared in DER’s Pre-Hearing
Memorandum, Philadelphia made no response.
~ Thereafter, this Board issued its standard Pre-Hearing Order No. 2 on
February 7, 1992, which required the parties to file a joint stipulation
covering several topics including the facté upon which the parties could
agree. Qur Pre—Hearing Order No. 2, which is issued when the hearing date is
set, is designed to facilitate an expeditious hearing. On March 31,’1992 (in
anticipation of the merits hearing then scheduled for April 14 and 15, 1992)
the parties fiigd a joint stipulation signed on behalf of each party by its
respective counse].'Paragraph 17 of this Joint Stipulation Of Appellant And
AppeT]ee provides:
17. The Department on September 5, 1991 1ssuéd
a conditional approval of the City’s Municipal Waste
Management Plan, which the City received by facsimile
transmission on September 5 before receiving the
mailed copy on September 11. (emphasis in original)
Because the factual stipulation by Philadelphia raised questions for

this Board as to the timeliness of Philadelphia’s appeal and hence our

jurisdiction to hear same, we cancelled the scheduled merits hearing, and on
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April 13, 1992 issued Philadelphia a Rule To Show Cause why its appeal should
not be dismissed as untimely. | ’ ’

| Philadelphia has filed an unsworn and unverified response to this
Rule. In 1it, Philadelphia says it has no record to show the facsimile
transmission occurred. It also says that neither its counsel nor the
Commissioner of the Department of Streets had any awareness of any attempt at
facsimile transmission of DER’s Tetter at the time the appeal was filed and
that the appeal was filed in a good faith belief that Philadelphia first
received notice of DER’s conditional approval on September 11, 1991.
Philadelphia then says its telefacsimile logs do not show receipt of this
"fax." Finally, Philadelphia says its stipulation to fact No. 17 "was an
oversight and does not reflect the knowledge or belief of the City."

On May 20, 1992, in responée to our order to it to do so, DER filed a
response to Philadelphia’s contentions. InC]uded with it are an affidavit by
the DER employee who sent the facsimile transmission to the effect that the
facsimile transmission occurred on September 5, 1991 as initia11y alleged by
DER. | o

It is clear that pursuént to 25 Pa. Code §21.52(a) our jurisdiction
does not attach to an appeal unless the appeal is filed with the Board within
thirty days after a party appellant receives written notice of DER’s action.

Rostosky v. Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). Thus,

if Philadelphia received this fax on September 5, as alleged by DER and
stipulated to by Philadelphia, its Tast day to file a timely appeal was on
Monday, October 7, 1991. An appeal filed on October 9, 1991 would be untimely

and we would Tack the jurisdiction to entertain same.
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We note initially in deciding this issue that in its response to our

Rule, Philadelphia does not say the facsimile transmitted from DER to
Philadelphia did not occur. Instead, it says it has no log thét it occurred
and that the Commissioner and Philadelphia’s lawyer Tlacked knowledge of any
attempted facsimile transmission of this type at the time the appeal was
filed. Frankly, this response is not an absolute denial and is troubling to
us since it leaves open the possibility Phi1ade1phia was faxed this approval.
DER’s Reply points this out also and, based ubon the affidavits attached to
its Rep]y,xgoes on to aver that there are other persons in the Streets
Department with whom DER talked regularly as representatives of Philadelphia-
on these matters and the fax was sent to one of these people.

| However, the key here is not this equivocation but Philadelphia’s
stipulation to the fact that this fax transmission occurred. Philadelphia’s
Brief In Support Of Its Response which we received on May 21, 1992 (the day
after the last date to timely file same) does not address the legal
significance of this stipulation. Rather, it correctly points out that
motions to dismiss untimely appeals are to be construed in a 1ight most
favorable to the non-moving party and concludes that there is inadequate proof
it received this approval on September 5, 1991. We do not need to reach this
issue and weigh the evidence in this fashion. 1 By stipulating to the facts
in Paragraph No. 17 of the Joint Stipulation Philadelphia has made a judicial

admission which it cannot now contradict. The most recent case discussing the

1 If we were to weigh the evidence, we have an unsworn and unverified
assertion in Philadelphia’s response to our Rule to the effect that it has no
record of getting the "fax" from DER and an affidavit from the DER employee
who faxed this letter to Philadelphia stating that this was done. The scales
are clearly tipped toward DER based upon these filings.
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Taw in Pennsy1vania'on judicial admissions is Nasim v. Shamrock Welding Supply

Company, 387 Pa. Super. 225, 563 A.2d 1266 (1989), appeal denied, 525 Pa. 619,
577 A.2d 890 (1990). There in its review of the law on judicial admissions
the Court said:

It is well established that a judicial admission
is an express waiver made in court or preparatory to
trial by a party or his attorney, conceding for the
purposes of trial, the truth of the admission.
Jewelcor Jewelers & Distributors, Inc. v. Corr, 373
Pa. Super. 536, 542, 542 A.2d 72, 75 (1988). It has
the effect of a confessory pleading, in that the fact
is thereafter to be taken for granted, so that the
opposing party need offer no evidence to prove it and
the party by whom the statement was made is not
allowed to disprove it. Jewelcor Jewelers, supra, at
542, 542 A.2d at 75. A principal element of a
judicial admission is that the fact has been admitted
for the advantage of the admitting party, and
consequently, a judicial admission cannot be
subsequently contradicted by the party that made it.
Jewlcor Jewelers, supra at 543, 542 A.2d at 76.

387 Pa.vSuper. at  , 563 A.2d at 1267.

It is obvious Philadelphia has admitted this fact in preparation for
trial as it is contained in this Joint Stipulation, just 1ike Shamrock Welding
Supply made certain admissions in the Petition To Jo%n Additional Defendants
which it filed in the cited opinion. Philadelphia made this admission because
in exchange, it got DER to admit certaiﬁ facts and because the admitted facts
no longer need be proven through the taking of testimony, thus shortening
trial time and reducing the numbers of witnesses. Clearly this admission,
when made, was thus made with intention of creating an advantage for
Philadelphia. Accordingly, Philadelphia cannot now contradict it. This being
true, its admission shows that its appeal was untimely and case law compels

this Board to enter the following Order.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 17th day of June, 1992, it is ordered that this Board’s

Rule To Show Cause is made absolute and this appeal is dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL.HEARING BOARD

F¥iagere ttdaciaggg;r:,;
MAXINE WOELFLING

Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

ROBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

Tomonce ™" Fgpibosad
TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK

Administrative Law Judge
Member

~RTCHARD S. EFMANN
Administrative Law Judge
Member

DATED:  June 17, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation For Appellant:
Library: Brenda Houck Robert A. Sutton, Esq
For the Commonwealth, DER: Philadelphia, PA

Louise Thompson, Esq.
Southeastern Region
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
© HARRISBURG, PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
TELECOPIER 717.783-4738

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, STREETS DEPARTMENT
v. o . EHB Docket No. 92-051-E

COMMONHEALTH OF  PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: June 18, 1992

AMENDED OPINION AND ORDER
SUR

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES’
MOTION TO LIMIT ISSUES

By: Richard S. Ehmann, Member
Synopsis

A DER‘Moinn To Limit Is$ues, which seeks to bar an attack upon the
| validity of the Department of Environmental Resources’ (DER) Conditional
Approval of Philadelphia’s Act 101 Plan, is granted in this appeal from DER’s
civil penalty assessment based on non-compliance by Philadelphia with those
conditions. Since we dismissed Phi1ade]ph1a's prior appeal from DER’s
Conditional Approval of this Act 101 Plan because it was untimely filed, DER’s
action is now final and the docfrine of collateral estoppel bars an attack on
these condifions in the {nstant civil penalty assessment appeal.

OPINION
On January 2, 1992 DER issued a civil penalty assessment against the

City of Philadelphia ("Philadelphia") in the amount of $15,000 for alleged
violations by Philadelphia of its Municipal Waste Managément Plan as

promulgated under the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste Reduction
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Act, the Act of July 28, 1988, P.L. 566, No. 101, 53 P.S. §4000.101 et seq.
("Act 101") and conditionally approved by DER on September 5, 1991.

| On January 31, 1992, Philadeiphia filed an appeal from DER’s
assessment with this Board. In it, Philadeiphia says the September 5, 1991
Conditional Approval on which DER bases this assessment is invalid and not in
accordance with law. It avers that certain conditions in the Conditional
Approval are not in accordance with the law, are an abuse of DER’s discretion
and are‘beyond the scope of DER’s regulatory authority. It also says DER’s
determination that Philadeiphia violated provisions of the Conditional
Approval was in error and not in accordance with law and that the assessment
of $15,000 was arbitrary, capricious, unfeasonab]e and excessive.

Thereafter, as ordered, Philadelphia filed its Pre-Hearing
Memdrandum. In its Pre-Hearing Memorandum Phiiadelphia recites the issdance
of DER’s Conditional Approval and Philadelphia’s appeal therefrom to this
Board. It then—goes on in part to attack all 13 conditions in the Conditional
Approval and to specifically attack Cbnditions 5, 7, 11 and 12. It is for
alleged violations of Conditions 5, 7 and.12 that DER assessed the civil
penalty at issue here. B |

Thereafter, DER filed the instant Motion. The motion does not
challenge Philadelphia’s right td question DER’s allegations of violations of
these conditions or it$ right to query as to the amount of the penalty
- assessed for the a11éged violations but attacks Philadelphia’s challenges to
the conditions themselves. DER argues the doétrine of administrétive finaTity
bars Philadelphia from raising in this appeal the issues which have been
raised or which cdu]d have been raised in the appeal from DER’s Conditional

Approval docketed at EHB Docket No. 91-420-E. It seeks to 1imit the issues in
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this appeal so as to exclude challenges to these conditions in this
proceeding.

In the Memorandum of Law accompanying its Mdtion DER asserts the
doctrine of administrative finality bars any pafty failing to file a timely
appeal from a DER action, from collaterally attacking that action in a
subsequenf proceeding to enforce it. DER then contends it is Philadelphia’s
intention to challenge DER’s Conditional Approval in this civil penalty
assessment appeal and that Philadelphia is entitled td a'sing1e bite of the
apple, i.e., it can challenge DER’s Conditional Approval in the appeal at
Docket No. 91-420-E only.

On June 2, 1992 Phi]ade]phiavfaxed us its reSponse to DER’s Mdtion;
In it, Philadelphia asserts DER knew or should have known from the Notice of
Appeal that these issues wefe being raised here so’there is no prejudice to
DER in their being specified for the first time in Phi]ade]phia’s Pre-Hearing
Memorandum. Philadelphia also asserts the doctrine of administfative finality
should not bar Philadelphia raising this issue because: (a) Board opinions
issued between the date on which DER conditionally approved Philadelphia’s Act
101 Plan (September 5, 1991)‘and the present have clarified Philadelphia’s
rights and the law; (b) Philadelphia did not know the extent it was aggrieved
by DER’s actions until the penalty was assessed;v(c) fhe conditional
approval’s issuance by DER is different from what occurred in the other
appeals where the doctrine of administrative finality was applied; andv(d) the
Conditional Approval, DER’s‘notice to Philadelphia of its violation of that
approval and the instant civil penalty assessment should be considered a
"single" action by DER fn terms of their impact on Phi]ade]phia; thus that the

doctrine does not apply.
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On June 17, 1992 we issued an Opinion and Order dismissing
Philadelphia’s appeal from DER’s Conditional Approval docketed at EHB 91-420-Et

because it was not timely filed and thus we lacked jurisdiction to hear it

under Rostosky v. Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976).
We point this out because of its impact on this appeal and the merits of this
motion. !
When we issued that opinion, the only cha]]enge'to DER’s Conditional
Approval which might have been timely filed, was ended. DER’s action in
conditionally approving Philadelphia’s Act 101 Plan became final. Because

DER’s action on the Act 101 Plan is final, the doctrine of collateral estoppel

bars an attack on the conditions in DER’s approval . in this appeal from its

civil penalty assessment. George and Barbara Capwell v. DER, 1987 EHB 174;
Pittsburgh Coal and Coke. Inc. v. DER et al., 1986 EHB 704; Antrim Mining,

Inc. v. DER, 1988 EHB 105; Toro Development Company v. Commonwealth, 56 Pa..
Cnwlth. 471, 425 A.2d 1163 (1981).

It is true that this doctrine cannot be universally applied in all

matters coming before us. For example, in Kent Coal Mining Company V.
Commonwealth, DER, 121 Pa. Cmwith. 149, 550 A.2d‘279 (1988) ("Kent"), the
Commonwealth Court reversed this Board and, based on the language.in Section
18.4 the Surface Mining Conservation And Reclamation Act, Act of May 31, 1945,
P.L. 1198, as amended, 52 P.S. §1396.22 and 25 Pa. Code §86.202(a), allowed an

attack on the merits of the underlying violations in an appeal from a civil

lye previously issued this Opinion and Order Sur DER’s Motion to Limit
Issues on June 12, 1992, but, since the Opinion and Order was inadvertently
issued prior to the issuance of our Opinion and Order Sur Timeliness of Appeal
at Docket No. 91-420-E, we have withdrawn our June 12 Order and issued the
Opinion and Order at docket No. 91-420-E so that upon reissuance of this
Opinion and Order the two opinions are issued in the proper sequence.
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penalty assessment based on those violations despite the lack of an appeal
from the prior DER administrative order finding Kent Coal had violated certain

regulations. In accord with Kent, supra, see Gerald Booher v. DER, 1990 EHB

285 ("Booher"). In Kent and Booher, however, these were statute sections and

regulations expressly authorizing such subsequent attacks. 'There are neither

regulations nor statute sections which authorize such collateral attacks where
the appeal is from a civil penalty assessed under Act 101. Accordingly, Kent

and Booher are distinguishable from the scenario in the instant appea1.2

As to Philadelphia’s argument, citing Dithridge House Association v.
Commonweaith, DER, 116 Pa. Cmwlth. 24, 541 A.2d 827 (1988), that the policy of

equitable administration of laws overrides the doctrine of administrative
finality, we point out that this opinion is not based on the doctrine of
administrative finality. Further, the statute involved in that appeal had
been amended to eXc]ude Dithridge House Association from the permit
requirements of that Act, but the amendment became law after the permit
application was denied so the court held it would bevinequitab1e to now bar
the appeal challenging the need for a permit based on a permit denial under
the unamended statute. No such statutory change has occurred here. Indeed
the only changed circumstance pointed to by Philadelphia is our decision in
Washington County v. DER, EHB Docket No. 91-168-MJ (Opinion and Order issued
April 2, 1992). That opinion declared that DER lacked the authority to impose

certain conditions it placed in Washington County’s Act 101 Plan. The

2Phﬂade]phia’s Memorandum of Law cites Bologna Mining Company v. DER,
1989 EHB 270, and argues a different interpretation of Kent. Because the
language in the statute and regulation quoted by the Court in Kent as grounds
for the Court’s decision there does not appear in Act 101, Bologna Mining
Company, supra, does not apply here, either.
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Washington County, supra, decision is no basis for invocation of that policy

here because Philadelphia could have timely challenged all 13 conditiohs
ptaced on its Act 101 Plan by DER but failed to do so. Its challenge could
have been for the same reasons advanced by Washington County to the extent the
conditions are the same (to the extent they are not, that opinion is
irrelevant to the instant proceeding). Moreover, if we were to hold otherwise
we would be authorizing new appeals whenever subsequent opinions by this Board
further interpreted any particular statutes or regulations and no DER action
would ever be able to be said to be considered final.3
ORDER

AND NOW, to wit, this 18th day of June, 1992 it is ordered that DER’s
Motion To Limit Issues is granted and Philadelphia is prohibited from offering
this Board evidence in thjs appeal which attacks the validity of the
conditions contained in DER’s September 5, 1991 Conditional Approval of

Philadelphia’s Act 101 Plan.?

3In an attack on the doctrine of administrative finality here,
Philadelphia argues a change in circumstance between the time of issuance of
DER’s initial order and the subsequent enforcement proceeding allows an attack
on the initial order. In support of this contention it cites Arthur Richards
Jr.. M.D. et al. v. DER et al., 1990 EHB 382 ("Richards") and The Florence
Mining Company v. DER, 1991 EHB 1301 ("Florence"). Neither Richards nor
Florence says this. Richards allows only those challenges to a renewal of a
permit arising from evidence not available when the permit was first issued.
In Florence, where a permit was issued and later reissued for a larger area,
we denied summary judgment to DER because it failed to make the requisite
showing to be entitled to such a judgment. We did not authorize subsequent
challenges to prior unappealed permits in ignorance of the doctrine of
administrative finality. Finally, we point out we have not decided the merits
of this motion based on application of this doctrine, so these cases are
inapplicable.

4see note 1 on page 4 of the Opinion which accompan1es this Order for the
reason we have issued this amended order.
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BIG B MINING COMPANY
v. . EHB Docket No. 83-215-G

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : . Issued: June 19, 1992

¢

OPINION AND ORDER
' SUR -
PETITION FOR PAYMENT OF COUNSEL
FEES, COSTS AND EXPENSES

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis

A permittee seeking recovery of counsel fees, costs and expenses
under section 4(b) of Pa. SMCRA in connection with a permit application
proceeding must prove that DER's action was patently unjust and oppressive, a
flagrant abuse of goyernmenfa] power. In the absence of evidence that DER's
action contained these elements, the Board denies thé petition.

OPINION
" This Petition was filed by Big B Mining Company, Inc. (Big B) on
‘March 13, 1989 seeking legal fees, costs and.expenses tota]]ingv$43,875.1<
The Board denied the Petition in an Opinion and Order issued Marchllz, 1990,

holding that the Legislature did not intend the fee provisions of section-4(b)

1 This amount includes time spent by Big B's legal counsel:in connection:
with an appeal to Commonwealth Court. OQur statutory authority is limited to
proceedings:before us. We have no authority to award fees and expenses
arising out of court proceedings.
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of the Pennsylvania Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act (Pa.
SMCRA), Act of May 31, 1945, P.L. 1198, as amended, 52 P.S. §1396.4(b), to
apply to permittees in permit app]icatioh proceedings. QOur decision was
reve}sed and the Petitidn was remanded by an Opinion and Order of the
Commonwealth Court of Pennsylvania issued on August 27, 1991 at No. 740 C.D.
1990,  Pa. Cmwlth. __ , 597 A.2d 202 (1991). We must now reconsider Big
B's Petition consistent with Commonwealth Court’s ruling.

bThat rd]ing déa]t‘ohly with the applicability of the fee provisions
to permit application proceedings. It did not consider‘(because it was not
before the Court in this case) the factors the Board is to evaluate in
exercising the discretion given to it by the Legislature in section 4(b) of
Pa. SMCRA. OQur approach;ghiStoricaily, has béen to seek guidance from the fee
provisions of section 525(e) of the Federal Surface Mining Control and
Reclamation Act (Fed. SMCRA), Public Law 95-87, 91 Stat. 447, 30 U.S.C.A.
§1275(e), and from the so-called Costs Act, Act of December 13, 1982, P.L.
1127, 71 P.S. §2031 et seq., as well as the regulations adopted under both
statutes: Sheesley v. DER et al., 1982 EHB 85; James E. Martin v. DER, 1986
EHB 101; Jay Township et al. v. DER et al., 1987 EHB 36; Robert Kwalwasser v.
DER et al;, 1988 EHB 1308; Pearl Marion Smith v. DER et al(, 1990 EHB 1281.

Commonwealth Court was called upon to review only one of these
decisions - Robért Kwa lwasser v. Cbmmonwealth, Dept. of Environmental
Resources et al., 131 Pa. Cawlth 77, 569 A.2d 422 (1990). While the Court
upheld our use.of the "préVéi]ing'party” test which we borrowed from Fed.
SMCRA and the Costs Act, it did not discuss the propriety of our appropriating
the test from these sources. When Big B's Petition was first before us, we
denied it primarily because permit application prOCeedings are not included in

the’feelprovisions'of Fed. SMCRA and the Costs Act. As noted at the outset,
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Commonwea]th‘Court rejected this reasoning. While the import of the Court's
decision is open to argumeﬁt, we interpret it to mean just what it says - that
‘it is improper for the Board to pay heed to the provisions of other statutes
when the language of Pa. SMCRA is clear and unambiguous. So construed, Big B
(dealing with what proceedings are covered by section 4(b) of Pa. SMCRA) does
not affect Kwalwasser (dealing with the exercise of our discretion in covered
proceedings). |
| Under Fed. SMCRA a permittee may recover fees énd expenses when the
government or private party'éngages in bad faith for the purpose of harassing
or embarrassing the permittee: 43 CFR §4.1294. Under the Costs Act, an
applicant must show that the position of the government agency was not
substantially justified. .Both'terms suggest, at the least, that the agency
action must amount to more fhah an abuse of discretion. It must be the type
of governmental action tﬁat”gdes beyond the realm of reasonableness. In the
absence of any other standard imposed on us by section 4(b) of Pa. SMCRA, we
elect to app]y’a sjmi]ar standard here. While not requiring a showing of bad
faifh, we will inéist-that_arpermittee convince us that DER’s action was
patently unjust and oppfess{vé;‘é flagrant abuse of governmental power.

‘ B1g B's Petition does not contaln any a]]egat1on concerning the
nature of DER's act1on relying s1mp1y on the allegation that Big B is the
prevailing party. While prevailing party status is essential, it is nof
enough where a'permittee is involved. We have reviewed the proceed1ngs and
conclude that, while its legal position was reJected DER S act1on did not
contain the elements descr1bed:above. Accordingly, we reJect B1g B’ s

Petition.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 19th day of May, 1992, it is ordered that the Petition
for Payment of counsel Fees, Costs and Expenses, filed by Big B Mining

Company, Inc., is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BGARD

Ctastd Joyse

ROBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

“Towvmance S F.««W '

TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
Member

Board Chairman, Maxine Woelfling, and Board Member, Richard S. Ehmann,
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RAYMOND G. OSTROWSKI
v. :  EMB Docket No. 91-561-MR

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : ' Issued: June 19, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
- SUR
MOTION TO DISMISS FOR LACK OF JURISDICTION

Robert D. Myers, Member

Synopsis
The Board dismisses an appeal filed beyond the 30-day period provided

in 25 Pa: Code §21.52(a) because it has no jurisdiction to entertain it.
OPINION ‘

Raymond G. Ostrowski (Appellant) filed a Notice of Appeal on December
23, 1991'seeking review of the action of the Depértment of Environmental
Resources (DER) denying coverage for damages under Appellant’'s Mine subsidence
Insurance policy. The action was taken:in a letter dated November 15, 1991.
On March 11, 1992 DER filed a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction to
which Appellant has filed no response.

In its Motion, DER alleges that the denial letter was sent to
Appellant by certified mail which Appellant received on November 18, 1991;
"that the Notice of Appeal was filed with the Board on December 23, 1991; that,

since this is more than 30 déys beyond the date when Appellant was notified of
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DER's action, the appeal is untimely. DER requests that the appeal be
dismissed for lack of jurisdiction. Attached to the Motion are two sworn
affidavits with attachments. One of the attachments is a copy of the U.S.
Postal Service Domestic Return Receipt for certified mail, reflecting a

‘ deliVery date of November 18, 1991 and Appellant’s signature.

s noted, Appellant filed no response to DER’'s Motion. The
allegations, therefore (which are amply supported), will be accepted as true.
It is clear that theyappéa] must be dismissed. In order for Appellant to
invoke our jurisdiction, he was required to file his Notice of Appeal wifhin
30 days after receiving notice of DER’s action: 25 Pa. Code §21.52(a);
Rostosky v. Commonwealth, Dept. ofvEnvir.'dnmenta_l Resources, 26 Pa. Cmwlth.
478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). That‘30-day period began to run on Novémber 18,
1991 and ended on December 18, 1991, a Wednesday. Appellant’s Notice of
Appeal was received five days later on December 23, 1991.

Since Appellant has made no reqdest for an appeal nunc pro tunc and
has not otherwise stated any reasons for missing the filing deadline, it is

unnecessary for us to consider an exception to §21.52(a).
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 19th day of Juné, 1992, it is ordered as follows:

1. DER’s Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction is granted.

2; Appe]lant’s/ébpéal is dismissed.

749

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

MAXINE WOELFLING
Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

ROBERY D~ MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

7~¢om¢auce:£'fﬁﬁﬁ%i&iéb%df
TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge

Member
> 42’ég%;gégéii;24

RICHARD S. EHMANN
Administrative Law Judge
Member '




EHB Docket No. 91-561-MR

mifiistrative Law Judge
lember

DATED: June 19, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
Harrisburg, PA
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Michael Bedrin, Esq.
Margaret 0. Murphy, Esq.
Northeast Region '
For the Appellant: ’
Raymond G. Ostrowski
Hanover Township, PA

sb

750



ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE :
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717-787-3483 . SECRETARY T2 T+E
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA,
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

v. o :  EHB Docket No. 91-181-CP-F
CHAPIN & CHAPIN, INC. ; Issued: June 22, 1992

~ OPINION AND ORDER SUR -
MOTION FOR SANCTIONS

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member

Synopsis

A motion for sanctions filed by the Deﬁartment of Environmental
Resources (DER) is granted in part and denied in part. The Board will impose
sanctions when a party repeatedly violates the discovery rules, even though
the:pérty has not violated a Board Order compelling discovery: Instead of
barring the Defendant from introducing any evidence; howéver, the Board elects
only to prohibit testimony from one of Defendant's witnesses.

OPINION

This proceeding involves a complaint for civil-penalties filed by DER
pursuant to Section 9.1 of the Air Pollution Control Act, ACt of January 8,
1960, P.L. 2119, as amended, 35 P.S. §4009.1. /fhe'Defendant is Chapin and

Chapin, Inc. (Chapin), an Ohio Corporation which-operated~a*portable batch
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concrete manufacturing plant in Lycoﬁing Township, Lycoming County, during
1990. 1 |
This Opinion and Order addresses a motion for sanctions filed by DER.
This motion is based upon several A]1eged violations by Chapin of the rules
governing discovery. DER céntends that Chapin only responded to DER's request
for production of documents and first set of interrogatories after DER filed
motions to compé], which the Board'granted. In addition, DER argues that
Chapin failed to produce Bfuce Chapin for depos%tion, despifé DER’S sekving of
several hotices’of dépbéition upon Chapin. More specifically, DER avers that
Chapin féi]ed to produce Bruce Chapin for deposition on February 11, 1992,
despite the ébardfs denial on February 10, 1992 of Chapin’s motion for
protective order; DER asserts that, fo]]owing the Board’s denial, it issued a
revised notice to depose Bruce Chapin on March 24, 1992, but that Chapin
refused to honor this notice as well.
Chapin filed a response to DER’s motion for sanctions, asserting that

.sanctions are inappropriate because it has provided the discovery sought by
DER. <Chapin argues, spécifical]y, that the delay in its response tb DER's
interrogatories was due to a serious illness in Bruce Chapin’s family. Chapin
contends that it sought an extension from DER on this basis, but that DER
refused to acquiesce. With regard to DER’'s request for production of
documents, Chapin asserts that it informed DER that the documents were
available for inspection and copying at a mutudl]y convenient time. Finally,
with regard to thé-deposition of Bruce Chapin,‘Chapin asserts that the delay
in conducting this deposition waS due to DER’s refusal to éubpoena Mr. Chapin.

Chapin argues that DER was required to serve a subpoena (as opposed to sending

1 Chapin supplied concrete in connection with a PennDOT road project. The
precise period during which the plant was operated is in dispute.
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a "notice of deposition”) because Mr. Chapin,:an Ohio resident, js hot a party
to this proceeding. Chapin further asserts that it was under no obligation to
produce Bruce Chapin for deposition on Febrparyvll, 1992 becapse the Board’s
February 10,‘1992 Order, while denying Chapin’s,motton for protective order,
did not order Bruce Chapin to appear. Moreover, Chapin’aéserts that the
notice of depositioh improperly identified Bruce Chapin, rather than Chapin'
and Chapin, Inc.,‘as the deponent. | | |

The Board’s rules provide that the Board may impose sanctione upon a
party for failure to abide by a éoard Order or a Board rule of practiee ahd
prdcedure. 25 Pa. Code §21.124. The Board's rules further provide that
discovery in Board proceedings shall be in accord with the Pehnsylpania Ru]eé
of Civil Procedure (Pa.R.C.P). 25 Pa. Code §21.111. Rule 4019, Pa.R.C.P.,
governs sanctions for fai]ure to comply with theldiseovery rules. Under this
rule, a court may impose sanctions fer a party’s failure to ”makekdfscovery or’
to obey an order of court_respecting discovery.” Pa.R.C.P 4019(a)(1)(viii).

In the present case, we’tind that sanctions are appropriate due to
Chap1n S repeated v1o]at1ons of the rules govern1ng discovery. First, Chapin
fa11ed to comp]y with the d1scovery ru]es regard1ng 1nterrogator1es Chapin
v1o1ated Pa.R.C.P 4006(2) by fa111ng to serve answers or objections to DER's
1nterrogator1es within th1rty days of Serv1ce 2 Chap1n s argument that DER
unreasonab]y refused to grant an extens1on for answering the 1nterrogator1es
fa]]s on deaf ears, at this point, because Chapin did not file either
objectiohs.or a“mottan for protective order within the thirty day responéey'

period. See, Pa.R.C.P 4019(a)( ). Moreover, we note that after Chapin filed

2 DER served the interrogatories on or about September 9, 1991. Chapih
did not answer the’ 1nterrogator1es until November 22 1991 - after DER filed a
motion to compel. : o
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answers to DER’s interrogatories, DER filed another motion to compel -
contending the answers were fncomp]éte. The‘Board granted this motion on
February 10, 1992, compelling Chapin to submit complete answers. |

In addition,bchapin failed to comply with the rules with regard to
DER’s request for production of documents. Pa.R.C.P 4009(b)(2) requires thét
the party upon whom such a requést is served shall serve a written response
withfn thirty days of receiving the request. DER filed a‘motion to compel
production of documents on January 28, 1992, and.Chapin filed a response on
February I7, 1992 - admitting that it had not filed a formal response to DER's
request for production. As a result, the Board issued an Order on February
21, 1992, grénting DER’s motion to compe].3 ‘

Finally, and most importantly, Chapin did not comply with the
discovery rules with regard to DER’'s attempts to depose Bruce Chapin.
Pa.R.C.P 4019(a)(1)(iv) provides that the court may impose sanctions if:

a party or an officer, or managing agent of a

- party or a person designated under Rule 4007.1(e)

to be examined, after notice under Rule 4007.1,

fails to appear before the person who is to take

his deposition.
Since Chaﬁin admits that Brucé Chapin is an officer of Chapin (motion for
prdtéctive order dated February 7, 1992, para. 8), it appears, at first blush,
that Chapin is subject to sanctions for failing to produce Bruce Chapin on
five sepéfafe dates for which DER served notices of deposition. Chapin
argues, howevér, that it wé§ not‘ob]iged to produce Bruce €hapin in accord
with DER's notices because Mr. Chapiﬁ is not a party to this proceeding.

Accordingly, Chapin contends that Mr. Chapin was only subject to deposition if

3 The parties disagree over whether Chapin, despite its failure to file a
formal response to DER’s request, made a legitimate offer to allow DER to
inspect and copy the documents prior to our granting of DER’s motion to

- compel. We are unable to resolve this disagreement on the record before us.
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" DER served a subpoena upon him and agreed to pay his reasonable expenses,
citing Pa.R.C.D 4007.1(a). 4

Chapih's argument is unpersuasive. DER was not required to resort to
the procedure for deposing hon-parties in order to depose Bruce Chapin “an
officer of‘Chapin.’ This conclusion is obvious on the face of Pa.R.C.P
4019(a)(1)(iv), which states that sanctions may be imposed if an officer‘of a
party fails to appear for a deposition after notice under Pa.R.C.P 4007.1.

We believe that the above violations of fhé discovéry rules warrant
sanctions, even though Chapin has not violated a Board Order cbmpe]]ing
diécOVery.4‘ Both the Courts and the Board have noted'that, in practice,

sanctions are not usually imposed unless a party defies an order compelling

discovery. See, Griffin v. Tedesco, 355 Pa. Super. 475, 513 A.2d 1020, 1024
(1986), Donan v. DER, 1990 EHB 1601, 1605. However, the Courts have stated

that Pa. R.C.P. 4019(a)(1) allows fmposition of sanctions for failure to
comply with the discovery rules so long as the severity of the sanction
matches the severity of the violation. Griffin, 513 A.2d at 1023, Dunn v.
Maislin Transport Limited, 310 Pa. Super. 321, 456 A.2d 632, 634 (1983). In

the instant case, we will not allow Chapin to escape sanctions on the basis
that its behavior could have been worse. While Chapin did, ultimately,
provide the discovery sought by DER, it certainly had to be dragged out of
them. Sanctions are necessary to express our disapproval of this behavior,
and to discourage dilatory tactics in other proceedings. -

Having decided that sanctions are appropriate, we must next decide

4 Chapln S fa11ure to produce Bruce Chap1n on February 11 1992 desp1te
the Board’'s denial of its motion for protective order, cannot, techn1cal]y, be
characterized as disobeying a Board Order. Pa.R.C.P. 4012(a) provides that a
court may, in addition to denying a motion for protective order, order that a
party provide discovery. - -
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what thevsanctions should be. DER requests that we preclude Chapin from
presenting evidence regarding any of the allegatiorns in DER’'s Complaint and -
from presenting evidence regarding fhe allegations in Chapin’s Answer and New
Matter. Imposition of this sanction wou]d limit Chapin’s role at the hearing
to cross-examining DER's witnesses. In our view, this sanction is more severe
than Chapin’s behavior warrants; such a sanction should be reserved for a
situation where a party has disregarded & Beard Order compelling discévéry.
Instead, we will bar Chapin from introducing any testimony from Bruce Chapin.
This is appropriate since Chapin’s failure to produce Bruce Chapin for
deposition was the most serious of Chapin’s violations of the discovery rules.
We believe that this sanction is appropriate in light of the violations of the
discovery rules by Chapin.5

Accordingly, we enter the following Order.

5 DER submitted a copy of Bruce Chapin’s deposition transcript to the
Board on June 16, 1992 (in compliance with a Board Order dated June 11, 1992),
and we have read this transcript before issuing this Opinion and Order. We
have not considered, however, the assertions raised by DER in its cover letter
accompanying the deposition transcript. ' '
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 22nd day of June 1992, it is ordered that:
1) DER’s motion for sancfions is granted in part and denied in
part.
2) Chapin is barred from introducing testimony from Bruce

Chapin at the hearing on the merits.
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Tevance T Foi c@, el ‘
- TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
. Administrative Law Judge
- Member . -
DATED: June 22, 1992 - i

cc: Bureau of Litigation, DER:
Library, Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Carl B. Schultz, Esq.
Central Region

.. For Appellant:

Paul A. Logan, Esgq.
William D. Longo, Esq. .
POWELL, TRACHTMAN, LOGAN & CARRLE
King of Prussia, PA,

jm
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TELECCPIER 717-783-4738

RUTH S. BODY
v. . EHB Docket No. 88-498-F

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA H

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESQURCES

and DELAWARE COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY,

Permittee ' ’ : Issued: June 23, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT, AND
CROSS-MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member

Synopsis

The Board denies the Appellant's motion for summary judgment, and
grants the Permittee's cross-motion for summary judgment. Under the Eminent
Domain Code, title to the mineral rights‘under]ying the area of the prpposed
landfill éxpansion passed from the Appeliant td the Permittee at the time the
Permittee filed a declaration of taking in the Court of Common Pleas.
Therefore, the Department of Envirdnmenta] Resources (DER) was not precluded
from granting the permit by 25 Pa. Code §273.120(b), which requires that the
permit applicant either own such mineral rights or have an agreement with the
owner ﬁroviding thaf mining w{11 not be conducted.

OPINION

This is an appeal by Ruth S. Body (Body) from DER’s granting of a
permit application allowing the expansion of the Colebrookdale Landfill in
Earl Township, Berks County. The recipient of this permit was the Delaware

County Solid Waste Authority (Authority). In her appeal, Body contends that
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under 25 Pa. Code §273.120(b), DER could only grant the permit if it found
that the Authority either owned the mineral rights beneath the landfill or had
an ag}eement with the owner providing that mining would not occur. Body
contends that she owns mineral rights beneath the proposed area of the
expansion, and that the Authority filed a "declaration of taking” in the Court
of Common b]eas of Berks County. Body further asserts that she has filed
preliminary objections fo the declaration of taking, and that until these
preliminary objections are ruled upon by the Court, no determination can be
made that the Authority is the owner of the mineral rights. Therefore, Body
contends that DER erred in coné]uding-that the Authority owned the mineral
rights.

This Opinion and Order addresses Body’s motion for summéry Jjudgment
and - the Authority’s cross-motion for summary judgment. In her motion, Body
argues that the Authority’s filing of a declaration of taking did not pass
title to the Authority because the declaration was not properly filed and
because proper security was not filed. See, Section 402 of the Eminent Domain
Code (Code), Act of June 22, 1964, P.L. 89, as amended, 26 P.S. §1-402.
Alternatively, Body argues that if title did pass to the Authority, the Berks
County Court has authority to revest title in Body if she prevails on her
preliminary objections. §gg,vSection 406(e) of the Code, 26 P.S. §1-406(e).
Therefore, Body argues that DER should not have issued the permit until the
Authority could show that Body's preliminary objections had been dismissed in
a "final non-appealable decision.” (Body motion for summary judgment, para.
12.)

In its cross-motion for summary judgment, the Authority argues that

the Board lacks jurisdiction to entertain Body's appeal because the Code vests
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exclusive jurisdiction over property condemnation matters in the courts of
-common pleas. See Sections 303 and 401 of the Code, 26 P.S. §§1-303, 1-401.
The Authority contends that the Board has held that it lacks jurisdiction over

title disputes, citing Swanson v. DER, 1984 EHB 681. The Authority further

argues, in the alternative, that it owns the mineral rights because title to
the rightsvpassed immediately to the Authority when it filed the declaration
of taking, citing Section 402(a) of the Code, 26 P.S. §1-402(a).

The Board may grant summary judgment only if the "pleadings,
depositions, answefs to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with
- the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genUine issue as to any material
fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.”

Pa.R.C.P. No 1035(b), Ingram Coal Co. v. DER, 1990 EHB 395.

- The essential facts here are undisputed. Body acknowledges in her
notice of appeal, and both parties concede in all of their filings seeking
summary Jjudgment, the following facts: that the Authority has filed a
declaration of taking, that Body has filed preliminary objections to the
declaration, and that the Court has not yet ruled on the preliminary
objections. The only questions in this proceeding are legal - doeé the Board
have jurisdiction to decide the question presented here, and, if so, did DER
err in concluding that the Authority owned the mineral rights in the area of
the landfill’s expansion.

On‘the jurisd{ctional quéstion, we find that while we do not have
Jurisdiction to adjudicate the parties’ rights under the Eminent Domain Code,
we do have jurisdiction to interpret and evaluate the Code to the extent
necessary to rule upon ownership of the mineral rights under 25 Pa. Code

§273.120(b). This conclusion is consistent with Board precedent. See,
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Swanson v. DER, 1684 EHB 681, 682, Cooper v. DER, 1982 EHB 250, 257-259.‘ In
Cooper (which was cited with approval in Swanson), DER had denied an
encroachment permit because the applicant had not secured releases from owners
of affected riparian property, as required by DER’s regulations. The
applicant disputed DER’'s assertions regarding ownership of the affected

property. The Board concluded that while it lacked authority to adjudicate
title to the property in question, that it could evaluate the ownership
question as necessary to determine whether DER’s action was consistent with
its regulation. Cooper, 1982 EHB at 258, 259. This conclusion was necessary
in order for the Board to carry out its statutory obligation to review and
rule upon actions of DER. Id.

The analysis in Cooper is equally applicable here. Unless the Board
can evaluate the ownership question - which requires us to evaluate the
Eminent Domain Code - we cannot fulfill our responsibility to determine
whether DER's action was consistent with 25 Pa. Code §273.120(b).

Having determined that we have jurisdiction to review the ownership
question, we find that DER did not err in determining that the Authority owned
the mineral rights beneath the area of the landfill expansion. Section 402 of
the Eminent Domain Code, 26 P.S. §1-402, provides in relevant part:

(a) Condemnation under the power of condemnétion
given by law to a condemnor, which shall not be
enlarged or diminished hereby, shall be effected
only by the filing in coeurt of a declaration of
taking, with such security as may be required
under section 403(a), and thereupon the title

- which the condemnor acquires in the property
condemned shall pass to the condemnor on the date
‘of such filing, and the condemnor shall be

entitied to possession as provided in section 407.

The Authority emphasizes the language that title ”shall pass to the condemnor
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on the date of such filing” in support of its position that it owns the
mineral rights. Body, on the other hand, argues that fhis passing of title is
conditional upon the condemnor filing “such security as may be required under
section 403(@).” Body contends fhat‘sufficieht security has not been filed,
and that she has filed preliminary 6bjections raising this issue.

We disagree with‘Body’s afgument that title did not pass to the
Authority upon the date of filing the declaration of taking. Tﬁe conclusion
that title did pass, despite Body's preliminary objections regardfng the
adequacy of the security, is inescapable from.an examination of Section 406 of
the que, 26 P.S. §1-406. This Section reads, in relevant part:

(a) Within thirty days after being served with
notice of condemnation, the condemnee may file
preliminary objections to the declaration of
taking. The court upon cause shown may extend
the time for filing preliminary objections.
Preliminary objections shall be limited to and
shall be the exclusive method of challenging (1)
the power or right of the condemnor. to
appropriate the condemned property unless the
same has been previously adjudicated; (2) the
sufficiency of the security; (3) any other
procedure followed by the condemnor; or (4) the
declaration of taking. Failure to raise these
matters by preliminary objections shall
constitute a waiver thereof.

* * * *

(e) The court shall determine promptly all
preliminary objections and make such preliminary
and final orders and decrees as justice shall
require, including the revesting of title ...
It is clear from the 1anguagé in subsection (e), authorizing the court to
issue an order "revesting” title, that title passes to the condemnor even
where adequate security has not been filed with the declaration of taking. If

title did not pass automatically in this situation, there would be no need to

762



authorize the court to issue an order revesting title. Therefore, we find
that title passed to the Authority upon.its filing of the dec]ération of
taking.

Body argues, in the alternative, that even if title did pass
automatically to the Authority, that DER should not have issued the permit
until her preliminary objections had been dismissed in a “final non-appealable
decisidn." Body points out that until this time, there is a possibility that
revesting of fhe title will bccur. |

We disagree with this argument. Under 25 Pa. Code §273.120(b), DER
was called upon in this case to determine whether the Authority owned the
mineral rights in question. Based upon our reading of the Eminent Domain
Code, we have concluded tﬁat DER was correct in concluding that the Authority
was the owner. Body cites no authority for the pfoposition thaf DER was
compelled to defer its decision on the Authority’s permit application based
upon the bafe pbssibi]ity that she might be successful in having the Court of
Common Pleas, onh review of her preliminary objections, revest title in her.
In fact, this argument runs counfer to Section 402(a) of the Code, 26 P.S.
§1-402(a), which provides that title vests in the condemnorfupon the filing of
the declaration of taking.

According]y, we enter an Order denying Body’'s motion for summary

judgment, and granting the AUthority’s cross-motion for summary judgment.1

1 In Tight of our granting summary judgment to the Authority) it is not
necessary to discuss or rule upon the Authority’s motion to dismiss and motion
to strike or limit issues.
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ORDER

AND NOW, this 23rd day of June, 1992, it is ordered that the motion

for summary judgment filed by Ruth S. Body is denied, and the cross-motion for

summary judgment filed by the Delaware County Solid Waste Authority is grantea.

It is further ordered that this appeal is dismissed.

DATE :

cc:
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June 23, 1992

Bureau of Litigation, DER:

Library, Brenda Houck

For the Commonwealth, DER:
- Kenneth A. Gelburd, Esg.
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Hershel Richman, Esq.
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POLAR/BEK, INC.
v. : EHB Docket No. 91-387-MJ

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES = :  Issued: June 23, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION

By Joseph N. Mack, Member
- Synopsis

Polar/Bek’s motion for reconsideration of the Board’s order granting
summary judgment to the Department of Environmental Resources based on the
Board’s finding that Polar/Bek’s appeal was barred by the doctrine of
édministrative finality is denied. Polar/Bek’s motion fails to present
compelling and persuasive reasons justifying reconsideration under 25 Pa.
Code §21.122.

OPINION

.This matter originated with the filing of an appeal by Polar/Bek,
Inc. ("Polar/Bek") on September 16, 1991 from an August 22, 1991 letter of the
Department of Environmental Resources ("DER") refusing to conduct a start-up
inspection of a spa and pool facility ("facility") because of Polar/Bek’s

failure to construct the facility in accordance with a special condition of
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its construction permit requiring the installation of four surface skimmers.
The letter also explained that an operating permit could not be issued until
an inspection had been conducted verifying compliance with the construction
permit conditions.

On January 24, 1992, DER filed a motion for summary judgment
asserting that Polar/Bek’s appeal was barred by the doctrine of administrative
fina]ity.because Polar/Bek had failed to appeal the four-skimmer requiremént
at the time the construcfion permit had been issued. Po]ar/Bék responded to
DER’s motion on March 3, 1992 arguing that DER’s July 2, 1991 letter apprdving
the construction permit was not a final order and, thus, was not an appealable

action. l o |

In‘an Opinion and Order issued on April 29; 1992, the Board
determined that the July 2, 1991 communication from DEh was a final,
appea]ab]eiactiOn and that Po]ar/Bek’s failure to appeal the four-skimmer
requirement'at that time precluded Polar/Bek from challenging it 1n.its appeal
of DER’s August 22, 1991 letter denying an operating permjt to Polar/Bek. The
Board, therefore, granted.DER’s motion for summary judgment and dismissed
PoTar/Bek’s appeal.

The métter now before the Board is a motion for reconsideration filed
by Polar/Bek on or about May 7, 1992. DER filed an answer to the motion on
May 18, 1992. |

In its motion, Polar/Bek repeats the argument made in its oppcsition
to DER’s sumﬁary Judgment motion, that because the July 2, 1991 letter was one

in a series of communications with DER regarding the facility and because it
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contained no notice of appeal rights. it could not have been a "finail" action
of DER. Polar/Bek argues that'the Board’s ho]ding will result in applicants
having to appeal évery communication from DER during the perm&t review process
which appears to be adverse since, Polar/Bek argues, without the requiremeht
that an appealable action contain a notice of appeal rights, it will be
impossib]é to determine what does or does not constitute a final action of
DER.

In its answer to Polar/Bek’s motion for réconsideration, DER arques
that Polar/Bek has failed to provide sufficient grounds for reconsideration as
set forth in tﬁe Board’s rules at 25 Pa. (ode §21.122.

The Board’s rules at 25 Pa. Code §21.122 provide in relevant part as

follows:

§21.122 Rehearing or reconsideration

(a) The Board may on its own motion or upon
application of the counsel, within 20 days after
a decision has been rendered, grant reargument
before the Board en banc. Such action will be
taken only for compelling and persuasive reasons,
and will generally be Timited to instances where:

(1) The decision rests on a legal ground
not considered by any party to the proceeding
and that the parties in good faith should have
had an opportunity to brief such question.

(2) The crucial facts set forth in the
application are not as stated in the decision
and are such as would justify a reversal of
the decision. In such a case reconsideration
would only be granted if the evidence sought
to be offered by the party requesting the
reconsideration could not with due diligence
have offered the evidence at the time of the
hearing...

25 Pa. Code.§21.122(a); J. C. Brush v. DER, 1991 EHB 258.
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Polar/Bek argues that the July 2, 1991 communication from DER was not
a final appea]ab1e acti0n. As noted hereinabove, this argument was raised by
Polar/Bek 1in its response to DER’s motion for summary judgmént and was
thoroughly examined by the Board in its Aprf] 29, 1992 Opinion and Order
granting DER’s motion, and, thus, is not grounds for reconsideration.l_

Polar/Bek argues'that a second reason for reconsidéring our earlier
decision is that it did not consult an attorney until after the appeal period
for the July 2, 1991 communication had run and "[t]hus it would be purely
speculative fo question whether [thevattorney] would have filed an appeal

within 30 days of the July 2 communication if he had been consulted in time."

In the aftermath of our April 29, 1992 Opinion and Order, however, Polar/Bek

1 Polar/Bek contends in its motion that

There is some confusion as to which of the
communications from DER is the "final",
"appealable" communication which must be
appealed within the 30 day period. DER’s
view is that it is the communication of
July 2, 1991 [containing the construction
permit for the facility], while the Appellant’s
view is that it is the communication of
August 22, 1991 [containing the denial of
the operating permit for the facility].
This Board has agred with DER’s position.

. We would urge the Board to reconsider, and
decide that it was the August 22, 1991,
communication which started the running of
the 30 day appeal period.

What Polar/Bek fails to understand is that both communications were "final",
appealable actions because both contained a decision or determination by DER
which affected Polar/Bek’s personal or property rights, privileges,
immunities, duties, Tiabilities, or obligations. 25 Pa. Code §21.2; Ed
Peterson and James Clinger v. DER, 1990 EHB 1224.
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argues that "[i]f the attorney for Poiar/Bek were consuited at the inception
of the contact with DER in a similar case, he would feel obligated to advise
applicants to file a formal appeal with this...Board over each and every
communication which had the appearance of being adverse." Whether Polar/Bek’s
attorney would have filed an appeal after the July 2, 1991 communication if he
had been consulted earlier or whether he would give such advice to clients in
future situations are irrelevant to the finding that the July 2 communication
was a final, appealable action and are not grounds for reconsideration.
Because Polar/Bek has raised no grounds for reconsideration which are

compelling and persuasive, as required by 25 Pa. Code §21.122, its motion for

reconsideration must be denied. J. C. Brush, supra.; City of Harrisburg v.

DER, 1989 EHB 365.
' ORDER

AND NOW, this 23rd day of June, 1992, it is hereby brdered that

Polar/Bek’s motion for reconsideration is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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Administrative Law Judge
~  Chairman
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Administrative Law Judge
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DATED: June 23, 1992

CcC:

Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Julia Smith Zeller, Esq.
Marylou Barton, Esq.
Central Region

For Appellant:

J. Philip Bromberg, Esq.
BROMBERG AND MILLER
Pittsburgh, PA
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BROWNING-FERRIS INDUSTRIES OF OHIO, INC.
v. :  EHB Docket No. 92-030-E

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

NORTHWEST SANITARY LANDFILL, INC.

Intervenor, WASTE MANAGEMENT OF

PENNSYLVANIA, INC., Intervenor and MERCER

COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY : Issued: June 24, 1992

- OPINION AND ORDER
SUR
TRI-COUNTY INDUSTRIES, INC.’S
MOTION FOR INTERVENTION AND CONSOLIDATION

By: Richard S. Ehmann, Member
Synopsis

In an appeal challenging the Department of Environmenta1 Resources’
(DER) approval of a revision to a county’s solid waste plan which changed the
primary landfill designation contained in the plan, the Board denies a
Petition to Intervene. Where the petitioner is neither a permittéd landfill
owner nor applicant and alleges only that a related corporate entity has
pending with DER for approval an application for a landfill permit, for which
it would serve as a hauler, and DER has expressed its intention to deny this
application, the petitioner’s interest is not sufficiently substantial, |

immediate and direct as to meet the Board’s standard for intervention.
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Pagnotti Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Tri-County Sanitation Company v. DER, EHB

Docket No. 92-039-E (Opinion issued April 9, 1992).

Further, the Board denies the motion for consolidation of this appeal
and another appeal filed by the petitioner at Docket No; 92-063-E without
prejudice to this motion later being refiled since we have previously directed
the parties to brief issues which will enable us to determine the scope of
both appeals and thus whether consolidation is appropriate.

OPINION

The instant appeal arose when on January 16, 1992, DER approved a
revisioh to the Mercer County Solid Waste P]an ("Revised Ptan"), which plan
was created pursuant to the Municipal Waste Planning, Recycling and Waste
Reduction Act, the Act of July 28, 1988, P.L. 556, No. 101, 53 P.S. §4000.101
et seq.

According to the "p]eadings"l by the parties filed with regard to
this Motion, the sole effect of the revision was to change the landfill which
is the primary site for disposal of Mercer County’s muhicipa] waste from Waste

Management of Pennsylvania, Inc.’s ("WMP") Lake View Landfill, located in Erie

lye have relied upon the uncontested factual allegations set forth in
Tri-County Industry, Inc.’s Motion For Intervention and Consolidation, DER’s
Response and New Matter in opposition to this motion, and Tri-County
Industries, Inc.’s Reply to New Matter. After receiving the Motion For
Intervention and Consolidation, we advised the parties that any response
thereto must be filed with the Board by May 29, 1992. We received DER’s
Response and New Matter on May 29, 1992. Again, we allowed all parties to
respond thereto. Subsequently we also received a letter from intervenors
Northwest Sanitary Landfill, Inc. and Lake View Landfill, only to clarify a
factual allegation contained in DER’s Response. No other parties have filed
responses of any type. Accordingly, we decide this motion as if they agree
with the factual assertions in these "pleadings" for purposes of disposition
of this motion.
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County,2 to Northwest Sanitary Landfill, Inc.’s ("NSL") landfill, located in
Butler County.3 (Motion For Interventjon and Consolidation at Paragraphs
4-6; DER’s Response at Paragraphs 4-6).

BFIO appealed this approval of the "Revised Plan" when notice thereof
was published in the Pennsylvania Bulletin. Thirteen days prior to the
hearing on the merits of BFIO’s appeal, Tri-County Industries, Inc. ("TCI")
filed the instant Motion For Intervention And Consolidation. It seeks to
allow TCI to intervene on BFIO’s side and to allow this appeal and an appeal
by TCI to be consolidated. In a conference telephone call with counsel for
all parties, except counsel for BFIO, counsel indicated their clients opposed
both intervention and consolidation. Accordingly, we cancelled the merits
hearing in this appeal to allow these parties to file their responses to this
Motion. Only DER has done so. Its Response contained New Matter? which
averred a series of facts which DER contends show that TCI is not entitled to
the re]ief sought in its Motion. Accordingly, we allowed TCI and the other
parties to respond thereto. With this said we now turn to the issues raised

in this Motion.

2under the revision, Lake View Landfill remains a backup disposal site
(Motion For Intervention and Consolidation at Paragraph 6; DER’s Response &t
Paragraph 6).

3NSL is owned by WMP (Motion For Intervention and Consolidation at
Paragraph 4; DER’s Response at Paragraph 4; Intervenor’s letter dated June 9,

1992). ~

New Matter is proper in fact pleading under the Rules of Civil Procedure
as to pleadings only and not in motions and responses thereto.
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Intervention

Citing Browning-Ferris Inc. v. Department of Environmental Resources,

__Pa. Cmwlth. , 598 A.2d 1057 (1991), and Browning-Ferris, Inc. v.

Department of Environmental Resourées,y?_xPa. Cmwith. , 598 A.2d 1061
(1991) (collectively "BFI’s"), TCI says it has a direct interest in the
outcome of the appeal and will gain or lose by operation of our decision. TCI
claims- it is attacking DER’s approval of the Mercer County Solid Waste Plan
for irregularities in its drafting, DER’s approval and the selection process
shich selected those landfills as‘the sole disposal facilities. TCI avers it
i1l gain if it has an opportunity to have its landfill selected as a
lesignated 1andfill under this plan and will lose that chance and the economic
senefit therefrom if BFIO’s appeal is denied. 1In addifion, TCI makes other
allegations but they deal with consolidation rather than the holdings of BFIs.
In response, ﬁER avers that previously TCI and DER settled
lifferences over TCI’s Mercer County Landfill through a Consent Order énd

Adjudication entered on April 17, 1990 by this Board in Iri-County Industries,

Inc. v. DER, EHB Docket No. 89-607-E. (DER’"s New Mattér at Paragraphs 4-5)
According to DER, TCI is now obligated by that sett]emeht to close this
landfill and may no longer accept municipal waste there. (DER’s New Matter at
>aragraphs 7-10) DER also states that whiTe another corporation has applied
For a permit to operate a Tandfill at that site (on adjacent land), TCI has no
applications for landfill permits pending with DER and TCI has failed to aver
in its motion how its interest as a waste hauling company is affected by the
yutcome of BFIO’s appeal. (DER’s New Matter at Paragraphs 11, 13, 15-17) DER

zites the test in Borough of Glendon v. Commonwealth, DER, ~ Pa. Cmwith._ ,

503 A.2d 226 (1992) ("Glendon"), i.e., TCI’s interest must be substantia],
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immediate and direct to be allowed to intervene and attack DER’s actions here,
and concludes TCI should not be allowed to intervene. (DER’s New Matter at
Paragraphs 17-18)

In its response to these DER allegations, TCI admits them but says
the current applicant for a landfill permit at the site of TCI’s closed
landfill is related to it as both corporations are owned by a common parent
and, while separate entities, they both have an interest in seeing the Mercer
Plan revised. (TCI’'s Reply to New Matter at Paragraph 13) TCI also avers that
as a hauler it will save money if a permit is issued to the current applicant
for a permit and that site is incorporated as a designated facility into
Mercer County’s plan. (TCI’s Reply to New Matter at Paragraph 17) TCI also
avers it sought incorporation of the app]fcant’s landfill into this plan.
(TCI’s Reply to New Matter at Paragraph 17)

Clearly TCI is not entitled to iﬁtervene on the basis of its former
landfill’s continued existence. TCI admits it can no longer accept wastes for
disposal there (TCI’s Reply to New Matter at Paragraph 15) TCI is obviously
monitoring the closed site. These facts do not give it standing under either
the BEIs or Glendon. It also has no application for any new permits pending
with DER which, if issued by DER;.might give it some interest to protect.

The Motion To Intervene, standing é]one, does not meet the test for
intervention. It is repeatedly premised on the mistaken ﬁdea that TCI has a
1andf111 interest, which it admits it does not. The only allegation which
might convey standing is the unspecific allegation in TCI’s Reply to New
Matter that as a waste hauler TCI will save money if the other corporation’s
application for a landfill permit is approved by DER at some point in time in

the future and, if Mercer’s revised plan is further revised to authorize
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disposal thereat, then TCI will save‘money. However, DER’s New Matter
indicates it has already notified{the app1icant for this new permit of itS
intent to deny that application and TCI admits this is so in its Reply to New
Matter. (DER’s New Matter at Paragraph 12; TCI’s Reply to New Matter at

Paragraph 12)

In Pagnotti Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Tri-County Sanitation Company v.
DER et. al., EHB Docket No. 92-039-FE (Opinien issued April 9, 1992)
("Pagnotti"), we discussed Glendon and the BFIs and attempted to reconcile

same. 5

We will follow that decision here and hope for some clarification
from the Commonwealth Court soon. Usihg the "BFI/Glendon" test in Pagnotti we
must deny the Motion as it pertains to intervention. TCI has not shown a
sufficiently substantial, immediate and direct interest to be allowed to
intervene in favor of BFIO’s attack on DER’s decision. Théré are too'many
contingencies to TCI’s interest to find it is immediate and, since it is not a
permitted Tandfill owner or applicant, its 1nterést does not appear |

sufficiently direct, either)

Consolidation

DER approved Mercer County’s original Solid Waste Plan on March 6,
1991 (Paragraph 6 of DER7s Response and New Matter). Neither our docket nor
TCI’s Notice of Appeal at Docket No. 92-063-E or Motion suggests any time]y
appeal of that plan. Nothing in the "pleadings" iﬁ the instant appeal
suggests any timely appeal by BFIO from DER’s March 6, 1991 approval of this

SIn that opinion we did address, by footnote, the unreported opinion in
Paradise Watch Dogs v. Commonwealth, DER, No. 2143 C.D. 1990, but not the
subsequent opinion of Commonwealth Court in Wheelabrator Pottstown, Inc. v.
Commonwealth, DER, No. 1451 C.D. 1991 (Opinion issued April 20, 1991)
("Wheelabrator"). Unfortunately, Wheelabrator does nothing to clarify the
issues concerning the test for intervention.
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original plan, either. Rather, BFIO appealed from the DER approval of the
revision to the plan which makes NSL’s landfill the primary disposal site for
Mercer County’s waste with WMP’s Lake View»Landfi11 as its backup site.  While
TCI’s Notice of Appeal at Docket No. 92-063-EF attacks the Mercer County Solid
Waste Plan in fact, it also c]ear]y‘says it is appealing from the DER’s -
January 16, 1992 Approval of this.revision.' If TCI’s appeal is any type of
challenge to the Mercer County Plan as unrevised, it clearly may have serious
problems as to untimeliness and oUr ability to hear same. Rostosky v.
Commonwealth, DER, 26 Pa. Cmwlth. 478, 364 A.2d 761 (1976). Despite these

potential problems as to a challenge to the unrevised plan, the January 16,
1992 DER approval of a revision appears to be clearly challengable by timely
appeals. Arthur Richards, Jr., V.M.D. v. DER et al., 1990 EHB 382

("Richards"); The Florence Mining Company v. DER, 1991 EHB 1301 ("Florence").

Insofar as these appeals by BFIO and TCI challenge this reVision only, then a
strong case exists for consolidation of the appeals for trial. Of course that
does not mean TCI could offer evidence as to issues raised solely by BFIO, but
it is clear that there are common witnésses and issues in the two appeals so
judicial economy could be served by consolidation.

By orders in both the BFIO and TCI appeals dated June 16, 1992, we
have asked the parties therein to brief certain issues relating to the issues
raised by Richard and Florence as applied to those appeals and the scope of
the reiief we give if the appeals -are successful. We also directed the
parties in TCI’s appeal at Docket No. 92-063-E to address whether TCI had
standing to raise certain issues in light of the status of its closed landfill
and the lack of any new applications for permits jn its name. Upon receipf of

the briefs of the parties in those appeals on these issues, we will be able to
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determine the scope of both appeals, the extent of the relief we may grant and

the question of TCI’s standing. Accordingly, we deny TCI’s Motion at this

time without prejudice to.it to remake the motion at a point subsequent to our

determination of the issues to be addressed by those briefs and we issue the

following Order.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 24th day of June, 1992, the TCI’s Motion For

Intervention And Consol idation is denied as to intervention and denied without

prejudice to its being refiled subsequently as to consolidation as set forth

in the foregoing opinion.

DATED: June 24, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation

Library: Brenda Houck

For the Commonwealth, DER:
David A. Gallogly, Esg.
Western Region

For Appellant:
Clair M. Carlin, Esq.
Youngstown, OH

For Intervenors:
Pamela S. Goodwin, Esq.
Douglas F. Schleicher, Esq.
Philadelphia, PA

For Mercer County Solid Waste:
William J. Madden, Esq.
Sharon, PA

med

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

s ad
RICHARD S. EHMANN
Administrative Law Judge
Member

For Petitioning Intervenor:
Thomas W. King, III, Esgq.
Thomas J. May, Esq.
Butler, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREEFIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SN

717.787-3483 SECRETARY TO TH:
TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

ALTOONA CITY AUTHORITY :
: EHB Docket No. 90-570-MJ

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : lIssued: June 26, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER
SUK
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

By Joseph N. Mack, Member
Synopsis

Summary judgment is gfanted to the Department of Environmental
Resources ("DER") on the issue of whether the Altoona City Authority ("the
Authority") is an "owner or occupier" within the meaning of §316 of the Clean
Streams Law, 35 P.S. §691.316. However, summary judgmeht is denied on the
issue of equitable estoppel and on the issue of whether the actions reguired
to be taken pursuant to DER’s order will result in a violation of the
‘Hazardous Sites Cleanup Act, 35 P.S. §6020.101 et seq., because guestions of
material fact remain and the law is not ciearly in favor of DER.

| OPINION

This matter was initiated with the December 27,'1990 filing of a
notice of appea1.by the Authority, seeking review of a November 26, 1990 order
("the order") of DER concerning the cleanup of two waste,disposa] pits located
on the site of the Easterly Sewage Treatment Plant ("ESTP"), Blair County,

Pennsylvania, which is currently operated by the Authority. According to

779



DER’s order, the wasie piits naa peen construcied at the ESiP éite as eariy as
1953 and had been used throughout the 1950’'s and 1960’s for disposai of
hazardous and industrial waste. The Authority is'under a 1989 consent decree
with DER and the federal Environmental Protection Agency to cdnstruct certain
improvements at the ESTP. The Autnority began construction work in the summer
of 1989 and in August 1989 notified DER of the existence of the two pits. DER
conducted a preliminary investigation from August through November 1989 and
determined that discharges from the waste bits had caused groundwater
contamination and threatened to poliute a nearby river. DER’s order of
November 26, 1990 required the Autnorify to take measures to cliean up the
site.

On April 19, 1991, DER fiied a motion for partial judgment asserting
that the Authority had raised several paseiess grounds in its appeal. The
Authority submitted a brief in opposition to DER’s motion on May 9, 1991. On
August 8, 1991, the Board issued an Opinion and Order granting DER’s motion in
part and denying it 1n‘part. Judgment was granted to DER on the issue of the
economic impact of its order. Judgment was granted in favor of the Authority
with respect to a paragraph in DER’s order dealing with enforcement action
under the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Act ("HSCA"), Act of October 18, 1988, P.L.
756, 35 P.S. §6020.101 et seq. DER was denied judgment on the pleadings on
the following issues: whether the actions the Authority was reqguired to take
pursuant to DER’s order would violate the HSCA; the Authority’s liability
under §316 of the Clean Streams Law ("CSL"), Act of June 22, 1937, P.L. 1987,
as amended, 35 P.S. §691.1 et seqg., at §691.316; and equitable estoppel.

The matter now before the Board is‘a motion for summary judgment
filed by DER on March 17, 1992. The Authority filed an opposition to DER’s

motion on April 7, 1992, asserting tnat disputed issues remain regarding
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materié] facts and the appiication of iaw to Tact.

The Board may grant summary Jjuaament where the pleadings,
depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on file, together with
any affidavits, show that. there is no genuine issue as to any material fact
and that the moving pafty is entitied to Juagment as a matter of law. Pa.

R.C.P. 1035(b); Summerhill Borough v. (ommonwealth, DER, 34 Pa. Cmwltn. 574,

383 A.2d 1320 (1978). Motions for summary judgment must be viewed in a iignt

most favorable to the non-moving party. Ropert C. Penover v. DER, 1987 EHB

131.

In the Opinion and Order of August 8, 1991, tne Board acenisa Jucamen:
on the pieadings to DER on the issue ot tne Authority’s 1iabiiity unaer §316
of the CSL, 35 P.S. §691.316, because nowhere in the pleadings had it been
clearly established that the Authority waé an owner or occupier of tnhe site in

guestion, as required by §316. Section 316 reads in relevant part as follows:

§691.316. Responsibiiities of landowners and
land occupiers

Whenever the department finds that pollution
or a danger of pollution is resulting from a
condition which exists on Tand in the
Commonwealth the department may order the
landowner or occupier to correct the condition in
a manner satisfactory to the department or it may
order such owner or occupier to allow a mine
operator or other person or agency of the
Commonwealth access to the land to take such
action. For the purpose of this -section,
“Tandowner" includes any person holding title to
or having a proprietary interest in either
surface or subsurface rights...

35 P.S. 8§691.316
With its motion for summary"jUdgment, DER has provided copies of a

portion of the Authority’s pre-hearing memorandum (Exhibit-A to Motion), the
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composite deed draft for the waste water treatment facility (Exhibit B to
Motion), and a portion of the Authority’s answéré to DER’s first set of
interrogatories (Exhibit C to Motion), all of which establish that the
Authority is the owner of the site involved in this appeal. According to the
deed draft and the Authbrity’s answers tb DER’s intérrogatories, the Authority
has been the owner of a major portion of the site on which the pits are
located since 1950 and acquired the remaining balance from Penn Central
Railroad in 1978, although it did not take over actual operation Qf the
treatment facility until 1986. Mbreover, the Authority’s opposition to DER’s
motion begins by saying that "[t]he Authority does hold title to the land upon
whith the two waste pits which are the subject of DER’s November 26, 1990
order‘are located." Thus, we find that the Authority is the owner of the site
within the meaning of §316 of fhe CSL.

DER argues that once we have determined that the‘Authority is the
owner of the site, pursuant to §316 we must find that it is liable for any
condition existing at the site which is causing or is threatening to result in
the pollution of groundwater or surface water. |

As the Board stated in its Opinion and Order of August 8, 1991, fault
is not a prerequisite for liability under §316 of the CSL, and an owner or
occupier of property may be he1d Tiable for any condition on his or her
property causing water pollution or a threat thereof, regardless of whether he

or she caused or contributed to it. Altoona City Authority v. DER, 1991 EHB
1381, 1389; National Wood Preservers, Inc. v. Commonwealth, DER, 489 Pa. 221,

414 A.2d 37 (1980); Western PennsxTvania Water Co. v. Commonwealth, DER, 127

Pa. Cmwlth. 26, 560 A.2d 905 (1989), aff’d per curiam, 402 Pa. Super. 319, 586

A.2d 1372 {1991); Commonwealth, DER v. PBS Coals, Inc., 112 Pa. Cmwith. 1, 534

A.2d 1130 (1987), appeal denied, 551 A.2d 218 (1988). Thus, as the owner of
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the site, the Autnhority may pe ﬁeio itaDie unaer &3lb Tor any conaiLion ai Ine
site causing water pollution or a threat tnereof, regardiess of wnether it
caused or contributed to it.

However, the Authority arques that DER should be equitabily estopped
from ordering the Authority to ciean up tne site. The Authority contenas tnat
at the time DER issued the permit for construction of the ESTP, it was aware
of the two waste pits on the site anc had knowiedge that construction wouid
include excavation in the area bf tne pits. The Authority argues that DER
acted improperly in issuing the bermit,'given the potentiiai fdf causing a
release from the pits, and in not.recuirihg remediation of thée site at tnat
time, and, therefore, shou]a be estobpeo Trom now ordering the Autnority to
remediate the site. |
| As noted in our'August 8, 1991 Opinion and Order, it is Tirmly
established that a governmental agency may not be estopped from performing its

statutory duties and responsibiiities. (ommonwealth, DER v. Philadeiphia

Suburban Water Co., 135 Pa. Cmwlth. 283, 581 A.2d 984 (1990); allocatur aenied

593 A.2d 427 (1991); F.A.W. Associates v. DER, 1990 EHB 1791. Tnus, where an

ageﬁcy’s representetives have been iax or negligent in carrying out their
duties in the past, that cannot actAto‘estop the agency from enforcing the
Taw. F.AW. Associates, supra at 1796. .However, as also noted in our eariier
Opinion endAOrder, there are ceftain cases where equiteb1e estoppe1 méy pe
asseféedbagainst'a government agehcy. The elements which musf'be'eresent in
order for equitable estoppel to be applied against a government agency are as
fo]foWs:' the*agency.(l) must heve infentiona]]y or neg]iéent]y misrepresented
some(hateria1 faci,-(Z) kﬁbwing or having reason'to‘know.that'the'othervparty
wou]d Justifiably rely onethevmisrepresentet{on, and (3) inducing the other .

party to act to his detriment because of nis justifiable reliance on the
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misrepresentation. Yurick v. Commonwea]th, 130 Pa. Cmwlth. 487, 568 A.2d 985,
089 (1989). |

In the affidavit which accompanies the Authority’s opposition
(Exhibit A to Opposition), Andronic Pappas, the Authority’s Chéirman, states
that on November 3, 1989, aftér the Authority discovered the exisience of the
waste pits, Mr. Pappas attended a meeting wiﬁh Mark McCiellan, then Deputy
Secretary of DER. According to Mr. Pappas, at this meeting DER agreed to
perform the c1ean—up and incineration of the hazardous waste in the pits.1
The alleged agreement by DER to clean up the site was also referenced in a
news release issued by DER on November 3, 1989. .(Exhibit C to Opposition)
The.Authority asserts that in reliance upon this alleged agreement by DER, the
Authority (a) gave DER access to conduct the investigation and clean-up at the
ESTP; (b) provided DER with an area for the construction of an impoundment for
the waste which was to be removed from the pits and gave bER pérmission to use
the impoundment area to store the waste until DER could have it incinerated;
(c) pro?ided personnel and equipment for use by DER in conducting its
investigation and remedial activities; (d) redesigned and rescheduied
construction of improvements to the ESTP; and (e) refrained from supervising
and overseeing investigation and remedial activify which the Authority
believes could have been completed in less time and at less cost than under
DER’s supervision. (Exhibit A to Opposition) According to the Authdrity,

instead of completing the clean-up and incineration of waste, DER filled the

in its opposition to DER’s motion, the Authority also contends that at
the November 3, 1989 meeting DER acknowledged the Authority’s financial
inability to pay for remedial work at the site. However, as the Board noted
in its Opinion and Order of August 8, 1991 DER was under no obligation to
consider the economic impact of its aorder on the Authority, and judgment was
granted to DER on the issue of economic impact. Altoona City Authority, supra

at 10.
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impoundment to capacity, stopped excavating the waste from the pits, left the
waste in the impoundment, and ordered the Authority to complete the clean-up.

In its motion, DER states that after the Authority notified DER of
the existence of the waste pits and DER conducted its investigation thereof,
DER took interim response action pursuant to the HSCA and then issued the
November 1990 order to the Authority forvthe necessary additiona1 abatement
activity. | |

However, the Authority asserts that DER had knowledge of the
‘existence of the waste pits at the site at least as early as February 1973 and
was aware that the previous owner of the tract upon which the.western pit is
located, Penn Central Railroad, had improperly closed the pits in a manner
which concealed their presence. Yet despite this knowledge, the Authority
conténds, DER approved design and construction plans and issued permits for
construction of the ESTP which would cause a release from the pits, without
any prior warning to the Authority of the presence of the pits.

DER does not addressffhis argument in its motion. Nor are there
sufficient facts before therBoard to make a determination as to whether there
is any merit to the Authority’s claim or whether the claim provides sufficient
grounds for applying eqhitable estoppel against DER. Because questions of
material fact remain open with respect to the Authority’s assertion of
equitable estoppel and becéUse"this motion must be viewed in a light most
favorable tqvthe non-mov-ing. party, summary judgﬁent is denied DER on the issue
of equitab]evestoppe1.,

Finally, DER has moved for summary judgment regarding the Authority’s
c]aim}that complying with.DER’s order would require it to violate provisions
of the HSCA. Whi1e tﬁé AuthOrity does not address this in its opposition to

the motion, we must, nonetheless, deny DER’s motion. Whether complying with
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DER’s order will result in a violation ot the HSCA turns not oniy on the
requirements of that statute, but also the reasonableness of the remediation
measures requifed by DER’s order. Since there are'odtstanding questions of
material fact regarding the remediation measures, ;nd because a motion for
summary‘judgmeht must'bebviewed in the 1ight mést favorable to the Authority,
we must deny summary judgment to DER on the HSCA issue. |
| ORDER

AND NOW, this 26th day of June, 1992, upon consideration of DER’s
motion for summary judgmeﬁt and the Authority’s opposition thereto, it is
ordered that summary judgment is grantec¢ to DER on the issue of "ownershiﬁ“
under §316 of the Clean Streams Law. HoWever, summary judgment is denied with
respect to the issues of equitable estoppel and the Hazardoué Sites Cleanup

Act.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

MAXINE WOELFLING 1

Administrative Law Judge“
Chairman

ROBERT D. MYERS ’
Administrative Law Judge

Member

T T, FliZ o
TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
Member

R 3. EHMANN
Administrative Law Judge

Member
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1 N. MA
istrative Law Judge

DATED: June 26, 1992

cc: DER, Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Robert K. Abdullah, Esq.
Bureau of Hazardous Sites

& Superfund Enforcement

For Appellant:
David G. Ries, Esq.
Peter G. Veeder, Esq.
THORP, REED & ARMSTRONG
Pittsburgh, PA

ar
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
' ) 101 SOUTH SECOND STREET

'SUITES THREE-FIVE
" HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMITH

717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
TELECOPIER 717-783-4738 :

MCDONALD LAND & MINING COMPANY, INC. :  EHB Docket No. 89-096-MJ
and- SKY- HAVEN-COAL, INC. _ :

V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES :  Issued: guly 2, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR .
SECOND PETITION TO REOPEN RECORD

By Joseph N. Mack, Member
Synopsis

A second petition to reopen the record for the purpose of presenting
additional evidence éfter the hearing has closed but before an adjudication
has been rendered is denied for failure to demonstrate that there has been a
material change in the facts such as would justify a reopening of the record.

~ OPINION

This matter was initiated with the filing of appeals by McDonald Land
& Mining Company, Inc. ("McDonald") and Sky Haven Coal Company ("Sky Haven")
on November 17, 1989 and December 12, 1989, respectively, challenging
comp]iaﬁce orderélissued by the Department of EnvironmentaT Resodrces ("DER")
ih connection with acid mine‘drainage allegedly found at a mine site located
in Lawrence Township, Clearfield County. The appeals were consolidated oﬁ

January 23, 1990.
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A hearing was held on this matter on October 23-24, 1990, and January
28-29, 1991. Post-hearing and reply briefs have been submitted by the
parties. An adjudication is pending.

On June 21, 1991 McDonaTq filed a Petition to Reopen Record alleging
that new evidence warranted a reopening of the record. In an Opinion and
Order issued on July 29,'1991, the Board denied the Petition because McDonald
had not demonstrated (1) that circumstances had changed, (2) that it could not
with due diligence have presented the evidencé at the fime of hearing, or (3)
that the evidence was such as would compel a different outcome.

The matter now before the Board is a Second Petition to Reopen Record
("Second Petition") filed by McDonald on June 9, 1992. 1In it, McDonald has
reiterated the arguments‘made in its earlier Petition with respect to seeps
designated as "Seep 2-C" and "Seep 1-B". McDonald asserts that the record
should be reopened to introduce evidence showing thét Seep 2-C has compietely
dried and that Seep 1-B has "moved” 76.32 feet tq the east to a location which
McDonald designates as "Seep 2-B". McDonald also wishes to 1htroduce evidence
~that a new seep, "Seep 3-B", appeared in the Spring of 1992 at a 1§cation
26.64 feet east of Seep 2-B. According to McDonald this demonstrates a
further movement of Seep 1-B in an easterly direction. McDonald contends that
these constitute material changes of fact which justify reopening the record.

Sky Haven filed objections to McDonald’s Second Petition on June 29,
1992 disputing McDonald’s alleqations that Seep. 1-B has migrated and that
Seep 2-C has completely dried. Sky Haven cqntendsfthét a damp area of ground
remains at the location of Seep 2-C. With respect to Seep 1-B, Sky Haven
contends that the overland flow is contained within the original area affected
by the seep, although the point of flow continues to appear at somewhat yaried

locations depending on seasonal and weather conditions.
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DER filed no response to McDona]d's-Second Petition.

Petitions to reopen the record for the purpose of supplementing it
with additional evidence after the'hearing has closed but before an
adjudication has’issued #re governed by §35.231 of the General Rules of

Administrative Practice and Procedure, 1 Pa. Code §31.1 et seq., at §35.231.

Spang & Company v. Commonwealth, DER, Pa. Cmwlth. , 592 A.2d 815, 818
(1991), aI]ocatur denied, . Pa. , 600 A.2d 543 (1991). Paragraph (a)

of that section provides as follows:

§35.231. Reopening on application of party.

(a) Petition to reopen. After the conclusion
of a hearing in a proceeding or adjournment
thereof sine die, a participant in the proceeding
may file with the presiding officer, if before
issuance by the presiding officer of a proposed
report, otherwise with the agency head, a
petition to reopen the proceeding for the purpose
of taking additional evidence. The petition
shall set forth clearly the facts claimed to
constitute grounds requiring reopening of the
proceeding, including material changes of fact or
of law alleged to have occurred since the
conclusion of the hearing. '

1 Pa. Code §35.231(a). The decision to reopen a record ‘is within the
discretion of the administrative agency. Lower Providence Township v. DER,
1986 EHB 391, 393.

In its Second Petition, McDonald has reiterated the same evidence it
sought to present by its drigina] Petition to Reopen, the only differences
being that another new seep (Seep 3-B) has allegedly appeared since its
earlier Petition and that even more tiﬁe has passed since the alleged
drying-up of Seep 2-C. As noted above, Sky Haven disputes these allegations.

For the same reasons stated in our Opinion and Order on McDonald’s

first Petition, we find that McDonald has not presented grounds sufficient for

790



a reopening of the record. The new evidence which McDonald seeks to present,
even if true, is not such a material change in facts as to justify reopening
the record to take additional testimony thereon. As stated recently in Spang
& Company v. DER, EHB Docket No. 87-042-E (Opinion and Order Sur Appellant’s
Second Petition to Reopen Record, issued June 16, 1992):

...there must be a point at which the parties are

no longer engaged in gathering evidence and

seeking its addition to the record so that this

Board can render its adjudication without being

confronted by successive petitions to reopen the

record to introduce yet more evidence. A party

cannot delay our resolution of a matter by

continuing to generate new evidence after a

merits hearing has been held. Otherwise, the

administrative adjudication process of this Board

could continue ad infinitum.
Id. at p. 5-6.

In conclusion, because McDonald has failed to present sufficient
grounds which would justify a reopening of the record, its Second Petition
must be denied.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 2nd day of July , 1992, it is hefeby ordered

that the Second Petition to Reopen Record filed by McDonald Land & Mining

Company, Inc. is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

pfiber

DATED: 5,1y 2, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
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For the Commonwealth, DER:
Julia Smith Zeller, Esq.
Central Region

For McDonald Land & Mining Co.:

Carl A. Belin, Jr., Esq.
BELIN & KUBISTA
Clearfield, PA _
For Sky Haven Coal, Inc.:
Ann B. Wood, Esq. -
BELL, SILBERBLATT & SWOOPE
Clearfield, PA
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MEARLE E. GATES

V. EHB Docket No. 91-519-MJ

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA,
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

and C & K COAL COMPANY, Permittee . Issued: July 2, 1992
OPINION AND ORDER
SUR

MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

By Joseph N. Mack, Member

Synopsis
Summary judgment i5 granted to the permittee in this appeal of DER's

release of bonds posted by the permittee in connection with its surface mining
operation. Although the appellant may have a cause of action against the permit
for damages to the appellant's property allegedly caused by the permittee's
blasting, DER is not required to withhold the re]eaée;of bonds for any such
alleged damage where the property in question is not located within the bonded
area. |
OPINION

This matter was initiated by Mearle E. Gates ("Gates") on December 2,
1991 with a notice of intent to file an appeal from the Department of Environ-
mental Resources' ("DER;S") November 19, 1991 letter advising Gates of DER's
decision to release bonds posted by C & K Coal Company ("C & K") for fts‘shrface

mining operation in Chest and White Townships, Cambria County. The letter statet
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in relevant part as follows:
This letter is written in response to
your letter dated November 5, 1991. William
Wanco, Blasting Inspector, contacted you on
November 12, 1991 and explained that bond
release could not be held up for claims on
blasting damage.
The Department considers this bond
release objection resolved and will proceed
with recommendation for bond release...
The appeal was perfected on February 3, 1992 and stated Gates'
)bjection as follows:
My objections are due to the fact that
C & K Coal Company have [sic] failed to
recognize their responsibility for the
damage they did to my property by
blasting. Approximately $25,000.00.
The matter now before the Board is a motion for summary judgment
'iled by C & K on March 23, 1992.1 In its motion, C & K states that the bonds
hich were released had been posted to insure reclamation of the area which
& K's mining had affected and to insure that the mining oberations had not
olluted the waters of the Commonwealth. C & K'argues that, pursuant to §4(g)
f the Surface Mining Conservation and Reclamation Act ("SMCRA"), Act of
ay 31, 1945, P.L. 1198, as amended, 52 P.S. §1396.1 et seq., at §1396.4(g);
315 of the Clean Streams Law, Act of June 22, 1937, P.L. 1987, as amended,
> P.S. §691.1 et seq., at §691.315; and 25 Pa.Code 886.174, the allegation

1at. a surface mine operatok failed to settle a blasting claim of a third party

1Although C & K's motion is captioned "motion for summary judgment", the
idy of the motion refers to it as a "motion for judgment on the pleadings"
i failure to state a cause of action upon which relief may be granted.
.cause, in ruling on C & K's motion herein, we rely on the affidavit and
her supporting documentation accompanying the motion, we shall treat it as
motion for summary judgment. Davis Coal v. DER, EHB Docket No. 90-347-MJ
pinion and QOrder Sur Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings/Motion for Summary
dgment issued February 21, 1991).
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located off the bonded area does not constitute a basis upon which DER could

deny the release of a surface mining bond.

The Board notified Gates of C & K's motion and advised him that any
objections thereto were to be filed no later than April 13, 1992. No response
was received from Gates. Nor did DER fj]e a response.

Turning to C & K's motion, summary judgment may be granted where
the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories, and admissions on
file, together with any affidavits, show that there is no genuine issue as
to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a

matter of law. Pa. R.C.P. 1035(b); Summerhill Borough v. Commonwealth, DER,

34 Pa. Cmwlth. 574, 383 A.2d 1320 (1978).

According to the affidavit of C & K's Vice President of Engineering,
James J. Kindel, between January 1978 and June 1989 C & K2 conducted surface
mining operations on properties in Chest Township, Cambria County, owned by
GRC Coal Company and various individuals not including Gates. On August 1,
1981, Gates notified C & K that his residence had sustained blasting damage.
C & K notified GAB Business Services which investigated the complaint and
determined that C & K was not responsible for fhe damages which Mr. Gates had
claimed to be resulting from the mining operation. GAB Business Services
advised Gates of its conclusion in writing. Mr. Kindel states in -his affidavit
that Gates did not institute a lawsuit against C & K on his claim, and the
statute of limitations for filing any such claim has now -run. See 42 Pa. C.S.A.
§5524(3). C & K argues that the release of the bonds in question is conditioned

on C & K's compliance with SMCRA, the Clean Streams Law, and the regulations

2 & K formerly conducted business under the name "Cambria Coal Company"..
(Affidavit of James Kindel)
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thereunder. C & K further argues that there is nothing in the bonds which
obligates it or its surety to satisfy the claim of a third party for damages
which allegedly occurred to a residence located off the bonded area,
partiéu]ar]y where the underlying claim is barred by the statute of ]imitations.
Pursuant to 8§4(d) of SMCRA, prior to the commencement of surface
minihg, a'permittee must file with DER a bond for the land affected by its
operation, conditioned on the permittee performing all the requiremenfs of,

inter alia, SMCRA and the CTean Streams Law. 52 P.S. §1396.4(d).

With regard to release of the bond, §4(g) 6f SMCRA provides that
R & tDER] is satisfied the reclamation covered by the bond or portion
thereof has been accomplished as required by [SMCRA], it may, in the case of
~surface coal mining operations, upon request by the permittee release in whole
or in part the bond..." according to the schedule set forth therein. 52 P.S.
§1396.4(g). Section 86.17446f the regulations contains the standards which
the "entire permit area or a portion of the permit area" must meet for the
release of bonds thereon. 25 Pa.Code 886.174. Stage I release of bonds requires
that the permit area be backfilled and regraded to approximéte original contour
and that drainage controls be installed in accordance with the reclamation plan.
25 Pa.Code §86.174(a). In order to secure Stage II release, the following
standards must be met: topsoil has been replaced and revegetation established,
reclaimed lands are not contributing suspended solids to stream flow or ruﬁoff
in excess of the regulations or permit conditions, soil productivity of prime
farmland has been returned to the required level, and a plan for management
of a permanent impoundment has been implemented if applicable. 25 Pa.Code
§86.174(b). Finally, Stage III bond release may occur only after the permittee
has successfully completed mining and reclamation such that the area in question

is capable of supporting postmining land use, and the permittee has achieved

compliance with the requirementsvof‘the applicable statutes and regulations,
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the permit conditions, and the applicable period of liability under 25 Pa.Code
§86.151. 25 Pa.Code §86.174(c).

Here, Gates is asserting that C & K's bonds should not have been
released because C & K's blasting a]Teged]y caused damage to Gates' property
Tocated off the bonded area. Howevef, the bonds in question were posted to
insure that the permit area would be reclaimed and restored in accordance with
the requirements of SMCRA, the CSL, and §86.174 of the regulations. As C & K
notes in its supporting brief; there fs nothing in the bonds which obligates
C & K or its surety to satisfyAthe claim of a third party for damages which
allegedly occurred off the bonded area. WAlthough Gates may have a course of
action against C & K for any damages to his property allegedly caused by C & K's
blasting, subject to the applicable statute of limitations, he cannot invalidate
DER's bond release on this basis. The bonds were not intended to cover such cle

Thus, because no material facts are in dispute and because we have
determined C & K to be entitled to judgment as a matter of law, we grant summary
Jjudgment to C & K and dismiss Gates' appeal.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 2nd day of July » 1992, upon consideration of C & K'
motion for summary judgment, it is ordered that summary judgmeht is granted
to C & K, and the appeal of Gates at Docket No. 91-519-MJ is hereby dismissed.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD ‘

AP Y. ) B

MAXINE WOELFLING
Administrative Law Judge
Chairman

RGBERT D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

797



EHB Docket No. 91-519-MJ

DATED: July 2, 1992

cC:

ar

Bureau of Litigation
Library, Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Dennis A. Whitaker, Esq.
Central Region

For Appellant:

Mearle E. Gates, pro se
R. D. 1, Box 56

Flinton, PA 16640

For Permittee:

Henry Ray Pope III, Esq.
POPE, POPE AND DRAYER
Clarion, PA

T e T Fi%%%,g;ﬁ;gf
TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
Member

R T AR

A'ministrétive Law Judge
Member

St o pack_

gﬁ PH N. MACK
M9 inistrative Law Judge
ember

798



SETEE,

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 ‘ M. DIANE SMIT}
717.787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE B(

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

MEARLE E. GATES :
v. : EHB Docket No. 91-519-MJ

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
and C & K COAL COMPANY, Permittee g

CONCURRING OPINION BY
BOARDMEMBER RICHARD S. EHMANN

s 8o o8 e

.Because I read Commonwealth, DER v. Chester A. Ogden et é]., 93 Pa.
Cmwith. 153, 501 A.2d 311 (1985) as being applicable to the issues raised by

C&’s motion for summary judgment in this appeal and to be dispositive

thereof, I concur in the order entered as a result of the majority’s opinion.

CHARD S. EHMANN
Administrative Law Judge
Member

med
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE .
HARRISBURG. PA 17101 M. DIANE SMITH

717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
TELECOPIER: 717-783-4738

TER-EX,. INC.

V. : EHB Docket Nos. 83-138-G
: 84-394-G
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: July 8, 1992

ADJUDICATION

By the Board
Synopsis

A gas well spacing order which is based upon data from the pool as é
whole is legal despite the fact that data from one existing well suggests that
its drainage area is much smaller. An integration order is remanded, however,
when the evidence reveé]s that part of the land included in the order is not
underlain with gas reserves that are economically recoverable.

Procedural History

This case arase. as. a result of a timely appeal (Docket No. 83-138-G)
filed with the Board on July 18, 1983, by Ter-Ex, Inc. (Ter-Ex) from the June
16, 1983 issuance by the Department of Environmental Resources (DER) of
Spacing Order No. 14, and a timely appeal (Docket No. 84-394-G) filed by
Ter-Ex on November 23, 1984 from DER's October 24, 1984 issuance of

Integration Order No. 14-1. The Spacing Order and the Integration Order were
issued by DER's Division of 0il and Gas Regulation (now the Bureau of 0il and

Gas Management) pursuant to the 0i1 and Gas Conservation Law, Act of July 25,

800



1961, P.L. 825, as amended, 52 P.S. §401 et seq., upon application filed on
December 14, 1981 and amended on January 8, 1982 by DER’s Bureau of Forestry
acting on behalf of DER’'s Bureau of State Parks. This unusual circumstance,
of one DER bureau making application to another DER bureau, arose out of a'
concern that Ter-Ex’s Rama]ey No. 2 well near Keystone State Park in
Westmoreland County was dep)eting natural gas underlying the Commonwealth’s
land. The Spacing Order established mandatory spacing units of about 320
acres; the Integration Order‘apportioned the royalties from the Ramaley No. 2
well amdng the owner of the land, Martin‘L.'Bearer, t/d/b/a North Cambria Fuel
Compahy (Béarer), the Commonwéa]th énd other landowners.

Pennéy]vania Natural Gas Association (PNGA) and Bearer were denied
intervention fn the appeal docketed at 83-138-G but were granted status as
amici curfae‘(Opinion and Order issued Januéry 10, 1984, 1984 EHB 511; Order
issued May 14, 1984). Bearer filed his own appeal from the Integration Order
(Docket No. 84-391-G) but withdrew it on February 13, 1985. Ter-Ex's Motion
for Summary Judgment was denied in an OpiniOn and Order issued July 13, 1984,
1984 EHB 700. On the same date, the Board informed the pérties of its
tentative decision that DER bore the burden of proof. The decision was
affirmed in an-Order issued January 24, i985.

The appeals, while never consoiidated, were scheduled to be heard
together on numerous occasions, but the hearings were continued at the request
of the parties. Eventually, the parties agreed to have the appea]s |
‘adjudicated on the basis oan submitted fecord and briefs. The record
coﬁsists of stipu1ations, affidavits,ldepositions, the transcript of}a public

hearing held by DER’'s Division of 0il1 and Gas Regulation on,Ju]y 7, 1982, and
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the numerous exhibits attached to these documents. DER and Ter-Ex filed
“briefs on April 23, 1986; PNGA on April 25, 1986. DER and Ter-Ex filed reply
briefs on May 7, 1986. ' '

Edward Gerjuoy,‘the Board Member assigned to these appeals, left the
Board on January 1, 1987 withbut having prepared én Adjudication. William A.
Roth, the Board Member who took over responsibility for these appeals
following Mr. Gerjuoy, also left the Board without having prepared an
Adjudication. This Adjudication is based upon a draft prepared by former
Board Hearing Examiner Thomas M. Ballaron. The authority of the Board to
render an adjudication from a cold record was decided in Lucky Strike Coal Co.
and Louis J. Beltrami v. DER, 119 Pa. Cmwlth. 440, 547 A.2d 447 (1988). Any
_issues not raised in the briefs are deemed waived.

After a full and comp]éte review of the record, we make the
fo]]oWing.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Ter-Ex is a Texas corporation authorized to do business in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, with a registered address of North Point
Building, 9800 McKnight Road, Pittsburgh, PA 15237. Ter-Ex is engaged in the
exploration and production of natural gas for sale at the wellhead (2/23/84
Stip.).1 | |

2. DER is the executive agencybof the Coﬁmonwea]th of Pennsylvania
with the authority and duty to administer the 0i1 and Gas Conservation Law,
Section 1917-A of the Administrative Code, Act of Apri1‘9, 1929, P.L. 177, as
amendéd, 71 P.S. §510—17, and the rules-and regulations promulgated under

these statutes.

1 Stipulations Between Parties received by the Board on February 23, 1984,
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3. On May 17, 1981, Ter-Ex applied to DER's Division of 0il and Gas
Regulation for a pérmit to drill a gas well in Derry Township, Westmoreland
County, pursuant to the 0il1 and Gas Conservation Law. The application was
approved and Drilling Permit No. WES-21883 was issued on June 17, 1981
(2/23/84 Stip.).

4. Ter-Ex drilled and completed the Ramaley No. 2 well, on the basis
of the Dri]Ting Permit, on July 10, 1981, and began selling gas from the well
on August 31, 1981 (2/23/84 Stip.).

5. The Ramaley No. 2 well is situated on a 153-acre parcel of land
composed of two tracts owned by Béérer'(N.T. 852; 3/19/86 Stip.3).

| | 6. Keystone State Park, owned by the Commonwealth, abuts this '
153-acre parcel on the northwest, north and northeast. The Ramaley No. 2
wellhead is about 593 feet from the nearest Keystone State Park boundary
(Walker affidavit?).

7. The Ramaley No. 2 well penetrated the Onondaga Chart formation
and the underlying Oriskany Sandstone formation in the Dry‘Ridge Gas Pool
(2/23/84 Stip.{ Walker affidavit).

8. The Dry Ridge Gas Pool is located in Unity and Derry Townships,
Westmoreland County, northwest of Latrobe. It is approximately 3,700 feet
wide and 6 miles long, trending in a southwest-northeast direction from a
point near U.S. Route 30 at Denison through Unity Township and across
Loyalhanna Creek into Keystone State Park in Derry Township (Walker

affidavit).

2 The transcript of the public hearing held by DER’s Division of 0il and
Gas Regulation on July 7, 1982.

3 Stipulation of Facts received by the Board on March 19, 1986.
4 Affidavit of John T. Walker dated March 17, 1986.
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9. The discovery well (which first demonstrated the presence of
natural gas) in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool was the Steiner well completed on
August 20, 1946 (2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.; Walker affidavit).

10. The presenée‘of marketable quantities of natural gas in the Dry
Ridge Gas Pool was determined when the Roskovensky well was completed on July |
31, 1963. From that date to July 10, 1981 seven additiona] wells have been
completed (N.T. 24-25; 2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.). |

_ 11. The acreage on which each of thesé wells has been placed is

referred to as the spacing unit. Ideally, each spacing unit encompasses the
area that will be drained by the well locatgd on it. A voluntary spacing unit
ié one determined by the develdper of the well. A mandatory spacing unit is
one set by DER in a spacing order. The spacing units for the wells completed
in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool up to July 10, 1981 were all voluntary (2/23/84
Stip.; Walker affidavit; 3/18/86 Bossart affidavit5).

12. The following data apply to the wells in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool:

(a) Steiner - completed on August 20, 1946 to a sub-sea

elevationd of -7162 on a voluntary spacing unit of 104 acres. Thé well
encountered the Onondaga Chert at -6347 and the Oriskény Sandstone at -6542.
It produced 737,000 thousand cubic feet (MCF) of gas before being p]uggéd and
abandoned. The Steiner well drained a different fault block from the other
wells in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool and will not be considered further in this

Adjudication (2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.);

5 Affidavit of Paul N. Bossart, Jr. received by the Board on March 18,
1986.

6 Sub-sea elevation is an elevation below sea level and is expressed in
feet prefixed by a minus sign.
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(b) Roskovensky - completed on July 31, 1963 to a sub-sea
elevation of -6470 on a voluntary spacing unit of 628 acres. The well
encountered the Onondaga Chert at -6241 and the Oriskany Sandstone at -6393.
This well produced 1,014,647 MCF of gas before it was plugged as unproductive
on SeptemberAIS, 1971 (2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.);

(c) Miller - completed on May 11, 1964 to a sub-sea elevation of
-6427 on a voluntary spacing unit of 570 acres. This well encountered the
Onondaga Chert at -6226 and the Oriskany Sandstone at -6378. It produced
425,973 MCF of gas before being plugged and abandoned on October 31, 1966
(3/19/86 Stip.); |

(d) Lem%on - completed on May 14, 1964 to a sub-sea elevation of
-6485 on a voluntary spacing unit of 577 acres. Itbencountered the Onondaga
Chert at -6282 and the Oriskany Sandstone at -6432. It had produced 3,135,592
MCF of gas'as of 1986, when it was still producing (3/19/86 Stip.);

(e) Eidemiller - completed on Ju]y'8, 1964 to a sub-sea elevation
of -6369 on a voluntary spacing unit of 613 acres. This well encountered the
Onondaga Chert at -6160 and the Oriskany Sandstone at -6309. It had produced
1,178,721 MCF of gas as of;1986, when it was still producing (3/19/86 Stip.);

(f) Keck - completed on August 11, 1964 to a sub§seé elevation of
-6361 on a voluntary spacing unit of'538 acres. This well encountered the
Onondaga Chert at -6156 and the Oriskany sandstone at -6308. It produced
131,256 MCF of gas before it was plugged and abandoned on August 12, 1966
(3/19/86 Stip.);

(g) Huff - completed on December 8, 1964 to a sub-sea e]evationr
. of -6604 on a voluntary spacing unit of 320 acres. This well encountered the
Onondaga Chert at -6370 and thé Oriskany Sandstone at -6524. It produced

92,467 MCF of>gas before it was p1ugged as a deep well and converted to a
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shallow gas well in September 1967 (2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.; Walker
affidavit);

(h)'Fbrbes-Carr - completed on July 10, 1980 to a sub-seé
elevation of -6480 on a Vo]untéry spacing unit of 348 acres. This well
encountered the Onondaga Chert at -6265 and the Oriskany Sandstone at -6421.
It had produced 298,985 MCF of gas as of 1986, wheh it was still producing
‘(2/23/84 Stip.; 3/19/86 Stip.; Walker affidavit); and

(i) Ramaléy No. 2 - comp]etéd on July 10, 1981 to a sub-sea
elevation of -6589 on a voluntary spacing unit of 153 acres. This well
encountered the Onondaga Chert at -6327 and the Oriskany Sandstoné at -6475.
It had produced 106,319 MCF of natural gas as of 1986, when it was still
producing (2/23/84 Stip.). _

13. The Dry Ridge Gas Pool is situated on, and a]bng the northwest
side of, the crestal axis of the Fayette anticline. Moving along the strike
of the anticline from southwest to northeast, the Huff well is the first one
to be encountered; then the Eidemiller well, 3,696 feet from Huff; then the
Miller well, 3,960 feet from Eidemi]]ef; then the Keck well, 5,511 feet from
Miller; then the Roskovensky well, 3,696 feet from Keck; then the Lemmon well,
4,554 feet from Roskovensky; then the Forbes-Carr wei], 3,564 feet from
Lemmon; and then the Ramaley No. 2 well, 4,356 feet from Forbes-Carr (3/19/86
Stip.; Walker affidavit).

14. The wells in the Dky Ridge Gas Pool average 4,200 feet apart. On
this basis, each can be expected to drain 300 to 400 acres. The voluntary
spacing units average between 400 and 500 acres (Walker affidavit).

15. The Tocation of the two Ter-Ex wells (Forbes-Carr and Ramaley No.
2) reflects this pattern, indicating a drainage area for each well in excess

of 300 acres (Walker affidavit).
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16. The voluntary spacing unit established by Ter-Ex for the Ramaley
No. 2 well - 153 acres - is well below this figure. A spacing unit of 300
acres or more would include land in Keystone State Park (Walker affidavit).

17. On December 14, 1981, following completion of the Ramaley No. 2
well, the Bureau of Forestry and the Bureau of State Parks filed an
application with the Division of 0il and Gas Regulation for a mandatory
spacing order covering the Dry Ridge Gas Pool, as provided for in the 0il and
Gas Cohservation Law. This application was amended on January 8, 1982 to
request an integration order (2/23/84 Stip.).

| 18. A public hearing on the application was held by the Division of

0i1 and Gas Regulation in Pittsburgh on July 7, 1982 (2/23/84 Stip.).

19. Spacing Order No. 14 was issued in response to the application on
June 16, 1983. This Order held, inter alia, that (1) the Dry Ridge Gas Pool -
extended northeast of Ter-Ex’s voluntary spacing unit surrounding Ramaley No.
2 well; (2) the Ramaley No. 2 well was draining these lands; (3) a spacing
order was necessary to protect the correlative rights of the Commonwealth and
other adjacent owners and to promote the efficient and economic development of
the undeveloped northeast portion of the Dry Ridge Gas Pool; (4) the mandated
spacing units generally would be square, contiguous, 320-acre parcels with the
wells located approximately in the center; (5) the mandatory spacing units for
the Ramaley No. 2 well and the undeveloped parcel to the northeast were fixed;
and (6) the size and shape of the units for the other existing wells would be
varied to conform to the oil and gas property lines then existing (Spacing
Order No. 14).

20. In making its decision, DER relied principally upon the spacing
and production history of the wells drilled and completed in the Dry Ridge Gas
Pool by 1981 (Spacing Order No. 14).
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21. The mandatory spacing unit surrounding the Ramaley No. 2 well was
not a complete square. - The northeast, southeast and northwest boundaries
represented three sides of a square but the southwest boundary was somewhat
irreqular in order to be'contiguouS'with the Forbes-Carr spacing unit. The
acreage was 298 rather than 320 (Spacing Order No. 14; Integration Ordér No.
14-1).

22. Gas wells in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool produce gas from fractures in
the Onondaga Chert/Oriskany Sandstone formations. This deep gas reservoir of ”
Middle and Lower Devonian age is generally encountered at sub-sea elevations
of -6100 to -6500 (the formations dip toward the northwest). The two
formations are essentially parallel throughout the Dry Ridge Gas Pool with the
Onondaga Chert immediately overlying the Oriskany Sandstone (Walker
affidavit).

23. The Dry Ridge Gas‘Pool is limited on thé southeast by a major
fault system which parallels the Fayette anticline and creates a permeability
barrier to the flow of gas. This fault system is located 1,400 to 2,240 feet
southeast of the Ramaley No. 2 well. The other limits of the Dry Ridge Gas
Pool are delineated by the gas-water contact zone’ which is encountered at
sub-sea elevations of -6525 to -6600 (2/23/84 Stip.; Walker affidavit).

24. The Oriskany Sandstone is an aereally extensive sandstone

“containing varying amounts of secondary calcium carbonate and silica cement,
and very little or no clay minerals or shale. The sand grains are tight,
brittle and fracture easily. The gas reservoir or pay-zone within the
Oriskany Sandstone consists of the intergranular spaces within the sandstone

itself, or the fracture openings, or both (Walker affidavit).

7 This is the point where lighter, Tower-density gas meets heavier,
higher-density water in the gas-bearing formations.
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25. The Onondaga Chert formation is one of the densest and hardest
rock types to drill and one which, when unfractured, has essentia]Ty no
porosity or permeability. Chert is composed of dense silica dioxide which is
amorphous (1ike glass). As a result, the only spaces in the Onondaga Chert
for gas and water are naturally occurring fractures (Walker affidavit).

26. The primary gas reservoir for the Dry Ridge Gas Pool is the
Oriskany Sandstone. The.Onondaga Chert is of secondary importance, containing
economically recoverable gas reserves only as a result of gas migration from
the Oriskany Sandstone upward into the Onondaga Chert through natural
fractures (Angerman affidavit8; Holman affidavitg).

27. Natural gas enters a well borg where the bore intercepts natural
fractures in the gas-bearing formations. These natural fractures can be
supplemented by man-made fractures produced by hydraulic fractufing (Walker
affidavit). |

28. Hydraulic fracturing (commonly called "fracking”) involves the
injection of pressurized fluids against the face of a well bore until the
formations break down or fracture. Then fluids and sand {(used as a propping
agent) are pumped into the man-made fractures to extend them outward from the
well bore to connect with natural, gas-bearing fractures (Walker affidavit).

29. The evidence is not sufficient to conciude whether hydraulic
fracturing increases the drainage area of a well or merely allows a more rapid
recovery of the gas within the same drainage area. |

30. A1l of the wells in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool except the Ramaley No.

2 well have been fracked (Walker affidavit).

8 Affidavit of Thomas W. Angerman.

9 affidavit of Robert L. Holman.
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31. Gas enters thevRama1ey’No. 2 well bore at a sub-sea elevation of
-6393 which: is in the Onondaga Chert and from a sub-sea elevation 6f -6475,
which is in the Oriskany Sandstone (Walker affidavit;‘Holman affidavit).

32. The ultimaté gas production which could be economically and
efficiently recerhed-ffom the Ramaley No. 2 well was calculated both by DER"s
and Ter-Ex’s exberfs to be 137,000 MCF, using the prodﬁction history of the
well and a standard.straight line production decline method of determining the
remaining economically recoverable reserves (Walker affidavit; Holman
affidayit; Angerman affidavit).

33. Knowing the economically recoverab]e'gas reserves for a well, it
is possible to compute the drainage area for the well from the pb;os}éy,,
permeability, watef saturation, gas saturatjon and porosity thickness of the
gas producing formations (Walker affidavit).

34. These specific reservoir characteristics of the Ramaley No. 2
well are not known (Walker affidavit).

35. None of the tests or procedures that would have produced this
data were conducted: core samples of the Onondaga Chert and Oriskany Sandstone .
formations adjacent to the Rama]ey No. 2 well, pressure build-up and draw-down
tests, induction resistivity logs, or density logs (Walker affidavit).

36. The data used by the parties in calculating the drainage area of
the Ramaley No. 2 well was inferred from data from other wells in the Dry
Ridge Gas Pool (Walker affidavit).

37. Walker calculated the drainage area of the Ramaley No. 2 well as
352 acres, based upon his conclusion that the well was drawing gas only from a
thin zone in the Onondaga Chert - a net porosity thickness of only one foot

(Walker affidavit).
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38. The Oriskany Sandstone, not the Onondaga Chert, is the primary
jas reservoir, and the net porosity thickness of the producing formation is a
re]étive]y constant seven feet, as derived from the results of down-hole
density Togs run on other wells in the pooi (Holman affidavit).

39. The porosity of the Oriskany Sandstone throughout the Dry Ridge
(;as Pool varies from 5% to 7%; Ho]man’é average of 6% is appropriate (Ho Tman
affidavit).

40. Water saturation of the Oriskény Sandstone is approximately 40%;
gas saturation is approximate]y 60% (Holman affidavit).

41. Thesé factors suggest that_the drainage area of the Ramaley No. 2
well is approximately 51 acres (Holman affidavit).“ |

42. A square, 5l-acre spacing unit with the Rama]éy‘No. 2 well in the
center would extend into Commonwealth Tlands nofthwest of the well (Walker
affidavit).

-43. The drainage area calculation of the Ramaley No. 2 well ﬁs an
areal calculation. If the gas—bearing formations are intercepted by the
gas-water contact zone within thatkarea, the boundaries of the reservoir of
cconomically recoverable gas will be limited accordingly (Walker affidavit).

44. The top of the gas-water contact zone in 1964 was at a uniform
sub-sea elevation of approximately -6600 throughout the Dry Ridge Gas Pool
(Walker affidavit).

45. As gas was withdrawn from the pool, the gas-water contact zone
rose bot only about 20 feet (from -6600 to -6580) by 1982. The limited rise
in e]évation resulted from the lTow compressibility of water (Walker
affidavit).

46. The gas-bearing Onondaga Chert and Oriskany Sandstone dip towafd.

the northwest at the Ramaley No. 2 well toward Keystone State'Park.. As a
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result, the gas-bearing formations come closer to the gas-water contact zone
northwest of the well (Walker affidavit).

47. Based on Walker's analysis (which used seismic survey data
compiled by Seismograph Service Corporation in 1964 and drilling records for
each well in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool), the gas-bearing formations intercept the
gas-water contact zone on Commonwealth lands about 300 feet horthwest of the
voluntary spacing unit established by Ter-Ex for the Ramaley No. 2 well
(Walker affidavit). | |

48. The Ramaley No. 2 well drainage area gnd the Rama]ey No. 2
mandatory spacing unft include lands in Keystone State Park that are underlain
by natural gas in economically recoverable quantities (Walker affidavit).

49. The Ramaley No. 2 mandatory spacing unit also includes
Commonwealth Tands wheré the gas-bearing formations are below the gas-water |
contact zone (Walker affidavit). |

DISCUSSION

The Board’'s order of January 24, 1985 placed the burden of proof upon
DER, but granted the agency the right to re-argue the issue at the hearing.
In its brief, DER asserted the identical arguments raiséd earlier before Board
Member Gerjuoy, and contended that spacing orders were not orders in the
classical sense because they did not direct affirmative action to be taken to
correct a violation of law. Rather, a spacing order was intended to protect
correlative rights and to assure the efficient and economic development of the
resource. Gerjuoy disagreed withkthis rationale when it was first presented.
bHe perceived the spacing order as a unilateral chahge imposed by DER 1in the
conditions of the dri]]ihg'permit received by Ter-Ex and used by the company
to drill and complete its Ramaley No. 2 well. The permit did not restrict or

1imit the size of the spacing unit excépt'as required by the 0il and Gas
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Conservation Law. To this end, Ter-Ex formed a 153-acre voluntary spacing
unit around the Ramaley No. 2 well which placed the wellhead more fhan 500
feet from the nearest boundary. This was proper and in full accord with
Section 6, 58 P.S. 8406, of the 0il and Gas Conservation Law, whiéh dictated
that the only spacing restriction on 1;cating a well, absent a mandatory
spacing order, was that the well be located at least 330 feet from the nearest
outside boundary line of the lease on which the well was located. As a
result, Gerjuoy held that DER, as the asserter of the need for the spacing
order expanding the spacing unit from 153 acres to 298‘a¢res, should bear the
burden of its justification.

In reviewing this decision in lighi of DER's renewed arguments, it is
evident that the circumstances presented by the issuance and appeal of Spacing
Order No. 14 and Integration Order No. 14-1 do not fall precisely into the
format presentéd by the Board’s rules. However, Ter-Ex’s appeal dovetails
more closely with the rule set forth in 25 Pa. Code §21.101(b)(2) and (b)(3),
than any other. The Board endorses Gerjuoy's reasoning and affirms the Order
{ssued January'24, 1985. To carry its burden of proof, DER must éhow-by a
prepondefanée of the evidence that Spacinglorder Nd. 14 and Integratidn Order
No. 14-1 were authorized by law and were not an abuse of discretion: Warren
Sand and Gravél Co., v. DER, 20 Pa. Cmwlth. 186, 341 A.2d'556 (1975); Consol.
Pennsylvania Coal Company v. DER, 1990 EHB 645. .

Well spacfng is an important.feature in the efficient, economical
deve]obment of a natural gas pool which is one of the purposes of the 011 and
Gas Conservation Law (Historical Note following 58 P.S. §401). If the wells
are too close together they will not produce to their fullest potential; if
they are too far apart they will not recover all of the gas in the pool.

Selecting the proper spacing in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool is complicated by the
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gas-bearing formations which are so impermeable that gas is found only in
natural fractures. The number and size of these fractures can vary widely
from one location to another. If a well happens to infercept these fractures,
production can be beneficial. If it misses, production can be non-existent.
This reality appears in the production records of the Dry Ridge Gas Pool wells
where natural flows ranged from 0 MCF to 2,477 MCF. After the creation of
man-made passages by hydraulic fracturing, the flows ranged from 3,844 MCF to
6,000 MCF (not including the Ramaley No. 2 well which was not fracked).

When DER was called upon to mandate spacing units for the‘Dry Ridge
Gas Pool, eight wells already had been placed on voluntary spacing units
designed without government intervention by those in the business of gas field
development. It 1is understandable that DER p]éced a great deal of reliance on
this historical data indicating that each well would drain 300-500 acres.
Since the vo]untary spacing unit surrounding the Ramaley No. 2 well was only
153 acres, it is understandable that DER considered it to be too small. To
expand the size of this spacing unit, however, DER needed affirmative evidence
providing a rational geophysical basis for including the additional area:
Pennzoil Company and Westrans Petroieum, Inc. v. DER, 1974 EHB 252. That
evidence, of necessity, had to prove that the gas pool extended beneath the
expanded spacing unit and that the Ramaley No. 2 well drained it.

DER relied, of course, on the performance data and statistics of the
existing wells. Ter-Ex contends that this was improper, that DER should have
relied instead on specific data applicable to the Ramaley No. 2 well.

- Unfortunately, most of that data is unknown: porosity, permeability, water
saturation, gas saturation, net porosity thickness of the gas-bearing
formations. Apparently, Ter-Ex did not record the appropriate information

from which this data is derived while the well was being drilled. The record
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gives no hint whether the information can be gathered in some other way at a
later time. In any event{ Ter-Ex’s experts, like DER’s, reached their
conclusions on the basis of data from the other wells.

DER argues that, not only was this necessary, it was also proper.
Section 7(4) of the 0il1 and Gas Conservation Law; 58 P.S. §407(4),>requires
spacing units to be of “uniform size” and no smaller than the‘"maxihum area
that can be drained by one well....” To achieve this result, according to
DER, average data from all the developed wells must be given greater weight
than the specific data ffom one well.

Section 7 gives detailed instructions to DER with regard to well
spacing. When DER issues a spacing order, it is supposed to cover all lands
underlain by the gas poé], establishing the acreage to be embréced within each
unit, the shape thereof and the pérmiSsib]eVWe11-dr11Iing area. The units are
to be uniform in size and shape, but‘may be varied to take account of
already-comp leted we]js and a]ready-eétabliShed propérty lines so long as they
encompass the areas which will be drained by wells located on them. In
reaching its decision, DER is to Eonsider, inter alia, the existing
well-spacing plan, the depth at which gés?bearing formations haQe been found,
the nature and character of the formations, the maximum area that may be
drained efficientiy and economicélly:by one well, and any other available
geological or}scientific data which may have probative value.

It is clear from these instructions that,:even though its
intervention may:be prompted by concerns over one particular well, DER's duty
extends to the entire pool. A1l the lands lying above the pool must be
divided into spacing units and the spacing units must (with some exceptions)
be of uniform size aﬁd:shape, reflecting the maximum area that one well caﬁ

drain. To fulfill its duty, DER must consider available data from the pool as
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a whole in an attempt to determine the maximum area one well can drain. In
the Dry Ridge Gas Pool, that data varies considerably from one well to
another;_ The four wells that aré no longer producing - Roskovensky, Miller,
Keck and Huff - had total productions ranging from 92,467 MCF to 1,014,647
MCF. Two of the wells still functioning - Lemmon and Eidemiller - have both
been producing since 1964 but Lemmon’s total output is nearly three times that
of Eidemiller. The other two still functioning wells - Forbes-Carr and
Ramaley No. 2 - have had annual prodﬁctions averaging 50,000 MCF and 21,000
MCF, respectively. Part of this disparity, of course, may relate to the fact
that Ramaley No. 2 has not been fracked.

The point is: with such divergent information there is no alternative
but to deal in generalities. And since they were compiled from historic data
going back to 1963, the genera]itie§ reflect past well-spacing practices.
DER’s decision to divide the pool into 320-acre spacing units (with some
variance for existing units) is a soundly-based determination of the maximum
area one well is likely to drain in the Dry Ridge Gas Pool. The fact that
available data may suggest that the Ramaley No. 2 well is draining a smaller
area does not undermine the soundness of DER’'s determination for several
reasons. First, the spacing units are required to be the same general size
and shape. Second, the drainage calculation for the Ramaley No. 2 well may be
distorted somewhat because the well has not been fracked. Third, the
mandatory spacing unit established for this well is only 298 acrés, about 7%
less than the 320-acre standard employed for the pool.

DER’s decision to make the mandatory spacing units square in shape
also is appropriate. Ideally, the shape of the unit should correspond with
the drainage pattern of the well; but in formations like the Onondaga Chert

and Oriskany Sandstone, such patterns (even if discoverable) are bound to be
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highly irregular. Delineating spacing units that reflect drainage patterns
and, at the same time, are generally uniform in size and shape would be an
enormous (if not impossible) task. The 0il and Gas Conservation Law does hot
require this precision. Square units obviously cannot mirror actual drainage
patterns, but they reasonably accomplish the purposes of the statute.

Ter-Ex contends that, even if the size and shape of the'mandatory
spacing units are appropriate, DER still must prove that gas, in economically
recoverable quantities, underlies the expanded area of the Ramaley No. 2
spacing unit. DER has not disputed this contention and we will consider it
part of the burden of proof.

The evidence is clear that, even if the drainage area of the Ramaley
No. 2 well is only 51 acres, a square spacing uhit of that size would include
Commonwealth lands in Keystone State Park. Potentially, gas from beneath
those lands is being drained by the well. The evidence suggests that the
gas-bearing formations continue in their northeastern strike into those lands.
-The uncertainty surrounds the point where the northwestern dip of the
formations intersects the gas-water contact zone. Beyond that point, gas is
not economically recoverable.

‘No evidence has established that point with any precision; but DER’s
Walker has inferred it from the datavavéilable.” He places it on Commonwealth
lands about 300 feet northwest of the boundary of the voluntary spacing unit
established by Ter-Ex for the Ramaley No. 2 well. While Walker’'s calculation
shows that the gas-bearing formations on part of the Commonwealth lands are
above the gas-water contact zone, it also shows that they are below the zone
on other parts. Yet this fact is not apparent in Integration Order No. 14-1
which includes all of the Tands within the 298-acré spacing unit. Since the

lands in question are Commonwealth lands and since DER ‘is a Commonwealth
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agency, it is our opinion that, to avoid any appearance of collusion,
Integration Order No. 14-1 must reflect the presence of the gas-water contact
zone. If the zone can be more accurately located without the undue
expenditure of time and money, that should be considered. But since
participation in the profit from the Ramaley No. 2 well is based upon the
assumption that gas underlies the entire 298 acres in ecbnbmica]]y recoverable
quantities, the facts do not support it. Accordingly, we wi]T remand
Integration Order No. 14-1 to DER for revision. Since we have found Spacing
Order No. 14 to be appropriate, we will not remand it.

Ter-Ex's arguments on the applicability of the 0il and Gas
Conservation Law and on the procedural requirements for issuance of spacing
and intergration orders were discussed and dismissed in the Opinion and Order
denying its Motion for Summary Judgment (1984 EHB 700). We have reviewed this
decision and affirm it;lo

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Board has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject
matter of the appeals.

2. DER has the burden of proving by a preponderance of the evidence
that Spacing.Order'No. 14 and Integration Order No. 14-1 are lawful and
appropriate exercises of DER’s discretion. |

3. The 0il and Gas Conservation Law requifes DER to establish
spacing units for the entire gas pool -- units of uniform size and shape that

can each be economically and efficiently drained by one well.

10 e also disagree with Ter-Ex's argument that the orders were void
because Ter-Ex was not permitted to cross-examine witnesses during the hearing
before DER (Brief, pp. 16-18).. The time and place for Ter-Ex to vindicate its
right to cross-examine was in a hearing before this Board. See, Borough of
Carlisle v. Commonwealth, DER, 16 Pa Cmwlth. 341, 330 A.2d 293 (1974).
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4. To meet this requirement DER must consider available data from
the pool as a whole.

5. DER's determination to divide the Dry Ridge Gas Pool into
320-acre spacing units (with some Varfance for existing units) is supported by.
the available data from the entire pool. |

6. The fact that the Ramaley Nb. 2 well may actually be draining a
smaller area does not underminé DER's determination. o |

7. DER's decision to make the mandatory spacing units square in
shape is appropriate. o

8. The Ramaley No. 2,wé]1 drains Commonwealth Tands in Keystoné
State Park.

9. On some of thése ]5nds, the gas-bearing formations lie below the
gas-water contact zone. As a fesu]t, the gas is_not economically.recoverab]e.

10. Integration Order No.'14-1 does not reflect this féct. |

11. DERfs’issuénce_of‘Spacing Order No. 14 and .Integration OrdérvNo:
14-1 satisfied prdceduré] fequfrehents of the 0il and Gas Conservation Law.

12. The 011 and Gas Conservation Law contemplates the unitization and

integration of existing gas wells.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 8th day of Ju]y; 1992
i. Ter-Ex's appeal of Spacing Orde
2. Ter-Ex's apbea] of Integratioh
part. The Order is remanded to DER'for acfi

Adjudication.

, it is ordered as follows:
r No. 14 is dismissed.
Order No. 14-1 is sustained in

on in accordance with this

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

RO D. MYERS
Administrative Law Judge
Member

‘TSEuuuma.:r';aﬁgsaiztau!

TERRANCE J. FITZPATRICK
Administrative Law Judge
Member

//;;g;g,az; e Clemald

Chairman Maxine Woelfling and Member Richard
DATED: July 8, 1992

cc: Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck
Harrisburg, PA
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Amy Putnam, Esq./Regulatory Counsel
Justina M. Wasicek, Esg./Central Region
For Appellant:
William A. Jones, Esq.
Pittsburgh, PA
sb
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE .
HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BC

TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

AL HAMILTON CONTRACTING COMPANY : EHB Docket No. 88-113-UW
(Consolidated Docket)
V.

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA : ‘
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES :  Issued: July 9, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION TO LIMIT ISSUES

By MaxineIWOe1f1ing, Chairman
Synopsis
" A motion to limit issues to exclude evidence relating to a compliance
order that was subsequently vacated is granted.
| OPINION

On February 7,'1989, thé"bepértment of Environmental Resources
(Department) issuedva Groundwater Study Order (Order) Fequir{ng A1 Hamilton
Contracting Cbﬁbany (Hamilton) to monitor the quality and movement of ground
- and surface water on its Caledonia Point and Caledonia Pike mine sites in
Coviﬁgfon Township, Clearfield County. Hamilton filed a notice of‘appea] at
Docket No. 89-045-W on February 27, 1989, and also petitioned the Board to
| supersede the Order. On April 19, 1989, following an April 6 heéring, the
Board granted Hamilton's petition and stayed the Order pending an adjudication
on the merits. | . | | ’

‘On September 15, 1989, the Board consolidated Hami]ton's‘appea]-at

Docket No. 89-045-W with its appeal at Docket No. 88-113-W from an earlier
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cémpliance order regarding a]]eged]y'unlanu1 discharges from the Caledonia
Pike mine site. A hearing on the merits of the conso]idéted appeals was
scheduled for September 17-19 and October 3, 1990.

The Department.vacated the Order on August 24, 1990, and subsequently
filed a motion to limit issues on September 7, 1990.1 Tﬁe Department's
motion sought to bar Hamilton from raising any legal and factual issues
related to its appeél of- the now-vacated Order. The Department érgued that
. once it vacated the Order, Hamilton no longer had a stake in the outcome of an
adjudication regarding that Order. Furthermore, because Hami]ton'receivéd the
relief it sought in that appeal, the Board could no longer grant effective
relief. The Department reasoned that sinée the underlying appeal was now
moot, any issues relating to it should no longer be considered in the
adjudication of the remaining appeals consolidated at Docket No. 88-113-W.

In its response to the Department's motion Hamilton contended that
consideration of these issues was essential to the meaningful hearing to which
it is entitled on each appeal to this Board. In order to receive a meaningful
hearing, Hamilton asserts that the Board must consider all evidence relevant
to its appeals; relevant evidence is defined by Hamilton to include all issues
and facts raised by each Department enforcement action from 1980 through 1989.
By definition, therefore, the legal and factual issues raised by Hamilton's
appeal of the Order are relevant. Because they are relevant, the Board must
consider those jssues in its adjudication of the other appeals consolidated at

Docket No. 88-113-W.2

1 It is unclear why the Department has not filed a motion to dismiss
Hamilton's appeal at Docket No. 89-045-W as moot.

‘ 2"Despite Hamilton's argument that the issues related to the appeal of the
(footnote continued) : |
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It is clear that Hamilton's appeal of the Order is now moot. By
vacating the Order, the Department gave Hamilton the relief it sought when it
filed its appeal with the Board. Accordingly, the Board can no longer grant

any effective relief with respect to that Order. See Commonwealth v. One 1978

Linco]n Mark V, 52 Pa. Cmwlth. 353, 415 A.2d 1000, 1002 (1980); Roy F.
Magarigal v. DER, EHB Docket No. 91-329-MR (Opinion issued April 16, 1992);

and New Hanover Corp. v. DER, 1991 EHB 1127.

Hami]tonfs\argdment is similar to that raised in New Hanover Corp. v.
DER, supra. There, appellant argued that the Board should not dismiss an appeal
as moot because the issues raised by the appeal were essential to the
determination of issues raised in a later appeal. Id. at 1128. The Board
nevertheless dismissed the appeal as moot because it could no -longer grant the
relief appellant had requested. Id. at 1129. The Board further held that
appellant's arguments ignored the purpose of the moofness doctrine, which is
to allow tribunals to expend their resources on issues in controversy.
Similarly here, Hamilton argues that the Board should continue to consider
issues raised in ah appeal that is now meaningless simply because they may be

relevant to other ongoing appeals. Hamilton's argument conflicts with the

Board's opinion in New Hanover Corp., supra. Because the appeal underlying

the legal and factual issues in question is now moot, the Board may no longer

consider these issues.

(Continued footnote)

Order are relevant, its conduct at the hearing indicates otherwise. Both
Hamilton and the Department focused their attention exclusively on Compliance
Order No. 88-H-008 and discharges from the Caledonia Pike mine site.
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ment's motion to limit issues is granted.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 9th day of July, 1992, it is ordered that the Depart-

DATED: July 9, 1992

cc:

b1

Bureau of Litigation
Library: Brenda Houck

For the Commonwealth, DER:

Michael J. Heilman, Esq.
Western Region

For Appellant:

William C. Kriner, Esq.
KRINER, KOERBER & KIRK
Clearfield, PA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
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HARRISBURG. PA 17101-0105 M. DIANE SMITF
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TELECOPIER 717-783-4738

CENTRE LIME AND STONE COMPANY, INC.

V. | . EHB Docket No. 88-271-F
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, , ; ; B
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES : Issued: July 9, 1992
and BELLEFONTE LIME CO., INC., Permittee : _

: OPINION AND ORDER
SUR MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION

By Terrance J. Fitzpatrick, Member

Synopsis

A Motion for Reconsideration of IhtéfTocutory OpinionEénd Order will

be denied where no exceptioﬁal circumstances are present.
- OPINION . o

This matter involves an appéal brought by antfe'Lime and Stone
Company, Inc. (Céntré) objeCting to the'bepartment of Environmenta] Resources
(DER) reissuance of a surface mining permit to Be]Téfonte'Lime Company, Inc.
(Bellefonte), for mining in Spring Townéhip, Centre County. Centre contests
those provisions of the permit which allow Bellefonte to mine below the water
table. Centre contends that discharged'ground and surface Watér'frdm
Bellefonte's activities will éeep into Centre's deep mine, resu]fiﬁg in added
pumpihg costs, and - if the dischafge is poT]ﬁted - endangeffhg Centre's
employees. | | '

The procedural history is set forth in our décisﬁoh issued on JuTy

11, 1991 (1991 EHB 1144). That deciéion concérned Be]Téfonte's motion to
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compel Centre to answer more fully certain interrogatories. We granted
Bellefonte's motion with regard to some interrogatories, and denied it as to
others.

On July 25, 1991, Bellefonte submitted a Motion for Reconsideration
of our decision issued on July 11, 1991. On AUgust 13; 1991, Centre Lime
filed a responsé to the Motion for Reconsideration. The motion asks us to
reconsider and re-examine those same interrogatories and‘reSponses that have
previously been determined as sufficient by the Board.

The Board's rules of practice and prbcedure provide that
reconsideration will be grahted only for "compelling and persuasive reasons"
and will generally be limited to instances where:

(1) The decision rests on a legal ground not
considered by any party to the proceeding and
that. the parties in good faith should have
had an opportunity to brief such question.

(2) The crucial facts set forth in the
application are not as stated in the decision
and would justify a reversal of the decision.
In such a case reconsideration would only be
granted if the evidence sought to be offered
by the party requesting the reconsideration
could not with due diligence have offered the
evidence at the time of the hearing.

25 Pa. Code §21.122(a)..
With regard to interlocutory orders, such as the one involved here,

reconsideration will be granted only when "exceptional circumstances” are

shown. (City of Harrisburg v. DER, 1991 EHB 87, Baumgardner v. DER 1989 EHB

400, Raymark Industries Inc. v. DER, 1991 EHB 186. Applying these standards,

Be]]efonte’s Motion for‘Reconsideration must be denied.

In Baumgardner, supra, the "exceptional circumstances” which

justified reconsideration consisted of new evidence in the form of test
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results, not available to DER at the initial hearing, that directly refuted
earlier testimony regarding the danger of pollution from Baumgardner’s
recycling activity. The new evidence had a crucial impact upon this pivotal
issue and resulted in reversal of the previous order. By contrast, Bellefonte
has not‘offered Sny new facté 6r:1ega1 grounds justifying reversal ofbthe
order; it has simply presented the same basic arguments as offered in its
origina]lﬁotgon}; z

Granting reconsideration under these circumstances would have the
undesireab]e effect of encouraging requests for reconsideration of
interlocutory orders. Therefore, we will deny Bellefonte’'s motion Without

engaging in a rehash of Bellefonte’'s arguments.
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ORDER
AND NOW, this 9th day of July, 1992, it is ordered that Bellefonte’s

Motion for Reconsideration is denied.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD

Administrative Law Judge
Member

DATED: July 9, 1992

cc: Bureau of. Litigation, DER:
Library, Brenda Houck
For the Commonwealth, DER:
Martin Sokolow, Esg.
Central Region
For Appellant:
Donna L. Fisher, Esq.
PEPPER, HAMILTON & SCHEETZ
Harrisburg, PA :
For Permittee:
Gerald Gornish, Esgq.
WOLF, BLOCK, SCHORR and SOLIS-COHEN
Philadelphia, PA

Jm
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‘COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
SUITES THREE-FIVE
HARRISBURG. PA 171010105 ] M. DIANE SMITH
717.787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE 8C
TELECOPIER 717-783.4738

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, :  EHB Docket No. 90-034-CP-W

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES
V.
U.S. WRECKING, INC. | : Issued: July 10, 1992

ADJUDICATION

By Maxine Woelfling, Chairman
Synopsis
» Where defendant violated the National Emiésiqns Standards for
Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAPS) Eegu]ations by its failure to notify the
Department of Environmental Resources (Departmeht) of its demolition of a
struéture containing asbestos material and its improper removal and storage of
this material, it is subject to civil penalties pursuant to the Air Pollution
Contrq] Act, the Act of January 8, 1960, P.L. (1959) 2119, as amended, 35 P.S.
§4001 et seq. (APCA). Defendant's viaolations were knowing and wilful,. and
given the crucial role of the filing of notifications in the asbestos control
program, a larger penalty is imposed for its deterrent effect. A total civil
penalty of 518,500 is assessed by the Board.
INTRODUCTION | N
This matter was initiated by the Department.on January: 19, 1990, with

the filing of'é Comp]aiht;fér civil pena]%ies_pursuant'tb”§9.i of the APCA.
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The complaint sought 325,000 in civil penalties from U.S. Wrecking, Inc. (U.S.
Wrecking) for its alleged vio]atibns of the NESHAPS! during the demolition

of two buildings at 7 and 9 East King Street in the City of Lancaster (Job
Site).

Throughout the pendency of this matter U.S. Wrxcking's disregard of
the Board’s rules of practice and procedure, as well as the Board’s ordérs;
has led to the imposition of severe,sanctions; Its failure to comply with the
Board’s November 23, 1990,,6rder compelling it to respond to the Department’s
discovery requests resu]téd iﬁ the Board’'s April 17, 1991, sanction order.

A1l facts which were the subject bf the Department’s interrogatories were
deemed established in accordance witH:the Depértment’s claims, and U.S.
Wrecking was barred from introducing any documents which were not produced. -
U.S. Wrecking also failed to file its pre-hearing memorandum as required by
the Board’s orders, and, in an order dated April 23; 1991, the Board precluded
it from presenting its case-in-chief. | ’

A hearing on the merits was conducted before Boafd Chairman Maxine
Woelfling on June 18, 1991. U.S. Wrecking was represented by counsel at the
hearing.

The Department contends in 1ts'August 8, 1991, post-hearing brief
that the insulation material on the Job Site contained asbestos and that U.S.
Wrecking violated the asbestos notification, removal, and dispoSa] provisions
of the NESHAPS régu]ations. A civil penalty of $25,000 was requested, taking

into account wilfuiness, deterrent effect, harm, and the EPA's penalty policy

l The NESHAPS are promulgated at 40 CFR Pt. 61 and are incorporated by
reference at 25 Pa. Code §124.3. The United States Environmental Protection
Agency (U.S. EPA), pursuant to §112(d) of the Federal Clean Air Act, 42
U.S.C.A. §7142(d) has delegated the authority to enforce the NESHAPS in
Pennsylvania to the Department. See 25 Pa. Code §124.1.
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for NESHAPS violations. The Department also argued that any evidence related
to its offers to settle the violations with U.S. Wrecking prior to filing the
complaint for civil penalties should be stricken by the Board.
| U.S. Wrecking did not file a poét-hearing brief.

After a full and complete review of the record, we make the following

- findings of fact.
FINDINGS OF FACT:
1. 'Defgndant is U.S. Wrecking, a Pennsylvania corporation with a

business address of P. 0. Box 1269, Lancaster, PA 17603. (N.T. 5)2

3. U.S. Wrecking is engaged, inter.alia, in the business of
demolishing and renovating buildings. -(N.T. 5)

4, During the course of its business U.S. Wrecking removes asbestos
and asbestos-containing materia]s; (N.T. 28)

5. The Department is the agency with the authority to administer -and
enforce the APCA and the NESHAPS regulations.

6. Asbestos is a naturally. occurring mineral. (N.T. 8)

7. ~Friable asbestos is crumbly and rendered into powder with normai
hand pressure. In this state, the fibers are easily released into the

atmosphere. . (N.T. 26)
8. Asbestos is a recognized carcinogen; the inhalation of asbestos
fibers may cause mesotholioma, lung cancer, asbestosis, and other pulmonary

diseases. (N.T. 9)

2 References to the transcript of the hearing on the merits are denoted by
"N.T.__,” while references to the Department’s exhibits are indicated by "Ex.

c-__ "
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9. Operators of demolition projects are required to file a
notification form with the Department ten days before the start of demolition.
(N.T. 19, 27) .

10. The notification forms require the operator to indicate, inter
alia, the type and amount of asbestos-containing materials, the techniques for
removal, and the manner of disposal. (Ex. C-3)

11. The nétification forms are kept on file in the Department’s
offices and are maintained in the normal course of business. (N.T. 25)

12. The notification requirements enable the Department to inspect
demolition projects to assure that proper asbestos removal techniques are
being utilized to protect the public and the environment. (N.T. 19)

13. Asbestos-containing material must be wetted during removal and
storage. (N.T. 27)

14. Asbestos-containing components being removed from a facility must
be carefully lowered to the ground; (N.T. 27)

15. After wetting, all asbestos-containing materials must be sealed
in leak-tight containers and properly labeled. (N.T. 14, 28)

16. The purpose of these handling and storage measures is to prevent
v the emission of asbestos fibers into the atmospheré. (N.T. 18)

17. On February 17, 1988, while on his lunch break, William L.
Groeber, the Department’s Lancaster District Air Quality Supervisor, observed
the Job Site. (N.T. 9, 12)

18. A sign at the Job Site stated that the work was being done by
U.S. Wrecking. (N.T. 41)

13. Mr. Groeber observed thét the bui]dingé had been gutted of all
walls and ceiling materials. In the ceiling, he saw a large insulated duct,

partially dismantled, extending 150 feet to the back of the building. The
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duct was about 20 inches in diameter, tapering to ten inches in diameter in
the front of the building. (N.T. 10) |
l 20. Mr. Groeber also saw a large pile of rubble between the buildings
which was approximately 20 feet in diameter and five feet high; the bi]e con-
tained various demolition materials such as bricks, lumber, plaster matefia],
ceiling material and a large chunk of duct work measurihg ten inches in |
diameter'and five or six feéf in 1éngth. v(N}T. 10-11) |
21. Mr. Groeber, who holds a B.S. {n Biology and an M.S.'inv
Environmental Engineering, has been employed as the Air Qua]ity"Supervisor for
the Lancaster District for six years. o |
S22, Mr. Groeber has taken several traihing courses related to
asbestos. (N.T; 8) -
23. Based on his experience, Mr. Groeber was concerned that the duct
contained asbestos. (N.T. 12) | | |
24. The insulation materia1 around.the deféched'ductywas dry,
crushed; aﬁd exposed. This méferié]kwas not sealed or identified as asbestos,
nor was it isolated in any way. (N.T. 12-14)
25. There was no notice regarding asbestos at the Job Site; (N.T.
13-14) |
26. Mr. Groeber did not observe any confainment or rémoval‘equipment
common 1y used in deho]ftion projéctstinv01v§hg asbeétos;containiﬁg materials.
(N.T. 13-14) | N
" 27. 'As of February 5, 1988, U.S. Wrecking had not yet filed a
nbtifitatibn'form with the Department. (N.T. 18-19) - o
28. The Department had preVibusly sent a letter and a copy of the

NESHAPS regulations to Arthur Mellinger, President of U.S. Wrécking. The
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letter specifica11y referred to the notification reqﬁirement. v(N.T. 28; Ex.
C-4) . |

29. U.S. Wreckingbhad submitted notifications for renovation and
demolition projects in the past, and, therefore,-had’knowledge>of this
requirement. (N.T. 28)

30. Using a p]astic sandwich bag‘he found on the ﬁremises, Mr.
Groeber collected a sample of the insulation he found at the Job Site on his
February 5, 1988, inspection. (N.T. 12)

| 31. When Mr. Groeber returned to the office hé secured the sample in
a sample jar and placed a security seal on it. He also filled out a Sample
Submissioﬁ Data Sheet for thé sample which was marked as No. 3333330. (N.T.
14-15) |

32. Mr; Groebér placed the sample in a locked cabinet in his locked
office over the weekend. The following Monday, February 8, 1988, the sample
was hand-delivered to the Depariment's}Harrisburg iaboratory. (N.T. 16)

33. Wheﬁ the sample was received at the laboratory the seal was
intact. (N.T. 92)

34. Sample No. 3333330 was analyzed by James Yoder of the
Department’s Bureau of Laboratories. (N.T. 92)

35. At the time of the hearing on the merits) Mr. Yoder was the
certification officer responsible for inspecting laboratories at the
Department's Bureau of Laboratqries; Prior to this position, he was a chemist
in the Air Chemiétry Section in the Bureau of Laboratories for a four-year
period during which he performed microscopic identification of asbestos.
(N.T. 78; Ex; C-6) | |

36. Although Mr. Yoderwhas receivéd specific. training regarding

asbestos and its analysis and has performed several hundred asbestos sample
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analyses, most of his coursework and sample analysis was done after the time
of the analysis of Sample No. 3333330. (N.T. 79—80)

| 37. Polarized light microscopy, a generally accepted technique for
asbestos identification, employs a specialized microscope to identify the
asbestos fibers based on crystallographic and morphological characteristics.
(N.T. 80) | |

38. The Department’é laboratory is currently certified for asbestos
analysis. The polarized 1ight microscope is maintained and calibrated monthly
in accordance with industry. practice. (N.T. 90-91)

39. Mf. Yoder follows a_routine procedure when performing polarized
‘1ight microscopy asbestos analysis. -Each step involves determination of
~vspecific optical properties in order to identify the material. (N.T. 84-89)".

40. To determine the quantity of material, the original sample is
examined under a hood with a stereomicroscope. (N.T. 90)

- 41. Mr. Yoder determined that Sample No. 3333330 contained 50-75%
chrysotile asbestos, and he recorded this information on the laboratory
sample report form. (N.T. 93; Ex. C-2)

42. Mr. Yoder recorded his analysis results on the Sample Submission
Data Sheet and logged these results onto the mainframe computer. (N.T. 91-92;
Ex. C-1)

43. Chrysotile asbestos is one of six regulated forms of asbestos.
(N.T. 97)

44. Mr. Yoder informed Mr. Groeber of the analysis results via
telephone on February 9, 1988. (N.T. 17, 93)

45. Mr. Mellinger telephoned Mr. Groeber on February 5,-1988, and

stated that the fallen ductwork at the.Job Site had only recently been
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discovered and would be treated as asbestos-containing material. (N.T. 19-20,
24)

46.y During this call, Mr. Groeber again advised Mr. Mellinger that
the Department require§ notification of such demolition projects. (N.T. 24)

47. U.S. Wrecking submitted an Asbestos Demolition/Renovation
Notification Form to the Department on February 8, 1988. (N.T. 24-25; Ex.
C-3) _

48. This form estimated that 320 linear feet, or 208 square feet, of
friable asbestos, existed at the Job Site. (Ex. C-3)

49. On February 11, 1988, Mr. Groeber issued a Notice of Violation to
Mr. Mellinger outlining the violations of regulations that were found at the
February 5, 1988, inspection. (N.T. 27-28; Ex. C-5)

50. Mr. Groeber made a second visit to the Job Site on February 12,
1988, ‘and found it in the same condition as it had been on February 5, 1988.
(N.T. 25)

51. The pile of debris, including the chunk of ductwork, remained on
the Job Site. (N.T. 26)

52. The asbestos-containing debris was neither wetted nor isolated
and sealed. (N.T. 26-27, 34) |

53. The partially dismantled duct hanging from the ceiling on
February 5, 1988, had fallen to the ground. (N.T. 27)

54. Mr. Groeber conducted a follow-up inspection at the Job Site on
February 19, 1988, and found that the demolition work was in compliance with
the applicable regulations. (N.T. 31)

55; U.S. Wrecking employees were present during the improper

demolition. (N.T. 5)
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56. The Department did not conduct any air quality monitoring at or
near the Job Site.

57. ~On Jahuary 18, 1990, the Department filed a complaint for
assessment of civil penalties under Section 9.1 of the Air Pollution Control

Act.

DISCUSSION
. We begin this matter with a discussion of the relevant standards of
review. The Department’'s task is two-fo]d here - it must prove to the Board
by a preponderance of the evidence. that U.S. Wrecking vio]ated_thg applicable.
statutes and regulations and that there is a basis for the Board to assess

civil penalties. 25 Pa. Code §§21.101(a) and 21.101(b)(1) and DER v. Lucky

Strike Coal Company and Louis J. Beltrami, 1987 EHB 234, aff’d Lucky Strike

Coal Company and Louis J. Beltrami v. Department of Environmental Resources,

119 Pa. Cmwlth. 440, 546 A.2d 447 (1988). Because U.S. Wrecking has not filed
a post-hearing brief, it has waived any legal arguments which would defeat or
mitigate the Department’s claims to civil penalties. As a result, it is
unnecessary for the Board to address.any arguments in the Department’s post-
hearing brief dealing with U.S. Wrecking’s attempts during the course of the .

hearing on the merits to mitigate the pené]ty amount. Lucky Stfike, Id; DER

v. Allegro Qil and Gas Company, 1991 EHB 821. Here, we must conclude that the
Department has established that U.S. Wrecking violated the APCA and the
redu1ation$ adopted thefeunderfah¢ thatf}t is‘entit1ed to civij penalties from

u.s. Wrecking for those vio]afions; 

Violations of the NESHAPS Regulations
If the amount of friable asbestos in a facility being demolished' is

at least 80 linear metefs'(260 linear feet) on pipesyortat Teast 15 square
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meters (160 square feet) on other facility componénts, the NESHAPS regulations
require the operatof of the demolition project to notify the Department at
least ten days before ihitiating‘the demolition. 40 CFR §§61.145 and-
61.146.3 The evidence establishes that U.S. Wrecking did not timely notify
the Depértment of its intention to undertake the demolition project at the Job
Site and that it was subject to the notification requirements.

Since U.S. Wrecking did not file its notification form until February
8, 1988, and the demolition project at the Job Site was well underway on
February 5, 1988, when Mr. Groeber discovered it during the course of
his lunchtime walk, it is obvious that U.S. Wrecking did not timely file the
notification form.* |

The presence of asbestos-containing material on the Job4Site is
confirmed by analysis of the sample collected by Mr. Groeber on February 5,
1988, and by U.S. Wrecking’s own admission on the notification form. Analysis
of the sample collected by Mr. Groeber indicates the'presence of the
chrysoti]é form of asbestos in the sampled insulation material; the chrysotile
form of asbestos is subject to the NESHAPS standards for asbestos. The

notification form eventually filed by U.S. Wrecking indicated that the amount

3 Subsequent to the filing of the Department’s compiaint for civil
penaities, the NESHAPS regulations pertinent to asbestos were amended. See 55
F.R. 48414 (November 20, 1990). The Board has applied the version of the
regulations in effect at the time of the occurrence of the alleged violations.
Rushton Mining Company et al. v. DER, 1976 EHB 117.

4 The Department urges us to make this finding based on the principle that
the absence of a business record - in this case, the absence of an entry on
the Department’s log of receipt of asbestos not1f1cat1on forms - is evidence
that the event recorded never occurred. We make our finding on the basis of
common sense. - ‘ o ' ’
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of asbestos-containing material was such that U.S.'Wrecking was required both
to submit a notification form under 40 CFR §61.141 and to adhere to the
handling and disposal requirements of 40 CFR §§61.148 and 61.152. (Ex. C-3)

| NESHAPS regulations specify that asbestos material must be wetted
while being stripped, and must remain wetted until collected for dfsposa1. 40
CFR §61.147(c). Any removed asbestos material is tb be carefully lowered to
the ground to prevent asbestos emissions.‘ 40 CFR §6l.147(b): In}some cases,
an exhaust system may be employed to control asbestos emissions. 40 CFR -
§61.147(c)(2). |

The evidence presented at the hearing establishes that no such
measures were used. On his‘February 5, 1988, visit to the bremises, Mr.
Groeber observed the asbestos material, noting that it wasA"Qery dry"band
crumbled easily (N.T. 12, 13). He did not observe any wetting equipment,
conta1nment materials or dev1ces used for asbestos remova] (N.T} 13). On
February 12, 1988, Mr. Groeber found the pile of debris, including a chunk of
duct work, remained. Again, the bu11d1ng was not wetted (N.T. 26). }

Mr. Groeber also testified that at the time of his first visit to the
premises on February 5, 1988, the building was gutted of all walls and ceiling
material (N.T. 9-10). Accordingly, we can deduce the asbestos materials were
improperly removed in violation of 40 CFR §61.147.

NESHAPS regulations also spec1fy that all asbestos -containing
material, after being wetted shall be sea]ed in 1eak -tight containers and
labeled with a warning. 40 CFR:§61.1527 The testimony establishes this was
not done. On the two occasions'that'MF. Groeber visﬁted the site, the

asbestos insulation was lying on the floor as part of a pile of demolition
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debris (N T. 12-14, 26). He specifically noted that its condition was very
dry. and that it was not 1so]ated or labeled in any way (N. T 12-14, 26).
Consequently, we must conclude that U.S. Wrecking violated 40 CFR §61.152.

Calculation of_Penaltv Amount

Having found that U.S. Wrecking violated the NESHAPS regulations and,
thérefore, the APCA,5 we turn now to calculation of the penalty amounts.
This entails a determination of the number of days of violation for each
violation and the amount to be assessed per day of violation, taking into
account the factors in §9.1 of the APCA 6

Under 40 CFR §61.146, U.S. Wreck1ng was required to submit a
notification form ten days before initiating demolition at the Job Site.
There is nothing in the record to establish when demolition began at the Job‘
Site, so we must calculate the days of violation with reference to when the
Department -discovered the illegal demolition. Since the Departmént_discovered

the violation on February 5, 1988, the notification form was required to be

5 violation of a regulation adopted pursuant to the APCA const1tutes
unlawful conduct. §8 of the APCA.

6 Section 9.1 of the APCA provides:

In addition to proceeding under any other
remedy available at law, or in equity, for a
violation of a provision of this act, or a rule
or regulation of the board, or an order of the
department, the hearing board, after hearing, may
-assess a civil penalty upon a person for such
violation. Such a penaity may be assessed
whether or not the violation was wilful. The
civil penalty so assessed shall not exceed ten
thousand dollars ($10,000.00), plus up to two
thousand five hundred dollars (3$2,500.00) for
each day of continued violation. In determining
the amount of the civil penalty, the hearing
board shall consider the wilfulness of the
violation, damage or injury to the outdoor
atmosphere of the Commonwealth or its uses, and
other relevant factors..
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filed on or before January 26, 1988. The form was not filed until February 8,
1988, so we have the initial violation (7.e. that on January 26, 1988) and 13
days of continuing violation.

The violations of 40 CFR §§61.147 and 61.152 for improper removal and
storage of asbestos were discovered first on February 5, 1988; were found to
still be occurring on the second inspection, February-12,‘1988 (N.T. 12-14, 26);
and were corrected by the time of the Department”s third visit to the Job Site
on February 19, 1988 (N.T. 31). The Department urges us to find a continuing
violation of 14 days, but we cannot do so, for there is no evidence in the
record to support a finding that U.S. Wrecking’s violations continued between

the dates of the Department’s second and third visits to the Job Site. DER v.

Lucky Strike Coal Company and LoﬁiS’J. Beltrami, 7d. at 248-249. Consequently,
we find an initial violatiénton February -5, 1988, and seven days of continuing
violations.

Section 9.1 of the APCA directs the Board to consider the wilfulness
of the violation, damage or .injury to the outdoor atmosphere of the
Commonwealth or its uses and other relevant factors. We will analyze each of
these factors inrturn. |

The Board has interpreted the concept of a wilful violation under
this Act to require more than a knowledge of a violation; it must also be

‘conduct without justifiable excuse. DER v. Pennsylvania Power Company, 1976

EHB 147, at 172. There was ample evidence presented here to conclude that
these violations were wilful.

U.S. Wrecking had prior knowledge of the applicable asbestos
regulations and had complied by submitting notification forms for past
projects (N.T..28). U.S. Wrecking had been reminded’qf these regulations and

sent both notification forms and a copy of the Bureau of Solid Waste
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Guidelines in May of 1985 (N.T. 28; Ex. C-4). Moreover, U.S. Wrecking did not
reépond immediately in gorrecting the violations once notified. After his
initial February 5, 1988,-inspection, Mr. Groeber ‘testified that during a
phone conversation that same day, Mr. Mellinger spoke about the fallen duct
work and stated he intended to treat this as asbestos-containing material
(N.T. 24). U.S. Wrecking did not submit its one page notification form until
February 8, 1988, three days later (N.T. 25; Ex. C-3), and did not act to
correct these violations until sometime after the February 12, 1988,
inspection when the storage and disposal violations were still occurring (N.T.
12-14, 26). These violations could have been remedied promptly; notification
could have been hand-delivered and the area could have been properly isolated
and the-materia]s removed to avoid any further exposure (N.T. 34-35)..

U.S. Wrecking was aware of the regulations and, even when made aware.
of its violations, éhose not to act. U.S. Wrecking’'s only attempt to defend
its actions was its argument that U.S. Construction, Inc. had done the work at
this site and it, therefore, should be responsible (N.T. 38-59). However, due
to its failure to respond to the Department’s discovery requests, one of which
related to this contention, the interrogatories were deemed answered in the
Department’'s favor. We find U.S. Wrecking's actions were wilful.

In accordance with §9.1, the Board is also to consider damage or
injury to the outside atmosphere of the Commonwealth of -its uses. Although
the Department presented evidence on the amounts of asbestos on the Job Site,
the hazards of asbestos, especially when in a dry or friable form, and the
haphazard way this site was demolished and left with open piles of debris

exposed, the Department did not present any evidence of damage to the
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atmosphere. Apparent]y no air quality monitoring was done. Without such
scientific evidence, it is. impossible to quantify the damage to the
envifdnment which may have been caused by the improper demolition.

| The Department also érgues that the brotection of public health,
safety, and welfare is an important purbose of the APCA and, therefore, should
be a factof considered in assessing a civil penalty. The Board has previously
linked the dégradation of the outdoor atmosphere with the consideration of the
detr1ment to pub]1c health and welfare when assessing a civil penalty under

the APCA. Pennsylvania Power, at 178. Wh.1erwe have found that workers were

preseﬁt during the demo]ition 7 we cannot make any f1nd1ng as to the threat
to pub11c health and safety without any scientific ev1dence estab11sh1ng thé
1eve1 of asbestos emissions and the risk associated with that level.

The only other factor considered under the phrase, "other relevant

factors” is the deterrent effect such a penalty would have. In Pennsylvania

Power the Board stated, "...the civil penalties section, since it does not
rely on intent, means that penalties can and should be assessed as a cost of
polluting in order to deter insults to the environment and to contribute to

their elimination.” Pennsylvania Power, at 176. ' The kind of conduct that

occurred here is certainly conduct that should be deterred. The burden of
compliance is not too weighty. Aﬁd, the Department went out of its way to
mail U.S. Wrecking a notice advising it of current asbestos notification and
removal requirements as early as May, 1985. Because the notification
requirement, in barticu]ar,’is the keystone of the asbéstos tomp]iance

program, violations of that fequirement must be discodraged.

7 1f they were not, the project could not have been accomplished.
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vIn light of the wi]fu]ness of U.S. Wrecking's vio]atﬁons and in order
to deter future violations, we will assess a‘civil penalty of $2,QOO for the
initial violation df 40 CFR §61.146 and $500 per day for the 13 days of \
continuiﬁg violation, for a total of 58500.8 Similar]y,'we will assess a
civil penalty of $1500 for each of the initial violations of 40 CFR §§61.147
and 61.152 and $500 per day for the seven days of each continuing violation,
for a total of Sl0,000. The sum of all eivi] pena]fies imposed is $18,500.9

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Boafd has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject
matter of this proceeding. §9.1 of the APCA. | |

2. The Department bears the burden of proving that U.S. Wreeking
violated the APCA and that there is a basis for the Beard to assess civil
penalties. 25 Pa. Code §Zi.101(a) and (b)(1).

3. U.S. Wrecking, in failing to file a post-hearing brief, waived
its opportun1ty to argue any defenses or m1t1gat1ng factors.

4. Owners or operators of demolition projects are required to notify
the Department of all demolition or renovation operations.containing at least
80 linear metefs‘or 15 square meters of friable asbestos at least ten days

before demoiition begins. 40>CFR §§61.145 and 61.146.

8 The Department has not argued for a particular civil penalty for each of
the violations. ‘It has, however, asserted that a total civil penalty of
$25,000 is reasonable, given the maximum penalty which could be assessed by
the Board under §9.1 of the APCA.

9 The Department suggests that the assessment of a Targe penalty is
warranted because the EPA would impose a maximum penalty of $5000 per day per
violation pursuant to its penalty policy. While we look to federal
regulations and policies for guidance in some circumstances, we will not do so
here in light of the penalty amounts prescribed by state law.
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5. U.S. Wrecking failed to submit a notification form ten days prior
to the beginning of its demolition of the Job Site in violation of 40 CFR
§61.146. | | N

6. U.S. Wrecking initially violated 40 CFR §61.146 on January 26,
1988, and its violation continued for 13 more days until February 8, 1988.

7. Owners or operators are required to keep asbestos,materiais
wetted until collected for disposal. These materials must also be carefully
lowered to the ground, not dropped or thrown. 40 CFR §61.147 (b-f) . |

8. Asbestos materials are to be disposed of in accordance with the
requireméhts of 40 CFR §61.152, inéluding,p]acing wetted materials into
sealed, leakproof containers.

9. On or before February 5, 1988, U.S. Wrecking improperiy removed
and stored asbestos-containing material in viclation of 40 CFR §§61.147 and
61.152. _
' 10. U.S. Wrecking’s violations of 40 CFR §§61.147 and 61.152
conﬁinued until February 12, 1988. |

) : 11. Section 9.1 of the APCA authorizes the Board to impose civil
péna]ties of up to.SI0,000 per violation and up to $2500 per day of continuing
violation. | |

.1{2; Re]qyant'factors to be considered by the Board in assessing a
civil pénaTty include the wilfulness of the violation, damage or injury to the
outside environment of the Commonwealth, any.detriment to public health and

welfare, and the deterrent effect of the civil penalty. §9.1 of the APCA and

DER v. Pennsylvania Power Company, 1976 EHB 147.
,l3f\“U;§; Wrecking#s!Mﬁoﬂﬁﬁions of the NESHAPS violations were knowing

and wilful.
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14. Because of the pivotaT role of the notifﬁcation requirement in
the asbestos control program, a larger penalty for Vﬁo]ations of the
requirement will deter non-compliance. ‘

15. The Department failed to establish damage or injury to the
outside environment or to pub]it health and‘welfake.

-16.. A civil penalty of $2000 for U.S. Wrecking's initial violation of
40 CFR §61.146 and $500 per day for each day of continuing violation is
appropriate. o | |

17. A civil penalty of 31500 for each of U.S. wfecking's violations
of 40 CFR §861.147 and 61.152 and $500 per day for each day of continuing

violation is appropriate.

ORDER

AND NOW, this 10th day of July 1992, it is ordered that civil
penalties in the amount of $18,500 are assessed against u.s. Wrecking for
violations of the APCA. This amount is due and payable immediately into the
Clean Air Fund. The Prothonotary of Lancaster County is ordered to enter the
full amount of the civil penalty as a lien against any property of u.s.
Wrecking, together with interest at the rate of 6% per annum from the date
hereof. No costs may be assessed upon the Commbnwea]th for entry of the lien

on the docket.
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" COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

ENVIRONMENTAL HEARING BOARD
© 101 SOUTH SECOND STREET
: SUITES THREE-FIVE

HARRISBURG, PA 171010105 M. DIANE SMITH
717-787-3483 SECRETARY TO THE BOARD

TELECCPIER 717-783-4738

EMPIRE SANITARY LANDFILL, INC. :  EHB Docket No. 90-467-W

V. |
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA, :
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES . Issued: July 10, 1992

OPINION AND ORDER SUR
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

By Maxine Woelfling, Chairman
Synopsis

A motion for summary judgment is granted in part and denied in part.
Conditions in a solid waste management permit prohibiting a landfill from
accepting new out-of-state waste except to fill certain exfsting cohtracté or
unless the out-of-state waste is matched by a fixed propdrtion of new in-state
waste violate the Commerce Clause of the U.S. Constitution because the
conditions discriminate against interstate commerce, they were not authofized
by Congress, and the state's objectives could be accomplished by less
discriminatory means. The permit conditions limiting waste from out-of-state
.-are not within a special realm 6f state authority protected by the Tenth
Amendment to the U.S. Constitution; the Tenth Amendment is not implicated
unless the nétiona] political process operated in a defective manner. Summary
judgment is not appropriate on the issue of whether a permit condition
limiting the amount of waste which the landfill can receive was authorized

under Article I, §27, of the Pennsylvania Constitution, where the moving party
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has not introduced any evidence which would show whether there was a
reasonable effort to minimize the environmental incursion or that the benefits
would outweigh the environmental harm. A condition requiring the landfill to
conduct traffic studies on a street'is unreasonable where the landfill
accounts for only 21% of the truck traffic using it.
| OPINION

The present controversyl has its genesis in a solid waste,
management permit (No. 100933) issued by the Department of Environmental
Resources (Department) to Empire’Sanitary Landfi]], Inc. (Empire) on March 14,
1986. The permit, which was issued pursuant to the So]id_weste Management
Act, the Act of July 7, 1980, P.L. 380, as amended, 35 P.S. §6018.101 et seq.
(Solid Waste Management Act), authorized Empire to dispose of solid waStean_a
25.74 acre site in the Lackawanna County municipalities of Ransom Township and
.Tay]oproroueh (Empire’s motion for summary judgment, 9 6(a); Department’s
enswet, q 6(a)).v The permit was amended on May 22, 1987,lto authorize the
expansion ofAthe site to 487.16 acres/ of which 150 acres were a lined
disposal area; the disposal of 5000 tons per.day (TPD) as a daily maximum; and
an incfease of up to tO% of thts daily volume if approved by the Department
(Empire’s’motion for summafy judgment, 1 6(b); Department answer, § 6(b)).
Empire advised the Department that it intended to continue operating under the

April 9, 1988, municipal waste management regulations, filing the.hecessary

l The complex procedural history of this matter is set forth in the
Board’'s opinion at 1990 EHB 1534 denying Empire’s request for supersedeas of
the Board’'s opinion at 1990 EHB 1270 denying Empire’s motion to enforce a
settlement agreement; the Board"s opinion at 1990 EHB 1660 denying Empire’s
request to adjudicate the‘'merits on the basis of the record of the November 1
and 2, 1990, supersedeas hearing; the Board’'s opinion at 1991 EHB 66
dismissing as moot Empire’s appeal of the April 6, 1990, modification to its
solid waste permit at Docket No. 90-187-W; and the Board's opinion at 1991 EHB
102 granting Empire’s request for supersedeas.

849



repermitting applications (Empire’s motion for summary judgment, { 6(c);
Department’s answer, 1 6(c)). The Department thereafter, on August 16, 1988,
issued a modification to Empire’s permit which restricted construetion and
operation to Pads 2 through 4 (Empire’s motion for summary judgment, { 6(f);
Department’s answer, 6(f)){

The Department has modified Empire’s permit twice since then. On
April 6, 1990, the Department issued a modification to Empire’s permit (the
April permit) decreasing the maximum daily vo]ﬁme to 3,953 TPD, Towering the
average daily volume to 3,109 TPD,2 limiting the imported daily waste volume
to 3,109 TPD,3 and imposing various restrictions relating to vehicular
access to the landfill (Exhibit binder in support of Empire’s motion for

summary judgment, p.64; Empire Sanitary Landfill v. DER, 1991 EHB 102. Empire

appealed the issuance of the April permit at EHB Docket No. 90-187-W.

The Department issued the second of the two permit modifications (the
October permit) on October 29, 1991. The October permit expressly superseded
the April permit where there were discrepancies betWeen the two permits.4
The October permit imposed a 5,000 TPD maximum daily waste vo]ume;5 1imited

out-of-state waste to waste received pursuant to Empire’s contracts with

Bridgewater Resources, Inc. (BRI), Morris County Transfer Station, Inc., and

N

Computed over a calendar year quarter.

w

Computed over a calendar year quarter.

Fay

The first page of the October permit states:.

A1l conditions of the attached permit amendment/
modification shall supersede conditions in the
original permit if discrepancies or inconsistencies
become evident.

w

Computed over a calendar year gquarter.
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Chambers Development Company, Inc.; imposed a "base Pennsylvania Municipal
Waste " volume of 317 TPD for purposes of Empire’'s seeking additional waste
capacity under Executive Order 1989-8; and festricted vehicular access to the
landfill and réquired Empire to conduct a biannual trarfic study. Empire
appealed the issuancevof this permit modification at EHB Docket No. 90-467-W.
The October permit impiemented étandards contained in Executive Order
1989-8 (Department’s aﬁswer, q 6(f)), which was adopted pursuant.to Article
[, §27 of the Pennsylvania Cohstitution; the Solid Waste ManagemehtlAct; and
the Municipal Waste Planning, Recyc]ing; and Waste Reduction Act, the Act of
July 28, 1088, P.L. 5561, 53 P.S. §4000.101 et seq. (Municipal Waste Act).
The Executive Order contained, provisions related to the restriétions'on
imported waste and the average daily waste volume set in the Octdber permit.
Pendingvdevelopment of the Pennsy]vania‘Municipa] Waste Managément Plan,
Sectfon l(a)(i) of the Executive Order prohibited the Depaftmeht from
approving modifications to existing municipal waste disposal permits which
wodld authorize an expansion of disposél capacity unless the applicant
demonstréted a need for additional cépacity and showed that at least 70% of
the municipal wéste received at the facility was generated in Pennsylvania and
accepted'pursuant to coﬁnty 1mp1emeﬁting docuﬁents specified in §513(b) of the
Municipal Waste Act or such.other documents as theADebartment deemed
acceptab]e.‘ Section 2(a), meanwhi1é, directed the Department to establish
maximum and averagé waste volume limits for operating municipal waste
landfills "based on the actual daily volume 61sposed at the landfill and
reported to the Débartment'for the dayé thé faci]ﬁty was in operation during
the period of October 26, 1988, to June 30, 1989.” The operator could
petition the Department for additional Wasfe volumes if required to implement

"signed and binding contracts” which were entered into prior to October 17,
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1989, and which called for performance during the period of time from October
17, 1989, to the adoption of the Pennsylvania Municipal Waste Management Plan.
Operators of municipal waste‘disposal facilities could also request increases
in waste volume limitations in their permits, provided that at least 70% of
the additional waste was generated in Pennsy]vam‘a.6

By order déted October 31, 1990, the Board consolidated the October
permit appeal with the April permit appeal at EHB Docket No. 90-187-W and, on
November 1 and 2, 1990, the Board conducted a supersedeas hearing on the
consolidated actions. _

By order dated December 26, 1990, Paragraphs 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9(b)
of the October permit were superseded. OQur opinion in support of that order
outlined the reasons that Empire was likely to prevail on the merits with
regard to its contentions that: the volume limitations in the permit are
unconstitutional restrictions on interstate commerce; the reductions in the
waste volume 1imitatfons in Empire's>permit are not authorized by the
Municipal Waste Act or the Solid Waste Act; and, the requirement to perfqrm
traffic studies is unreasonable where the relevant roadway is a heavy
industrial and commercial corridor and trucks traveling to or from Empire
constitute only 21% of the traffic. We also concluded, however, that the
Department was likely to prevail on the question of whether the Department

abused its discretion when it restricted the use of an intersection by trucks

6 The Commonwealth Court recently ruled that the Executive Order was
unconstitutional because it violated the doctrine of separation of powers as
expressed in Article IV, Section 15, and Article II, Section 1 of the
Pennsylvania Constitution. See National Solid Wastes Management Association
v. Robert P. Casev and the Department of Environmental Resources, Pa.
Cmwith. _ , 600 A.2d 260 (1991). The Commonweaith has appealed that decision
to the Pennsylvania Supreme Court, 95-M.D. Appeal Docket 1991. The National
Soiid Wastes Management decision is not dispositive of this appeal, however,
for the Department has cited other grounds for the permit conditions contested
by Empire, and, the Board, therefore, must proceed to consider them.
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traveling to or from the facility during the hours of peak’qse by the motoring
public. Id.

Between the time of this Board’'s order superseding Paragraphs 3, 4,
5, 6, 7, and 9(b) of the October permit and the Board’s opinion explaining
that order, we ruled on a Department motion to dismiss Empire’s .appeal of the
April permit as moot because the October permit rendered the April permit null
and void. We granted the motion at 1991 EHB 66, after unconsolidating the
appeals and again designating Empire’'s appeal of the Octcber permit as Docket
No. 90-467-W.

On April 16, 1991, Empire filed a motion for summary judgment and a
supporting memorandum of law. Empire argued that it is entitled to summary
judgment on the same issues considered as likely grounds for Empire’s success
on the merits in the supersedeas hearing, namely: (1) whether.the imported
waste volume limitations violated the Commerce Clause of the United States
Constitution, Article I, §8; (2) whether the average daily waste volume
limitation of 3,900 tons exceeded the Department’s statutory authority or
abused 'its discretion; and (3) whether thg Department abused its discretion by
requiring the biannual traffic study.

The Department filed an answer and memorandum in opposition on May
31, 1991, maintaining that the record contains unresolved issues of fact and
that Empire was not entitled to judgment as a matter of Taw. According to the
Department, the imported waste voiume limits do not violate the Commerce
Clause; the waste volume and waste origin requirements are authorized by the
Municipal Waste Act, the Solid Waste Management Act, and Article I, §27 of the
Pennsylvania Constitution; and the traffic study requirement falls within the
Department’s power to regulate the transportation of soiid waste, as

delineated in Pennsvlvania Environmental Management Services, Inc. v. DER,
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1984 EHB 94, and TRASH, Ltd. and Plymouth Township v. DER et al., 1989 EHB

486, aff’'d, 132 Pa. Cmwlith. 642, 574 A.2d 721 (1990). On July 22, 1991,
Empire filed a reply brief and a corrected reply brief.

The Board is empowered to grant summary judgment where the pleadings,
depositions, answers to interroéétories, and admissions on file, together with
the affidavits, if any, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material
fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of Law.

Robert L. Snvder et al. v. Department of Environmental Resources, Pa.

Cmwlth. __ , 588 A.2d 1001 (1991). We will examine Empire’s challenges with
regard to the imported waste restrictions, the waste volume limitations, and
the biannual traffic studies requirement separately below.

Imported Waste Restrictions

Paragraphs 4, 5, 6, and 7 of Part III of the October permit restrict
the amount of waste Empire can accept from sources outside Pennsylvania. The
provisions prohibit Empire from accepting new out-of-state waste except to
fi1l certain existing contracts or unless the out-of-state waste is matched.by
a fixed proportion of new in-state waste.

Empire asserts that the imported waste volume limitations of its
permit violate the Commerce Clause of the United States Constitution because
they constitute a discriminatory barrier to interstate commerce and were not
authorized by Congress. The Department, however, contends that the permit
provisions do not discriminate against interstate commerce, that they were
authorized by Congress when it enacted the Resource Conservation and Recovery
A;t, the Act of October 21, 1976, P.L. 94-480, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et
seq. {RCRA), and that they fall within the sphere of state sovereignty

protected by the Tenth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.
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The Supreme Court has recently issued two opinions ruling on whether
state restrictions on the importation of out-of-state waste violate the

Commerce Clause: Fort Gratiot Sanitary Landfill, Inc. v. Michigan Department

of Natural Resources, et al., {S. Ct.) No. 91-636 (Opinion issued June 1,

1992), and Chemical Waste Management, Inc. v. Alabama, (S. Ct.) No. 91-471

(Opinion issued June 1, 1992). A number of other courts have also recently

ruled on the same question. See, e.g. National Solid Yastes Management

Association v. Alabama Department of Environmental Management, 910 F.2d 713

(11th Cir. 1990), cert. denied ___ U.S. __ , 111 S. Ct. 2800 (1991) (ATlabama
law restricting the import of hazardous wastes from 22 states that lack
treatment or disposa]bfacilities violated the Commerce Clause because it
constituted an unjustified barrier to an object of interstate ;ommerce);

Government Suppliers Consolidating Services, Inc. v. Indiana, 753 F.Supp. 739

(S.D. Ind. 1990) (Indiana law imposing tipping fee on disposal of out-of-state
waste‘in,Indiana violated thé Commerce Clause because the state failed to
demonstrate that Indiana waste was inherently safer than out;of-stafe waste,
and the 1eg1timate goal of preserving state landfill space could be
accompiished without discriminating against out-of-state waste); National

Solid Wastes Management Association v. Ohio, 763 F.Supp 244 (S.D. Ohio.199l)

(an Ohio law which allowed solid waste management districts within the state
to set different waste disposal fees depending on the place of the waste’s
origin violates the Commerce Clause because, by treating wastes from inside
the state differently from wastes from outside the state, the law
discriminated againét interstaté commerce, a